
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 
Kensington Police Protection and 


Community Services District 
       


              
Finance Committee  


Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, May 5, 2020 


Via ZoomTeleconference 
 


The page at the URL above will have instructions on how to join the online 
meeting. 


In response to the County and State "shelter in place" orders, the Governor issued an order 
expanding his prior waiver of normal Brown Act requirements.  Executive Order N-29-20, issued 
March 17, 2020, authorizes all-electronic meetings without a physical location for agency 
officials or members of the public.  The published agenda must advise the public of the means by 
which it may participate in the meeting and of a procedure by which disabled persons may 
submit requests for accommodation or modification.  The order does not suspend notice 
requirements.   


Executive Order N-29-20 is effective while state and/or local public health officials have imposed 
or recommended social distancing measure.  The District must prioritize public health and 
containing the spread of the Covid-19 virus, which precludes holding physical public 
meetings.  The District will comply with the usually Brown Act requirements to the extent 
compatible with the directives and recommendations of state and local health officials.  We 
appreciate your understanding. 


1:00 p.m. 
Initial Zoom training/orientation  
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 


 
2. General Public Comments: Members of the public may address the Board for up to three minutes on 


items not listed on the agenda but that are within the jurisdiction of the District. 
 
3. Approve meeting Minutes of January 21, 2020. 


 
4. Receive a presentation by Kosmont Transactions Services regarding use of Pension Obligation Bonds 


to fund the current PERS unfunded liability and determine a recommendation to the Board of 
Directors.  


 
5. Receive an update on CalPERS analysis and provide direction to staff as appropriate: 
 


a. Classic PERS June 30, 2017 for fiscal year 2019-2020 
b. Classic PERS June 30, 2018 for fiscal year 2020-2021 
c. PEPRA PERS June 30, 2017 for fiscal year 2019-2020 
d. PEPRA PERS June 30, 2018 for fiscal year 2020-2020 







KPPCSD Finance Committee 
Meeting Agenda 
May 5, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 


 
6. Receive a presentation by Mike Logan concerning possible issuance of Request for Proposals to 


establish a Section 115 Trust and determine a recommendation to the Board of Directors. 
 
7. Receive mid-year financial status report and provide direction to staff, and recommendations to the 


Board of Directors, as appropriate: 
 


a. Revenue/Expense Report for the period ending March 2020 
b. Cash flow analysis 
c. Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2020 
d. 2020-2021 Salaries Budget Review for all employees (Administration, Parks and Police) 
e. 2020-2021 Parks Budget Review (NBS) 
f. 2020 Police Salary Resolution 


 
8. Receive an update on the Community Center Renovation Project and provide direction to staff as 


appropriate. 
 
9. Discuss and determine date and time for the next Finance Committee meeting. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Rules of Decorum at Meetings 


 Please observe our three-minute per person limit (once per item) and twenty-minute total limit, 
per Board Policy 4120.4.1. 


•  If there are several speakers, please be concise to give others the opportunity to speak. 
 
General Information 


•  All proceedings of the Committee will be audio recorded if possible. 
•  Upon request, the Kensington Police Protection and Community Services District will provide 


written agenda materials in appropriate alternative formats or disability-related modification of 
disabilities to participate in public meeting. Please send written request, including your name, 
mailing address, phone number, and a brief description of the requested materials and 
preferred alternative format or auxiliary aid or service at least two days before the meeting. 
Requests should be sent to Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District, 217 
Arlington Ave, Kensington, CA 94707 


 
POSTED: Public Safety Building – Colusa Food – Arlington Kiosk and at www.kppcsd.org 
Complete agenda packets are available at the Public Safety Building. 
 
All public records that relate to an open session item of a meeting of the Kensington Police Protection & 
Community Services District that are distributed to a majority of the Board less than 72 hours before 
the meeting, excluding records that are exempt from disclosure pursuant to the California Public 
Records Act, will be available for inspection at the District offices, 217 Arlington Ave, Kensington, CA 
94707 at the same time that those records are distributed or made available to a majority of the Board. 


 








1601 N. Sepulveda Blvd., #382
Manhattan Beach, CA 90266
TEL: 424-297-1070 | URL: www.KosmontTransactions.com


Opportunity Overview
Refinance CalPERS UAL with Pension Obligation Bonds


KENSINGTON POLICE PROTECTION AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT


MAY 5, 2020


Presented by:
Larry J. Kosmont, CRE®, President | Kosmont Transactions Services | lkosmont@KosmontTransactions.com


Dan Massiello, Sr. VP & Chief Compliance Officer | Kosmont Transactions Services | dmassiello@KosmontTransactions.com



mailto:lkosmont@KosmontTransactions.com

mailto:dmassiello@KosmontTransactions.com





Kosmont Transactions Services     |     Proprietary Do Not Duplicate     | 2


Kosmont Transactions


Services, Inc. (“KTS”)


is one of three integrated


Kosmont firms dedicated to


the pursuit of Economic


Development opportunities for


our clients


FIRM OVERVIEW







STATUS OF KPPCSD’S 
UNFUNDED ACCRUED LIABILITY TO CALPERS
 KPPCSD’s CalPERS Classic Safety Plan has a substantial Unfunded Accrued Liability 


(“UAL”)
 $4,270,379 at 6/30/18
 $4,434,254 projected at 6/30/20
 Both amounts assume monthly (not lump-sum) payments


 District’s UAL with CalPERS is an existing debt
 Various GASB statements require listing UAL on balance sheet as a current liability


 CalPERS requires members to amortize UAL at predetermined levels (CalPERS 
changes yearly)


 According to CalPERS, overall pension costs likely to continue increasing for 10 years 
due to unfunded liabilities


Kosmont Transactions Services     |     Proprietary Do Not Duplicate     | 3







CURRENT MARKET VOLATILITY LIKELY TO ADD TO UAL


 Market returns of less than 7% increase UAL


 CalPERS returns currently flat for the year


 Value at market close 4/27/2020 = $376.1 Billion ("B"); value at 6/30/2019 was $372.6 Billion1


 Hit record high value of $404 B in February; down as much as $69 B in recent market downturn


 How does recent market volatility impact the District?


 Savings from POB are calculated based on 6/30/20 projected UAL being amortized (i.e. $4,434,254)


 Recent correction doesn’t impact the POB estimated savings analysis for current UAL


 With or without a POB, the District's UAL seems likely to increase based on current market activity


Kosmont Transactions Services     |     Proprietary Do Not Duplicate     | 4
1Source: CalPERS







 UAL debt is being amortized at a high rate of interest (i.e. CalPERS’ Discount 
Rate, currently 7.0%)


 Issuing Pension Obligation Bonds (POBs) to refinance all or a portion 
of District’s UAL debt can significantly lower annual pension payments


 Municipal bond market interest rates are currently substantially lower than the 
CalPERS rate


 District has opportunity to lock in low refinancing rate right now


 3.85% rate of interest offered per Lender Term sheet submitted by Brandis Tallman 
(Placement Agent)


 Utilize savings for current expenditures/projects, budget reserves, and/or to fund 
investment portfolio to further reduce future pension costs (“Section 115 Trust”)


Kosmont Transactions Services     |     Proprietary Do Not Duplicate     | 5


OPPORTUNITY TO LOWER PENSION COSTS
REFINANCE CalPERS UAL WITH POBS







PRIVATE PLACEMENT POB
SUMMARY OF SAVINGS1


 3.85% Interest Rate vs. 7.00% CalPERS amortization


 $1.8 million gross (budgetary) payment over remaining life


 $22,000 in FY2021 increasing to max. of $162,000 in FY2032 annual (budgetary); 
varying thereafter with some years of “dis-savings” due to level POB payments vs. 
declining CalPERS payments in later years


 $1.172 Net Present Value benefit yielding NPV Savings of 26.42%


 Closing must occur by June 18, 2020


1 Savings Compared to current CalPERS amortization as presented in Actuarial Valuation as of June 30, 2018 for the Safety Plan of the Kensington Community 
Services District; CalPERS amortization will change year to year; these comparisons represent a “snapshot” compared to current assumptions


Kosmont Transactions Services     |     Proprietary Do Not Duplicate     | 6







PRIVATE PLACEMENT POB OPPORTUNITY
SUMMARY OF PRIMARY FINANCING TERMS
 General Obligation debt, but not “unlimited ad valorem tax” pledge


 20-year repayment term; 10-year call option
 6 years shorter than current CalPERS repayment assumptions


 Option to refinance in 10 years if market conditions favor


 No Debt Service Reserve Fund


 POB to be repaid via “Level Debt Service” structure
 Unlike current projections which call for dramatic increases, POB payments will be smoothed out


 Principal paid annually; interest paid semiannually


 $120,000 approximate issuance costs
 Paid through the financing; no out-of-pocket costs to the District whatsoever


 Close by 6/18/20


Kosmont Transactions Services     |     Proprietary Do Not Duplicate     | 7







Kosmont Transactions Services     |     Proprietary Do Not Duplicate     | 8


UAL/POB REPAYMENT COMPARISON
Year Curent Net Present


Ending CalPERS POB Savings Value


30-Jun Pmt. Payment Savings


2021 $287,011 $264,016 $22,995 $22,115
2022 329,254 298,823 30,431 28,182
2023 364,295 331,818 32,477 28,962
2024 386,173 332,350 53,823 46,217
2025 408,112 331,612 76,500 63,254
2026 419,335 331,644 87,691 69,820
2027 430,866 332,406 98,460 75,488
2028 442,715 331,860 110,855 81,840
2029 454,890 332,044 122,846 87,330
2030 467,399 331,921 135,478 92,740
2031 480,253 332,489 147,764 97,400
2032 493,460 331,711 161,749 102,666
2033 487,781 331,625 156,156 95,441
2034 481,417 332,193 149,224 87,824
2035 467,368 332,375 134,993 76,503
2036 443,165 332,173 110,992 60,570
2037 400,229 332,585 67,644 35,545
2038 219,882 331,574 (111,692) (56,516)
2039 190,383 332,178 (141,795) (69,088)
2040 167,074 332,320 (165,246) (77,530)
2041 152,666 0 152,666 68,972
2042 120,887 0 120,887 52,590
2043 113,079 0 113,079 47,370
2044 88,295 0 88,295 35,616
2045 44,964 0 44,964 17,465
2046 2,153 0 2,153 805


TOTALS $8,343,106 $6,539,717 $1,803,389 $1,171,581


$0


$50,000


$100,000


$150,000


$200,000


$250,000


$300,000


$350,000


$400,000


$450,000


$500,000


2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 2041 2042 2043 2044 2045 2046


Curent POB Payment Curent CalPERS Pmt.







POTENTIAL POLICY CHOICES FOR USE OF SAVINGS


 Build up reserves


 Utilize savings for current expenditures or projects; budget increases; tax/fee reductions


 Fund investment portfolio to further reduce future pension costs


 Typically called “Section 115 Trusts”; several products and options available


 PARS and CalPERS are popular program providers


 Financial products available to leverage savings for potential earnings potential


 Potential for District to “self-manage” if desired


 Discussion of Section 115 Trust options can be ongoing—beyond POB approach


 District may wish to adopt a formal pension policy to memorialize the Board’s choices


Kosmont Transactions Services     |     Proprietary Do Not Duplicate     | 9







POBs ARE INHERENTLY A DEFENSIVE FISCAL POLICY


 The District can refinance all or any portion of UAL
 Determine policy for appropriate funding level of “Total Plan Liability"


 Savings can be used for any legal District purpose or to implement new fiscal policies
 e.g., Potential to set up Section 115 Trust with additional cashflow


 Cost Savings with POBs can reduce impact of future CalPERS changes which 
typically increase pension costs, such as:
 Mortality assumption changes requiring greater funding for longer retirement periods
 Discount rate reductions requiring greater “Normal Cost” payments due to lower anticipated returns, 


increasing future contributions
 Future newly created UALs (as anticipated this year) amortizing over shorter periods with no “ramp up”, 


increasing amortization payments, further increasing Annual Required Contribution payments


Kosmont Transactions Services     |     Proprietary Do Not Duplicate     | 10







GFOA NATIONAL ADVISORY POSITION
NOT APPLICABLE TO POBs ISSUED IN CA


GFOA ADVISORY POSITION
AGAINST POBs


 Invested proceeds may not return a yield at or higher 
than bond rate, increasing overall liability


 Risky, complex instruments that may incorporate the 
use of GICs, swaps, or derivatives


 Issuing taxable debt:


 Increases bonded debt burden


 Uses up debt capacity


 Typically issued without (or with inflexible) call features


 Typically structured to defer repayment, increasing costs


 Rating agencies may not view POBs as credit positive


WHY GFOA ADVISORY IS 
NOT APPLICABLE IN CA


 Proceeds will be used to refinance an existing debt;
not to be invested for a return


 POBs are “plain vanilla” fixed rate municipal bonds;
proceeds will only be used to refinance high-cost debt


 CA Taxable POBs:


 UAL is already a debt on the balance sheet


 Exempt from debt limit for CA Special District


 POBs are routinely issued with “standard” call features


 Repayment structure is entirely up to the District


 Rating agencies are issuing POB ratings commensurate 
with issuer’s GO Bond rating (stronger than COP/LRB)


Kosmont Transactions Services     |     Proprietary Do Not Duplicate     | 11







NEXT STEPS


Engage Finance Team


 Draft legal documents


 Board presentation


 Board consider authorization


 Finalize transaction details (due diligence)


 Payoff UAL with CalPERS


Kosmont Transactions Services     |     Proprietary Do Not Duplicate     | 12







PROJECTED SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES


Kosmont Transactions Services     |     Proprietary Do Not Duplicate     | 13


WEEK OF ACTIVITY


completed Engage Finance Team


May 4 Finance Committee presentation


May 11 Board of Directors presentation


May 18 Prepare draft legal documents and authorizing resolutions


May 25 Board of Directors meet to consider authorization


June 1 Due diligence; finalize all transaction documents


(Before June 18) Close Pension Obligation Bonds; Pay off UAL to CalPERS







1601 N. Sepulveda Blvd., #382
Manhattan Beach, CA 90266
TEL: 424-297-1070 | URL: www.KosmontTransactions.com


THANK YOU – ANY QUESTIONS? 


MAY 5, 2020


PRESENTED BY:  


LARRY J. KOSMONT DAN MASSIELLO


CHAIRMAN & CEO SR. V.P. & CHIEF COMPLIANCE OFFICER


LKosmont@KosmontTransactions.com DMassiello@KosmontTransactions.com Kosmont Transactions Services, Inc. (KTS) is an Independent
Registered Municipal Advisor with the SEC and the MSRB. KTS
does not provide accounting, tax or legal advice. Information
included in this presentation is provided for discussion purposes
only. Such information reflects KTS’s views as of the date hereof
(unless otherwise noted) and is subject to change without notice.
Any terms and conditions discussed herein are preliminary until
confirmed in a definitive written agreement and ultimately
subject to the terms of a Municipal Advisor Engagement Letter
between the District and KTS should the District desire to enter
a Municipal Advisory Relationship with KTS.


KOSMONT TRANSACTIONS SERVICES





		Opportunity Overview�Refinance CalPERS UAL with Pension Obligation Bonds 

		Slide Number 2

		STATUS OF KPPCSD’s �UNFUNDED ACCRUED LIABILITY TO CALPERS

		CURRENT Market VOLATILITY LIKELY TO ADD TO UAL

		OPPORTUNITY to Lower pension costs�REFINANCE CalPERS UAL with POBs

		Private placement pob�summary of savings1

		Private placement pob opportunity�summary of PRIMARY financing terms

		Slide Number 8

		POTENTIAL POLICY CHOICES FOR use of SAVINGS

		POBs are inherently a defensive FISCAL POLICY

		GFOA national ADVISORY POSITION�NOT APPLICABLE TO POBs ISSUED IN CA

		NEXT STEPS

		Projected SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES

		Thank You – Any Questions? 






 


 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
Actuarial Office 
P.O. Box 942709 
Sacramento, CA  94229-2709 
TTY: (916) 795-3240  
(888) 225-7377 phone – (916) 795-2744 fax 
www.calpers.ca.gov 
 


 


 


 
August 2018 
 
 
 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
(CalPERS ID: 7381511111) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2017 
 
Dear Employer, 
 
As an attachment to this letter, you will find a copy of the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation report of the pension 
plan. 
 
Because this plan is in a risk pool, the following valuation report has been separated into two sections: 
 


 Section 1 contains specific information for the plan including the development of the current and projected 
employer contributions, and 


 Section 2 contains the Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation appropriate to the plan as of June 30, 2017. 
 
Section 2 can be found on the CalPERS website at (www.calpers.ca.gov). From the home page, go to “Forms & 
Publications” and select “View All”. In the search box, enter “Risk Pool” and from the results list download the 
Miscellaneous or Safety Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation Report as appropriate. 
 
Your June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation report contains important actuarial information about your pension plan at 
CalPERS. Your assigned CalPERS staff actuary, whose signature appears in the Actuarial Certification section on page 
1, is available to discuss the report with you after August 1, 2018. 
 
The exhibit below displays the minimum employer contributions, before any cost sharing, for Fiscal Year 2019-20 
along with estimates of the required contributions for Fiscal Year 2020-21. Member contributions other than cost 
sharing (whether paid by the employer or the employee) are in addition to the results shown below. The employer 
contributions in this report do not reflect any cost sharing arrangements you may have with your 
employees. 
 
 
Required Contribution 
 


Fiscal Year Employer Normal 
Cost Rate  Employer Payment of 


Unfunded Liability 
2019-20 21.927%  $250,446 
    
Projected Results    
2020-21 23.3%  $286,000  


 
The actual investment return for Fiscal Year 2017-18 was not known at the time this report was prepared. The 
projections above assume the investment return for that year would be 7.25 percent. If the actual investment 
return for Fiscal Year 2017-18 differs from 7.25 percent, the actual contribution requirements for the 
projected years will differ from those shown above.  
 
Moreover, the projected results for Fiscal Year 2020-21 assume that there are no future plan changes, no further 
changes in assumptions other than those recently approved, and no liability gains or losses. Such changes can have a 
significant impact on required contributions. Since they cannot be predicted in advance, the projected employer 
results shown above are estimates. The actual required employer contributions for Fiscal Year 2020-21 will be 
provided in next year’s report.  
 
For additional details regarding the assumptions and methods used for these projections please refer to the 
“Projected Employer Contributions” in the “Highlights and Executive Summary” section.    
 
The “Risk Analysis” section of the valuation report also contains estimated employer contributions in future years 
under a variety of investment return scenarios. 







Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
(CalPERS ID: 7381511111) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2017 
Page 2 


 


 
 
Changes since the Prior Year’s Valuation 
 
At its December 2016 meeting, the CalPERS Board of Administration lowered the discount rate from 7.50 percent to 
7.00 percent using a three-year phase-in beginning with the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuations. The minimum 
employer contributions for Fiscal Year 2019-20 determined in this valuation were calculated using a discount rate of 
7.25 percent. The projected employer contributions on Page 5 are calculated under the assumption that the discount 
rate will be lowered to 7.00 percent next year as adopted by the Board.  
 
On December 19, 2017, the CalPERS Board of Administration adopted new actuarial assumptions based on the 
recommendations in the December 2017 CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions. This study 
reviewed the retirement rates, termination rates, mortality rates, rates of salary increases and inflation assumption 
for Public Agencies. These new assumptions are incorporated in your actuarial valuations and will impact the required 
contribution for FY 2019-20. In addition, the Board adopted a new asset portfolio as part of its Asset Liability 
Management. The new asset mix supports a 7.00 percent discount rate. The reduction of the inflation assumption 
will be implemented in two steps in conjunction with the decreases in the discount rate. For the June 30, 2017 
valuation an inflation rate of 2.625 percent was used and a rate of 2.50 percent will be used in the following 
valuation. 
 
The CalPERS Board of Administration has adopted a new amortization policy effective with the June 30, 2019 
actuarial valuation. The new policy shortens the period over which actuarial gains and losses are amortized from 30 
years to 20 years with the payments computed using a level dollar amount. In addition, the new policy removes the 
5-year ramp-up and ramp-down on UAL bases attributable to assumption changes and non-investment gains/losses. 
The new policy removes the 5-year ramp-down on investment gains/losses. These changes will apply only to new 
UAL bases established on or after June 30, 2019. 
 
For inactive employers the new amortization policy imposes a maximum amortization period of 15 years for all 
unfunded accrued liabilities effective June 30, 2017. Furthermore, the plan actuary has the ability to shorten the 
amortization period on any valuation date based on the life expectancy of plan members and projected cash flow 
needs to the plan. The impact of this has been reflected in the current valuation results. 
 
The CalPERS Board of Administration adopted a Risk Mitigation Policy which is designed to reduce funding risk over 
time. This Policy has been temporarily suspended during the period over which the discount rate is being lowered. 
More details on the Risk Mitigation Policy can be found on our website. 
 
Besides the above noted changes, there may also be changes specific to the plan such as contract amendments and 
funding changes. 
 
Further descriptions of general changes are included in the “Highlights and Executive Summary” section and in 
Appendix A, “Statement of Actuarial Data, Methods and Assumptions” of the Section 2 report.  
 
We understand that you might have a number of questions about these results. While we are very interested in 
discussing these results with your agency, in the interest of allowing us to give every public agency their results, we 
ask that you wait until after August 1 to contact us with actuarial related questions. 
 
If you have other questions, please call our customer contact center at (888) CalPERS or (888-225-7377). 
 
 
Sincerely, 


 
SCOTT TERANDO 
Chief Actuary







 
 


 


 
 
 


 
 
 


Actuarial Valuation 
as of June 30, 2017 


 
for the 


 Safety Plan 
of the 


Kensington Community Services District 
(CalPERS ID: 7381511111) 


 
Required Contributions 


for Fiscal Year 
July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020







 
 


 


Table of Contents 
 


Section 1 – Plan Specific Information 
 
Section 2 – Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation Information







 
 


 


 


Section 1 


C A L I F O R N I A  P U B L I C  E M P L O Y E E S ’  R E T I R E M E N T  S Y S T E M  


 
 
 


Plan Specific Information  
for the 


Safety Plan 
 of the 


Kensington Community Services District 
 


(CalPERS ID: 7381511111) 
(Rate Plan: 921)







 
 


 
 


Table of Contents 
 
 
 
Actuarial Certification                      1 
 
Highlights and Executive Summary 


Introduction 3 
Purpose of Section 1 3 
Required Employer Contributions 4 
Plan’s Funded Status 5 
Projected Employer Contributions 5 
Changes Since the Prior Year’s Valuation 6 
Subsequent Events 6 


 
 
Assets and Liabilities 


Breakdown of Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability 8 
Allocation of Plan’s Share of Pool’s Experience/Assumption Change 8 
Development of Plan’s Share of Pool’s MVA 8 
Schedule of Plan’s Amortization Bases 9 
Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 10 
Employer Contribution History 12 
Funding History 12 


 
 
Risk Analysis 


Analysis of Future Investment Return Scenarios 14 
Analysis of Discount Rate Sensitivity 15 
Volatility Ratios 16 
Hypothetical Termination Liability 17 


 
 
Participant Data                 18 
 
List of Class 1 Benefit Provisions               18 
 
Plan’s Major Benefit Options                20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


(CY) FIN PROCESS CONTROL ID: 519640 (PY) FIN PROCESS CONTROL ID: 500614 REPORT ID: 112529 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 1 
 
 


 


Actuarial Certification 
 
Section 1 of this report is based on the member and financial data contained in our records as of June 30, 2017 
which was provided by your agency and the benefit provisions under your contract with CalPERS. Section 2 of 
this report is based on the member and financial data as of June 30, 2017 provided by employers participating 
in the Safety Risk Pool to which the plan belongs and benefit provisions under the CalPERS contracts for those 
agencies. 
 
As set forth in Section 2 of this report, the pool actuaries have certified that, in their opinion, the valuation of 
the risk pool containing your Safety Plan has been performed in accordance with generally accepted actuarial 
principles consistent with standards of practice prescribed by the Actuarial Standards Board, and that the 
assumptions and methods are internally consistent and reasonable for the risk pool as of the date of this 
valuation and as prescribed by the CalPERS Board of Administration according to provisions set forth in the 
California Public Employees’ Retirement Law. 
 
Having relied upon the information set forth in Section 2 of this report and based on the census and benefit 
provision information for the plan, it is my opinion as the plan actuary that Unfunded Accrued Liability 
amortization bases as of June 30, 2017 and employer contribution as of July 1, 2019, have been properly and 
accurately determined in accordance with the principles and standards stated above. 
 
The undersigned is an actuary for CalPERS, a member of both the American Academy of Actuaries and Society 
of Actuaries and meets the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the 
actuarial opinion contained herein. 
 
 


 


 
FRITZIE ARCHULETA, ASA, MAAA 
Deputy Chief Actuary, CalPERS 
Plan Actuary 


 
 


  


 







 


 
 


 
 


Highlights and Executive Summary 
 
 


 Introduction 
 
 Purpose of Section 1 


 
 Required Employer Contributions 


 
 Plan’s Funded Status 


 
 Projected Employer Contributions 


 
 Changes Since the Prior Year’s Valuation 


 
 Subsequent Events







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 3  
 
 


 


Introduction 
 
This report presents the results of the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation of the Safety Plan of the Kensington 
Community Services District of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). This actuarial 
valuation sets the required employer contributions for Fiscal Year 2019-20. 
 
 


Purpose of Section 1 
 
This Section 1 report for the Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District of the California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) was prepared by the plan actuary in order to: 
 
 Set forth the assets and accrued liabilities of this plan as of June 30, 2017; 
 Determine the minimum required employer contribution for this plan for the fiscal year July 1, 2019 


through June 30, 2020; and 
 Provide actuarial information as of June 30, 2017 to the CalPERS Board of Administration and other 


interested parties. 
 


The pension funding information presented in this report should not be used in financial reports subject to 
GASB Statement No. 68 for a Cost Sharing Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan. A separate accounting 
valuation report for such purposes is available from CalPERS and details for ordering are available on our 
website. 
 
The measurements shown in this actuarial valuation may not be applicable for other purposes. The employer 
should contact their actuary before disseminating any portion of this report for any reason that is not explicitly 
described above. 
 
Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements presented in this 
report due to such factors as the following: plan experience differing from that anticipated by the economic or 
demographic assumptions; changes in economic or demographic assumptions; changes in actuarial policies; 
and changes in plan provisions or applicable law. 
 
California Actuarial Advisory Panel Recommendations 
 
This report includes all the basic disclosure elements as described in the Model Disclosure Elements for 
Actuarial Valuation Reports recommended in 2011 by the California Actuarial Advisory Panel (CAAP), with the 
exception of including the original base amounts of the various components of the unfunded liability in the 
Schedule of Amortization Bases shown on page 9. 
 
Additionally, this report includes the following “Enhanced Risk Disclosures” also recommended by the CAAP in 
the Model Disclosure Elements document: 
 


 A “Deterministic Stress Test,” projecting future results under different investment income scenarios 
 A “Sensitivity Analysis,” showing the impact on current valuation results using alternative discount 


rates of 6.0 percent, 7.0 percent and 8.0 percent. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 4  
 
 


 


Required Employer Contributions 
 


    Fiscal Year 
Required Employer Contributions    2019-20 


Employer Normal Cost Rate    21.927% 
  Plus, Either     
1) Monthly Employer Dollar UAL Payment   $ 20,870.47 
   Or     
2) Annual Lump Sum Prepayment Option   $ 241,833 


The total minimum required employer contribution is the sum of the Plan’s Employer Normal Cost Rate 
(expressed as a percentage of payroll) plus the Employer Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) Contribution 
Amount (billed monthly in dollars). 
 
Only the UAL portion of the employer contribution can be prepaid (which must be received in full no 
later than July 31). Plan Normal Cost contributions will be made as part of the payroll reporting process. 
If there is contractual cost sharing or other change, this amount will change.  
 
In accordance with Sections 20537 and 20572 of the Public Employees’ Retirement Law, if a contracting 
agency fails to remit the required contributions when due, interest and penalties may apply. 


 
 Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 
  2018-19  2019-20 
Development of Normal Cost as a Percentage of Payroll1     


Base Total Normal Cost for Formula  28.405%  29.696% 
Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits2     
   a) FAC 1  1.140%  1.220% 
Phase out of Normal Cost Difference3  0.000%  0.000% 
Plan’s Total Normal Cost  29.545%  30.916% 
Formula's Expected Employee Contribution Rate  8.989%  8.989% 
Employer Normal Cost Rate  20.556%  21.927% 


     
Projected Payroll for the Contribution Fiscal Year $ 987,293 $ 873,647 


     
Estimated Employer Contributions Based on Projected Payroll   


Plan’s Estimated Employer Normal Cost $ 202,948 $ 191,565 
Plan’s Payment on Amortization Bases4  202,139  250,446 


% of Projected Payroll (illustrative only)  20.474%  28.667% 
     
Estimated Total Employer Contribution $ 405,087 $ 442,011 


% of Projected Payroll (illustrative only)  41.030%  50.594% 
 


1 The results shown for Fiscal Year 2018-19 reflect the prior year valuation and may not take into account any lump sum 
payment, side fund payoff, or rate adjustment made after June 30, 2017. 


2 Section 2 of this report contains a list of Class 1 benefits and corresponding surcharges for each benefit. 
3 The normal cost difference is phased out over a five-year period. The phase out of normal cost difference is 100 percent 


for the first year of pooling, and is incrementally reduced by 20 percent of the original normal cost difference for each 
subsequent year.  This is non-zero only for plans that joined a pool within the past 5 years.  Most plans joined a pool 
June 30, 2003, when risk pooling was implemented. 


4 See page 9 for a breakdown of the Amortization Bases. 


Estimated Total Employer Contribution $ 405,087 $ 442,011


873,647


Annual Lump Sum Prepayment Option $ 241,833


Employer Normal Cost Rate 21.927%1


2


3


4







Summary of Comments on Kensington Community 
Services District
Page: 10


Number: 1 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 11:18:04 AM 
This is the normal cost and is always based only on a % of what we pay per employee. It is based on realtime actual payroll data and 
changes is payroll changes. 


Number: 2 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 11:16:57 AM 
This is the discounted lump sum that we pay annually in July each year. This amount is fixed and does not change. 


Number: 3 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 11:09:29 AM 
This projected payroll is based on a growth assumption of 2.875% per year for 3 years.  
The $873,647 is based on 2017-18 actual payroll data. Refer to page 12. 


Number: 4 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 11:03:08 AM 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 5  
 
 


 


Plan’s Funded Status 
 


June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017 
1. Present Value of Projected Benefits (PVB) $ 15,356,514 $ 15,746,857 
2. Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability (AL)  12,838,972  13,518,872 
3. Plan’s Market Value of Assets (MVA)  9,017,648  9,818,967 
4. Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) [(2) - (3)]  3,821,324  3,699,905 
5. Funded Ratio [(3) / (2)]  70.2%  72.6% 


 
This measure of funded status is an assessment of the need for future employer contributions based on the 
selected actuarial cost method used to fund the plan. The UAL is the present value of future employer 
contributions for service that has already been earned and is in addition to future normal cost contributions for 
active members. For a measure of funded status that is appropriate for assessing the sufficiency of plan assets 
to cover estimated termination liabilities, please see “Hypothetical Termination Liability” in the “Risk Analysis” 
section. 
 
 


Projected Employer Contributions 
 
The table below shows projected employer contributions (before cost sharing) for the next six fiscal years. 
Projected results reflect the adopted changes to the discount rate described in Appendix A, “Statement of 
Actuarial Data, Methods and Assumptions” of the Section 2 report. The projections also assume that all 
actuarial assumptions will be realized and that no further changes to assumptions, contributions, benefits, or 
funding will occur during the projection period. 
 


 Required 
Contribution 


Projected Future Employer Contributions 
(Assumes 7.25% Return for Fiscal Year 2017-18) 


Fiscal Year 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 


Normal Cost % 21.927% 23.3% 23.3% 23.3% 23.3% 23.3% 
UAL Payment $250,446 $286,000 $326,000 $360,000 $380,000 $400,000 


 
Changes in the UAL due to actuarial gains or losses as well as changes in actuarial assumptions or methods 
are amortized using a 5-year ramp up. For more information, please see “Amortization of the Unfunded 
Actuarial Accrued Liability” under “Actuarial Methods” in Appendix A of Section 2. This method phases in the 
impact of unanticipated changes in UAL over a 5-year period and attempts to minimize employer cost volatility 
from year to year. As a result of this methodology, dramatic changes in the required employer contributions in 
any one year are less likely. However, required contributions can change gradually and significantly over the 
next five years. In years where there is a large increase in UAL the relatively small amortization payments 
during the ramp up period could result in a funded ratio that is projected to decrease initially while the 
contribution impact of the increase in the UAL is phased in. 
 
Due to the adopted changes in the discount rate for next year’s valuation in combination with the 5-year 
phase-in ramp, the increases in the required contributions are expected to continue for six years from Fiscal 
Year 2019-20 through Fiscal Year 2024-25. 
 
For projected contributions under alternate investment return scenarios, please see the “Analysis of Future 
Investment Return Scenarios” in the “Risk Analysis” section. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 6  
 
 


 


Changes since the Prior Year’s Valuation 
 
Benefits 
 
None. This valuation generally reflects plan changes by amendments effective before the date of the report. 
Please refer to the “Plan’s Major Benefit Options” and Appendix B of Section 2 for a summary of the plan 
provisions used in this valuation.  
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 
At its December 2016 meeting, the CalPERS Board of Administration lowered the discount rate from 7.50 
percent to 7.00 percent using a three-year phase-in beginning with the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuations. 
The minimum employer contributions for Fiscal Year 2019-20 determined in this valuation were calculated 
using a discount rate of 7.25 percent. The projected employer contributions on page 5 are calculated 
assuming that the discount rate will be lowered to 7.00 percent next year as adopted by the Board. The 
decision to reduce the discount rate was primarily based on reduced capital market assumptions provided by 
external investment consultants and CalPERS investment staff. The specific decision adopted by the Board 
reflected recommendations from CalPERS staff and additional input from employer and employee stakeholder 
groups. Based on the investment allocation adopted by the Board and capital market assumptions, the 
reduced discount rate assumption provides a more realistic assumption for the long-term investment return of 
the fund.  
 
On December 19, 2017, the CalPERS Board of Administration adopted new actuarial assumptions based on the 
recommendations in the December 2017 CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions. This 
study reviewed the retirement rates, termination rates, mortality rates, rates of salary increases and inflation 
assumption for Public Agencies. These new assumptions are incorporated in this actuarial valuation and will 
impact the required contribution for FY 2019-20. In addition, the Board adopted a new asset portfolio as part 
of its Asset Liability Management. The new asset mix supports a 7.00 percent discount rate. The reduction of 
the inflation assumption will be implemented in two steps in conjunction with the decreases in the discount 
rate. For the June 30, 2017 valuation an inflation rate of 2.625 percent will be used and a rate of 2.50 percent 
in the following valuation. 
 
Notwithstanding the Board’s decision to phase into a 7.0 percent discount rate, subsequent analysis of the 
expected investment return of CalPERS assets or changes to the investment allocation may result in a change 
to this three-year discount rate schedule. 
 


Subsequent Events 
 
The CalPERS Board of Administration has adopted a new amortization policy effective with the June 30, 2019 
actuarial valuation. The new policy shortens the period over which actuarial gains and losses are amortized 
from 30 years to 20 years with the payments computed using a level dollar amount. In addition, the new 
policy removes the 5-year ramp-up and ramp-down on UAL bases attributable to assumption changes and 
non-investment gains/losses. The new policy removes the 5-year ramp-down on investment gains/losses. 
These changes will apply only to new UAL bases established on or after June 30, 2019. 
 
For inactive employers the new amortization policy imposes a maximum amortization period of 15 years for all 
unfunded accrued liabilities effective June 30, 2017. Furthermore, the plan actuary has the ability to shorten 
the amortization period on any valuation date based on the life expectancy of plan members and projected 
cash flow needs to the plan. The impact of this has been reflected in the current valuation results. 
 
The contribution requirements determined in this actuarial valuation report are based on demographic and 
financial information as of June 30, 2017. Changes in the value of assets subsequent to that date are not 
reflected. Investment returns below the assumed rate of return will increase the retired contribution, while 
investment returns above the assumed rate of return will decrease the retired contribution. 
 
This actuarial valuation report reflects statutory changes, regulatory changes and CalPERS Board actions 
through January 2018. Any subsequent changes or actions are not reflected. 







 


 
 
 


 
 


Assets and Liabilities 
 
 


 Breakdown of Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability 
 
 Allocation of Plan’s Share of Pool’s Experience/Assumption Change 


 
 Development of Plan’s Share of Pool’s MVA 


 
 Schedule of Plan’s Amortization Bases 


 
 Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 


 
 Employer Contribution History 


 
 Funding History







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 8 
 
 


 


Breakdown of Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability 
 


 Active Members $ 2,945,024 
 Transferred Members   802,651 
 Terminated Members  60,844 
 Members and Beneficiaries Receiving Payments  9,710,353 
 Total $ 13,518,872 


 
 


Allocation of Plan’s Share of Pool’s 
Experience/Assumption Change 
 
It is the policy of CalPERS to ensure equity within the risk pools by allocating the pool’s experience 
gains/losses and assumption changes in a manner that treats each employer equitably and maintains benefit 
security for the members of the System while minimizing substantial variations in employer contributions. The 
Pool’s experience gains/losses and impact of assumption/method changes is allocated to the plan as follows: 
 
1. Plan’s Accrued Liability $ 13,518,872 
2. Projected UAL balance at 6/30/17   3,772,351 
3. Pool’s Accrued Liability1 $ 20,966,498,823 
4. Sum of Pool’s Individual Plan UAL Balances at 6/30/171  5,939,788,240 
5. Pool’s 2016/17 Investment & Asset (Gain)/Loss  (513,476,842) 
6. Pool’s 2016/17 Other (Gain)/Loss  13,232,897 
7. Plan’s Share of Pool’s Asset (Gain)/Loss [(1) - (2)] / [(3) - (4)] * (5)  (333,048) 
8. Plan’s Share of Pool’s Other (Gain)/Loss [(1)] / [(3)] * (6)  8,532 
9. Plan’s New (Gain)/Loss as of 6/30/2017 [(7) + (8)] $ (324,515) 
10. Increase in Pool’s Accrued Liability due to Change in Assumptions1  390,935,533 
11. Plan’s Share of Pool’s Change in Assumptions [(1)] / [(3)] * (10) $ 252,069 


 
1 Does not include plans that transferred to Pool on the valuation date. 


 
 


Development of the Plan’s Share of Pool’s Market 
Value of Assets 
 
12.  Plan’s UAL [(2) + (9) + (11)] $ 3,699,905 
13. Plan’s Share of Pool’s MVA [(1) - (12)] $ 9,818,967 


 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool                    Page 9 
 
 


 


Schedule of Plan’s Amortization Bases 
 
There is a two-year lag between the valuation date and the start of the contribution fiscal year. 
 
 The assets, liabilities, and funded status of the plan are measured as of the valuation date: June 30, 2017. 
 The employer contribution determined by the valuation is for the fiscal year beginning two years after the valuation date: Fiscal Year 2019-20. 


 
This two-year lag is necessary due to the amount of time needed to extract and test the membership and financial data, and the need to provide public agencies 
with their employer contribution well in advance of the start of the fiscal year. 
 
The Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) is used to determine the employer contribution and therefore must be rolled forward two years from the valuation date to the 
first day of the fiscal year for which the contribution is being determined. The UAL is rolled forward each year by subtracting the payment on the UAL for the fiscal 
year and adjusting for interest. Additional discretionary payments are reflected in the Expected Payments column in the fiscal year they were made by the agency. 
 


        Amounts for Fiscal 2019-20 


Reason for Base 
Date 


Established 


Ramp 
Up/Down 
2019-20 


Amortization 
Period 


Balance 
6/30/17 


Payment 
2017-18 


Balance 
6/30/18 


Payment 
2018-19 


Balance 
6/30/19 


Scheduled 
Payment  


for 2019-20 
SIDE FUND 2013 or Prior No Ramp 0 $(66) $0 $(71) $(73) $0 $0 
SHARE OF PRE-2013 POOL UAL 06/30/13 No Ramp 18 $1,233,157 $93,223 $1,226,018 $94,864 $1,216,662 $97,442 
ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/13 100% 26 $1,449,939 $58,548 $1,494,426 $79,240 $1,520,710 $101,760 
NON-ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/13 100% 26 $(17,112) $(691) $(17,637) $(935) $(17,947) $(1,201) 
ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/14 80% 27 $(999,096) $(27,330) $(1,043,227) $(41,587) $(1,075,793) $(56,970) 
NON-ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/14 80% 27 $12,821 $351 $13,387 $534 $13,805 $731 
ASSUMPTION CHANGE 06/30/14 80% 17 $702,641 $26,158 $726,493 $39,968 $737,772 $54,740 
ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/15 60% 28 $596,762 $8,403 $631,325 $17,035 $659,454 $26,256 
NON-ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/15 60% 28 $(2,241) $(32) $(2,370) $(64) $(2,476) $(99) 
ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/16 40% 29 $693,840 $0 $744,143 $10,326 $787,400 $21,222 
NON-ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/16 40% 29 $(116,853) $0 $(125,325) $(1,739) $(132,610) $(3,574) 
ASSUMPTION CHANGE 06/30/16 40% 19 $218,559 $(7,541) $242,214 $4,571 $255,041 $9,392 
ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/17 20% 30 $(333,048) $0 $(357,194) $0 $(383,090) $(5,310) 
NON-ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/17 20% 30 $8,532 $0 $9,151 $0 $9,814 $136 
ASSUMPTION CHANGE 06/30/17 20% 20 $252,069 $(11,121) $281,861 $(11,440) $314,143 $5,920 
TOTAL    $3,699,904 $139,968 $3,823,194 $190,700 $3,902,885 $250,445 


 
The (gain)/loss bases are the plan’s allocated share of the risk pool’s (gain)/loss for the fiscal year as disclosed on the previous page. These (gain)/loss bases will be 
amortized according to Board policy over 30 years with a 5-year ramp-up. 
 
If the total Unfunded Liability is negative (i.e., plan has a surplus), the scheduled payment is $0, because the minimum required contribution under PEPRA must be 
at least equal to the normal cost. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool  Page 10 
 
 


 


Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 
 
The amortization schedule on the previous page shows the minimum contributions required according to 
CalPERS amortization policy. There has been considerable interest from many agencies in paying off these 
unfunded accrued liabilities sooner and the possible savings in doing so. As a result, we have provided 
alternate amortization schedules to help analyze the current amortization schedule and illustrate the 
advantages of accelerating unfunded liability payments.    
 
Shown on the following page are future year amortization payments based on: 1) the current amortization 
schedule reflecting the individual bases and remaining periods shown on the previous page, and 2) alternate 
“fresh start” amortization schedules using two sample periods that would both result in interest savings 
relative to the current amortization schedule. Note that the payments under each alternate scenario increase 
by 2.875 percent for each year into the future. The schedules do not attempt to reflect any experience 
after June 30, 2017 that may deviate from the actuarial assumptions. Therefore, future 
amortization payments displayed in the Current Amortization Schedule may not match projected 
amortization payments shown in connection with Projected Employer Contributions provided 
elsewhere in this report. 
 
The Current Amortization Schedule typically contains individual bases that are both positive and negative.  
Positive bases result from plan changes, assumption changes or plan experience that result in increases to 
unfunded liability. Negative bases result from plan changes, assumption changes or plan experience that result 
in decreases to unfunded liability. The combination of positive and negative bases within an amortization 
schedule can result in unusual or problematic circumstances in future years such as: 
 


 A positive total unfunded liability with a negative total payment,      
 A negative total unfunded liability with a positive total payment, or       
 Total payments that completely amortize the unfunded liability over a very short period of time 


 
In any year where one of the above scenarios occurs, the actuary will consider corrective action such as 
replacing the existing unfunded liability bases with a single “fresh start” base and amortizing it over a 
reasonable period. 
 
The Current Amortization Schedule on the following page may appear to show that, based on the current 
amortization bases, one of the above scenarios will occur at some point in the future. It is impossible to know 
today whether such a scenario will in fact arise since there will be additional bases added to the amortization 
schedule in each future year. Should such a scenario arise in any future year, the actuary will take appropriate 
action based on guidelines in the CalPERS amortization policy. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool      Page 11 
 
 


 


Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 
 


 
* This schedule does not reflect the impact of adopted discount rate changes that will become effective beyond June 30, 
2017. For Projected Employer Contributions, please see page 5.  


  Alternate Schedules 


 Current Amortization  
Schedule 20 Year Amortization 15 Year Amortization 


Date Balance Payment Balance Payment Balance Payment 
6/30/2019 3,902,884 250,446 3,902,884 291,698 3,902,884 354,893 
6/30/2020 3,926,478 280,906 3,883,756 300,084 3,818,311 365,096 
6/30/2021 3,920,237 313,308 3,854,557 308,712 3,717,039 375,593 
6/30/2022 3,879,987 337,848 3,814,306 317,587 3,597,555 386,391 
6/30/2023 3,811,406 348,397 3,761,945 326,718 3,458,225 397,500 
6/30/2024 3,726,928 358,413 3,696,332 336,111 3,297,290 408,928 
6/30/2025 3,625,952 368,717 3,616,234 345,774 3,112,851 420,684 
6/30/2026 3,506,984 379,318 3,520,322 355,715 2,902,866 432,779 
6/30/2027 3,368,413 390,223 3,407,161 365,942 2,665,131 445,221 
6/30/2028 3,208,501 401,442 3,275,205 376,463 2,397,275 458,021 
6/30/2029 3,025,377 412,984 3,122,787 387,286 2,096,743 471,190 
6/30/2030 2,817,025 424,857 2,948,110 398,420 1,760,785 484,736 
6/30/2031 2,581,270 437,072 2,749,237 409,875 1,386,442 498,672 
6/30/2032 2,315,774 429,855 2,524,084 421,659 970,526 513,009 
6/30/2033 2,038,502 421,863 2,270,404 433,782 509,608 527,758 
6/30/2034 1,749,406 405,872 1,985,777 446,253   
6/30/2035 1,455,910 379,295 1,667,599 459,083   
6/30/2036 1,168,660 350,855 1,313,067 472,281   
6/30/2037 890,037 180,957 919,162 485,859   
6/30/2038 767,163 167,968 482,638 499,828   
6/30/2039 648,832 162,362     
6/30/2040 527,728 167,029     
6/30/2041 393,010 134,311     
6/30/2042 282,409 126,557     
6/30/2043 171,819 101,031     
6/30/2044 79,647 56,010     
6/30/2045 27,417 19,128     
6/30/2046 9,595 9,937     
6/30/2047       
6/30/2048       
       
Totals  7,816,960  7,739,128  6,540,471 


Interest Paid 3,914,076  3,836,244  2,637,587 
Estimated Savings   77,833  1,276,490 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 12 
 
       
 
 


 


Employer Contribution History 
 
The table below provides a recent history of the required employer contributions for the plan, as determined by 
the annual actuarial valuation. It does not account for prepayments or benefit changes made during a fiscal 
year. 
 


 
Fiscal 
Year 


Employer 
Normal Cost 


Unfunded Liability 
Payment ($) 


2016 - 17 19.536% $229,208 
2017 - 18 19.723% $263,331 
2018 - 19 20.556% $202,139 
2019 - 20 21.927% $250,446 


 
 
 


Funding History 
 
The funding history below shows the plan’s actuarial accrued liability, share of the pool’s market value of 
assets, share of the pool’s unfunded liability, funded ratio, and annual covered payroll. 
 


 
 


Valuation 
Date 


 
 
 


Accrued 
Liability 


(AL)  


Share of Pool’s 
Market Value of 


Assets (MVA)  


Plan’s Share of 
Pool’s Unfunded 


Liability 


 
Funded 
Ratio 


 
 
 


Annual  
Covered 
Payroll 


06/30/2011 $ 10,054,247 $ 7,523,025 $ 2,531,222 74.8% $ 824,273 
06/30/2012  10,541,771  7,426,501  3,115,270 70.5%  813,883 
06/30/2013  10,843,346  8,086,814  2,756,532 74.6%  919,632 
06/30/2014  11,792,904  9,247,977  2,544,927 78.4%  963,888 
06/30/2015  12,506,997  9,447,142  3,059,855 75.5%  945,713 
06/30/2016  12,838,972  9,017,648  3,821,324 70.2%  903,513 
06/30/2017  13,518,872  9,818,967  3,699,905 72.6%  802,429 


 
06/30/2017 13,518,872 9,818,967 3,699,905 72.6% 802,429


2019 - 20 21.927% $250,4461


2







Page: 18
Number: 1 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 11:09:16 AM 
This is the unfunded payroll liability payment that we have the option to pay as a one time lump sum in July each year. We save around 
3.4% by paying this in advance. 


Number: 2 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 11:04:37 AM 







 


 


 
 


Risk Analysis 
 


 Analysis of Future Investment Return Scenarios 
 


 Analysis of Discount Rate Sensitivity 
 


 Volatility Ratios 
 


 Hypothetical Termination Liability







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 14 
 
 


 


Analysis of Future Investment Return Scenarios 
 
Analysis was performed to determine the effects of various future investment returns on required employer 
contributions. The projections below provide a range of results based on five investment return scenarios 
assumed to occur during the next four fiscal years (2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 and 2020-21). The projections 
also assume that all other actuarial assumptions will be realized and that no further changes to assumptions, 
contributions, benefits, or funding will occur. 
 
Each of the five investment return scenarios assumes a return of 7.25 percent for fiscal year 2017-18. For 
fiscal years 2018-19, 2019-20, and 2020-21 each scenario assumes an alternate fixed annual return. The fixed 
return assumptions for the five scenarios are 1.0 percent, 4.0 percent, 7.0 percent, 9.0 percent and 12.0 
percent. 
 
The alternate investment returns were chosen based on stochastic analysis of possible future investment 
returns over the four-year period ending June 30, 2021. Using the expected returns and volatility of the asset 
classes in which the funds are invested, we produced five thousand stochastic outcomes for this period based 
on the recently completed Asset Liability Management process. We then selected annual returns that 
approximate the 5th, 25th, 50th, 75th, and 95th percentiles for these outcomes. For example, of all the 4-year 
outcomes generated in the stochastic analysis, approximately 25 percent of them had an average annual 
return of 4.0 percent or less. 
 
Required contributions outside of this range are also possible. In particular, whereas it is unlikely that 
investment returns will average less than 1.0 percent or greater than 12.0 percent over this four-year period, 
the possibility of a single investment return less than 1.0 percent or greater than 12.0 percent in any given 
year is much greater. 
 


Assumed Annual Return From 
2018-19 through 2020-21 


Projected Employer Contributions 


2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
1.0%     
    Normal Cost 23.3% 23.3% 23.3% 23.3% 
    UAL Contribution $286,000 $336,000 $389,000 $440,000 
4.0%         
    Normal Cost 23.3% 23.3% 23.3% 23.3% 
    UAL Contribution $286,000 $331,000 $375,000 $410,000 
7.0%         
    Normal Cost 23.3% 23.3% 23.3% 23.3% 
    UAL Contribution $286,000 $326,000 $360,000 $380,000 
9.0%         
    Normal Cost 23.3% 23.7% 24.1% 24.5% 
    UAL Contribution $286,000 $323,000 $351,000 $364,000 
12.0%         
    Normal Cost 23.3% 23.7% 24.1% 24.5% 
    UAL Contribution $286,000 $318,000 $336,000 $332,000 


 
Given the temporary suspension of the Risk Mitigation Policy during the period over which the discount rate 
assumption is being phased down to 7.0 percent, the projections above were performed without reflection of 
any possible impact of this Policy for Fiscal Year 2020-21. In addition, the projections above do not reflect the 
recent changes to the new amortization policy effective with the June 30, 2019 valuation but the impact on 
the results above is expected to be minimal. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 15 
 
 


 


Analysis of Discount Rate Sensitivity 
 
Shown below are various valuation results as of June 30, 2017 assuming alternate discount rates. Results are 
shown using the current discount rate of 7.25 percent as well as alternate discount rates of 6.0 percent, 7.0 
percent, and 8.0 percent. The alternate rate of 7.0 percent was selected since the Board has adopted this rate 
as the final discount rate at the end of the three-year phase-in of the reduction in this assumption. The rates 
of 6.0 percent and 8.0 percent were selected since they illustrate the impact of a 1 percent increase or 
decrease to the 7.0 percent assumption. This analysis shows the potential plan impacts if the PERF were to 
realize investment returns of 6.0 percent, 7.0 percent, or 8.0 percent over the long-term. 
 
This type of analysis gives the reader a sense of the long-term risk to required contributions. For a measure of 
funded status that is appropriate for assessing the sufficiency of plan assets to cover estimated termination 
liabilities, please see “Hypothetical Termination Liability” at the end of this section. 
 


Sensitivity Analysis 


As of June 30, 2017 Plan’s Total 
Normal Cost 


Accrued 
Liability 


Unfunded 
Accrued Liability 


Funded 
Status 


7.25% (current discount rate) 30.916% $13,518,872 $3,699,905 72.6% 
6.0% 40.758% $15,671,171 $5,852,204 62.7% 
7.0% 32.243% $13,880,408 $4,061,441 70.7% 
8.0% 25.779% $12,400,495 $2,581,528 79.2% 
 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 16 
 
 


 


Volatility Ratios 
 
Actuarial calculations are based on a number of assumptions about long-term demographic and economic 
behavior. Unless these assumptions (terminations, deaths, disabilities, retirements, salary growth, and 
investment return) are exactly realized each year, there will be differences on a year-to-year basis. The year-
to-year differences between actual experience and the assumptions are called actuarial gains and losses and 
serve to lower or raise required employer contributions from one year to the next. Therefore, employer 
contributions will inevitably fluctuate, especially due to the ups and downs of investment returns. 
 
Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR) 
 
Plans that have higher asset-to-payroll ratios experience more volatile employer contributions (as a 
percentage of payroll) due to investment return. For example, a plan with an asset-to-payroll ratio of 8 may 
experience twice the contribution volatility due to investment return volatility, than a plan with an asset-to-
payroll ratio of 4. Shown below is the asset volatility ratio, a measure of the plan’s current contribution 
volatility. It should be noted that this ratio is a measure of the current situation. It increases over time but 
generally tends to stabilize as the plan matures. 
 
Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR) 
 
Plans that have higher liability-to-payroll ratios experience more volatile employer contributions (as a 
percentage of payroll) due to investment return and changes in liability. For example, a plan with a liability-to-
payroll ratio of 8 is expected to have twice the contribution volatility of a plan with a liability-to-payroll ratio of 
4. The liability volatility ratio is also shown in the table below. It should be noted that this ratio indicates a 
longer-term potential for contribution volatility. The asset volatility ratio, described above, will tend to move 
closer to the liability volatility ratio as the plan matures. Since the liability volatility ratio is a long-term 
measure, it is shown below at the current discount rate (7.25 percent) as well as the discount rate the Board 
has adopted to determine the contribution requirement in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation (7.00 
percent). 
 
 


Rate Volatility As of June 30, 2017 


1. Market Value of Assets $ 9,818,967 


2. Payroll 802,429 


3. Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR) [(1) / (2)] 12.2 


4. Accrued Liability $ 13,518,872 


5. Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR) [(4) / (2)] 16.8 


6. Accrued Liability (7.00% discount rate) 13,880,408 


7. Projected Liability Volatility Ratio [(6) / (2)] 17.3 


 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 17 
 
 


 


Hypothetical Termination Liability 
 
The hypothetical termination liability is an estimate of the financial position of the plan had the contract with 
CalPERS been terminated as of June 30, 2017. The plan liability on a termination basis is calculated differently 
compared to the plan’s ongoing funding liability. For the hypothetical termination liability calculation, both 
compensation and service are frozen as of the valuation date and no future pay increases or service accruals 
are assumed. This measure of funded status is not appropriate for assessing the need for future employer 
contributions in the case of an ongoing plan, that is, for an employer that continues to provide CalPERS 
retirement benefits to active employees. 
 
A more conservative investment policy and asset allocation strategy was adopted by the CalPERS Board for 
the Terminated Agency Pool. The Terminated Agency Pool has limited funding sources since no future 
employer contributions will be made. Therefore, expected benefit payments are secured by risk-free assets 
and benefit security for members is increased while funding risk is limited. However, this asset allocation has a 
lower expected rate of return than the PERF and consequently, a lower discount rate is assumed. The lower 
discount rate for the Terminated Agency Pool results in higher liabilities for terminated plans. 
 
The effective termination discount rate will depend on actual market rates of return for risk-free securities on 
the date of termination. As market discount rates are variable, the table below shows a range for the 
hypothetical termination liability based on the lowest and highest interest rates observed during an 
approximate 2-year period centered around the valuation date. 
 


 
 


Market 
Value of  


Assets (MVA) 


Hypothetical 
Termination 
   Liability1,2 


 @ 1.75% 


Funded  
Status 


Unfunded 
Termination 


Liability 
@ 1.75% 


Hypothetical 
Termination 


    Liability1,2 
 @ 3.00% 


Funded 
Status 


Unfunded 
Termination 


Liability 
@ 3.00% 


$9,818,967 $26,322,415 37.3% $16,503,448 $23,672,501 41.5% $13,853,534 
  
 
1 The hypothetical liabilities calculated above include a 5 percent mortality contingency load in accordance with Board policy. 


Other actuarial assumptions can be found in Appendix A. 
2 The current discount rate assumption used for termination valuations is a weighted average of the 10-year and 30-year 


U.S. Treasury yields where the weights are based on matching asset and liability durations as of the termination date. The 
discount rates used in the table are based on 20-year Treasury bonds, rounded to the nearest quarter percentage point, 
which is a good proxy for most plans. The 20-year Treasury yield was 2.61 percent on June 30, 2017, and was 2.83 
percent on January 31, 2018. 


 
In order to terminate the plan, you must first contact our Retirement Services Contract Unit to initiate a 
Resolution of Intent to terminate. The completed Resolution will allow the plan actuary to give you a 
preliminary termination valuation with a more up-to-date estimate of the plan liabilities. CalPERS advises you 
to consult with the plan actuary before beginning this process. 


$26,322,415 37.3% $16,503,448 $23,672,501 41.5% $13,853,5341







Page: 23
Number: 1 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 11:14:35 AM 
The CalPERS Classic termination is based on bond rates. It is hypothetical and would be between $13.8 million and $26.2 million. This 
would only be determined at the time of termination.  







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 18 
 
 


 


Participant Data 
 
The table below shows a summary of your plan’s member data upon which this valuation is based:   
 


 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017 


Reported Payroll $ 903,513 $ 802,429 
Projected Payroll for Contribution Purposes $ 987,293 $ 873,647 
     
Number of Members     
     Active   9  8 
     Transferred  6  6 
     Separated  2  2 
     Retired  28  29 


 


 


List of Class 1 Benefit Provisions 
This plan has the additional Class 1 Benefit Provisions: 
 


 One Year Final Compensation (FAC 1) 


Projected Payroll for Contribution Purposes $ 987,293 $ 873,647


Number of Members
Active 9 8
Transferred 6 6
Separated 2 2
Retired 28 29


1


2







Page: 24
Number: 1 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 11:12:04 AM 
The $873,647 for 2019-2020 is coming from the June 30, 2017 actual payroll data. 


Number: 2 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 11:12:36 AM 
This is the number of actual members that were classic that we were paying for as of June 30, 2017. 







  


 


 


Plan’s Major Benefit Options







  


 


 
SECTION 1 – Plan Specific Information for the Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 


Plan’s Major Benefit Options 
Shown below is a summary of the major optional benefits for which your agency has contracted. A description of principal standard and optional plan provisions 
is in Appendix B within Section 2 of this report. 


 
 Contract package 


{sum_of_major_ben_1} Active 
Police 


Receiving 
Police      


Benefit Provision        
        
Benefit Formula 3.0% @ 50       


Social Security Coverage No       
Full/Modified Full       


        
Employee Contribution Rate 9.00%       
        
Final Average Compensation Period One Year       
        
Sick Leave Credit Yes       
        
Non-Industrial Disability Standard       
        
Industrial Disability Yes       
        
Pre-Retirement Death Benefits        


Optional Settlement 2 Yes       
1959 Survivor Benefit Level level 4       
Special  Yes       
Alternate (firefighters) No No      


        
Post-Retirement Death Benefits        


Lump Sum $500 $500      
Survivor Allowance (PRSA) No No      


        
COLA 2% 2%      
        
        


        
        


        


        
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool   Page 20 
    







  


 


 


Section 2 


 


C A L I F O R N I A  P U B L I C  E M P L O Y E E S ’  R E T I R E M E N T  S Y S T E M  


 
 
 


Section 2 may be found on the CalPERS website 
(www.calpers.ca.gov) in the Forms and  


Publications section 








 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
Actuarial Office 
400 Q Street, Sacramento, CA 95811 |Phone: (916) 795-3000 | Fax: (916) 795-2744 
888 CalPERS (or 888-225-7377) | TTY: (877) 249-7442 | www.calpers.ca.gov  
 


 


July 2019 
 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
(CalPERS ID: 7381511111) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2018 


Dear Employer, 


Attached to this letter, you will find the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation report of your CalPERS pension plan. 
Provided in this report is the determination of the minimum required employer contributions for Fiscal 
Year 2020-21.  In addition, the report contains important information regarding the current financial status of the 
plan as well as projections and risk measures to aid in planning for the future. 


Because this plan is in a risk pool, the following valuation report has been separated into two sections: 


 Section 1 contains specific information for the plan including the development of the current and projected 
employer contributions, and 


 Section 2 contains the Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation appropriate to the plan as of June 30, 2018. 


Section 2 can be found on the CalPERS website (www.calpers.ca.gov). From the home page, go to “Forms & 
Publications” and select “View All”. In the search box, enter “Risk Pool” and from the results list download the 
Miscellaneous or Safety Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation Report as appropriate. 


Your June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation report contains important actuarial information about your pension plan at 
CalPERS. Your assigned CalPERS staff actuary, whose signature appears in the Actuarial Certification section on page 
1, is available to discuss the report with you after August 1, 2019. 


Actuarial valuations are based on assumptions regarding future plan experience including investment return and payroll 
growth, eligibility for the types of benefits provided, and longevity among retirees. The CalPERS Board of Administration 
adopts these assumptions after considering the advice of CalPERS actuarial and investment teams and other 
professionals. Each actuarial valuation reflects all prior differences between actual and assumed experience and adjusts 
the contribution rates as needed. This valuation is based on an investment return assumption of 7.0% which was 
adopted by the board in December 2016. Other assumptions used in this report are those recommended in the CalPERS 
Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions report from December 2017. 


Required Contribution 


The exhibit below displays the minimum employer contributions, before any cost sharing, for Fiscal Year 2020-21 along 
with estimates of the required contributions for Fiscal Year 2021-22. Member contributions other than cost sharing 
(whether paid by the employer or the employee) are in addition to the results shown below. The employer 
contributions in this report do not reflect any cost sharing arrangements you may have with your 
employees. 


Fiscal Year Employer Normal 
Cost Rate 


Employer Amortization of 
Unfunded Accrued Liability 


2020-21 23.674% $287,011 
   


Projected Results   
2021-22 23.7% $329,000 


  
  







Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
(CalPERS ID: 7381511111) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2018 
Page 1 
 
 


 


The actual investment return for Fiscal Year 2018-19 was not known at the time this report was prepared. The 
projections above assume the investment return for that year would be 7.00 percent. If the actual investment 
return for Fiscal Year 2018-19 differs from 7.00 percent, the actual contribution requirements for the 
projected years will differ from those shown above.  For additional details regarding the assumptions and 
methods used for these projections please refer to the “Projected Employer Contributions” in the “Highlights and 
Executive Summary” section. This section also contains projected required contributions through fiscal year 2025-26. 


Changes from Previous Year’s Valuation 


CalPERS continues to strive to provide comprehensive risk assessments regarding plan funding and sustainability 
consistent with the Board of Administration’s pension and investment beliefs. Your report this year includes new metrics 
on plan maturity in recognition of the fact that most pension plans at CalPERS are maturing as anticipated. As plans 
mature, they become more sensitive to risks than plans that are less mature. The “Risk Analysis” section of your report 
will help you understand how your plan is affected by investment return volatility and other economic assumptions. 
We have included plan sensitivity analysis with respect to longevity and inflation to further that discussion and 
encourage you to review our most recent Annual Review of Funding Levels and Risks report on our website that takes 
a holistic view of the system. 


Upcoming Change for June 30, 2019 Valuations 


The CalPERS Board of Administration has adopted a new amortization policy effective with the June 30, 2019 actuarial 
valuation. The new policy shortens the period over which actuarial gains and losses are amortized from 30 years to 20 
years with the payments computed using a level dollar amount. In addition, the new policy removes the 5-year ramp-
up and ramp-down on Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) bases attributable to assumption changes and non-investment 
gains/losses. The new policy removes the 5-year ramp-down on investment gains/losses. These changes will apply 
only to new UAL bases established on or after June 30, 2019. 


Besides the above noted changes, there may also be changes specific to the plan such as contract amendments and 
funding changes. 


Further descriptions of general changes are included in the “Highlights and Executive Summary” section and in Appendix 
A, “Statement of Actuarial Data, Methods and Assumptions” of the Section 2 report.  


We understand that you might have a number of questions about these results. While we are very interested in 
discussing these results with your agency, in the interest of allowing us to give every public agency their results, we 
ask that you wait until after August 1 2019 to contact us with actuarial questions. 


If you have other questions, please call our customer contact center at (888) CalPERS or (888-225-7377). 
 
 
Sincerely, 


 
SCOTT TERANDO 
Chief Actuary







 
 
CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 


 
 
 


 
 
 


Actuarial Valuation 
as of June 30, 2018 


 
for the 


 Safety Plan 
of the 


Kensington Community Services District 
(CalPERS ID: 7381511111) 


 
Required Contributions 


for Fiscal Year 
July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021







 
 
CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 


Table of Contents 
 


Section 1 – Plan Specific Information 
 
Section 2 – Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation Information







 
 
CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 


 


Section 1 


C A L I F O R N I A  P U B L I C  E M P L O Y E E S ’  R E T I R E M E N T  S Y S T E M  


 
 
 


Plan Specific Information  
for the 


Safety Plan 
 of the 


Kensington Community Services District 
 


(CalPERS ID: 7381511111) 
(Valuation Rate Plan ID: 921)







 
 
CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 6 
 
 
 
 


Table of Contents 
 
 
 
Actuarial Certification            1 
 
Highlights and Executive Summary 


Introduction 3 
Purpose of Section 1 3 
Required Employer Contributions 4 
Plan’s Funded Status 5 
Projected Employer Contributions 5 
Changes Since the Prior Year’s Valuation 6 
Subsequent Events 6 


 
 
Assets and Liabilities 


Breakdown of Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability 8 
Allocation of Plan’s Share of Pool’s Experience/Assumption Change 8 
Development of Plan’s Share of Pool’s Market Value of Assets 8 
Schedule of Plan’s Amortization Bases 9 
Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 11 
Employer Contribution History 13 
Funding History 13 


 
 
Risk Analysis 


Future Investment Return Scenarios 15 
Discount Rate Sensitivity 16 
Mortality Rate Sensitivity 16 
Inflation Rate Sensitivity 17 
Maturity Measures 17 
Hypothetical Termination Liability 19 


 
 
Participant Data          20 
 
List of Class 1 Benefit Provisions        20 
 
Plan’s Major Benefit Options         21 
 
         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 1 
 
 


 


Actuarial Certification 
 
Section 1 of this report is based on the member and financial data contained in our records as of June 30, 2018 
which was provided by your agency and the benefit provisions under your contract with CalPERS. Section 2 of 
this report is based on the member and financial data as of June 30, 2018 provided by employers participating 
in the Safety Risk Pool to which the plan belongs and benefit provisions under the CalPERS contracts for those 
agencies. 


As set forth in Section 2 of this report, the pool actuaries have certified that, in their opinion, the valuation of the 
risk pool containing your Safety Plan has been performed in accordance with generally accepted actuarial 
principles consistent with standards of practice prescribed by the Actuarial Standards Board, and that the 
assumptions and methods are internally consistent and reasonable for the risk pool as of the date of this valuation 
and as prescribed by the CalPERS Board of Administration according to provisions set forth in the California Public 
Employees’ Retirement Law. 


Having relied upon the information set forth in Section 2 of this report and based on the census and benefit 
provision information for the plan, it is my opinion as the plan actuary that Unfunded Accrued Liability amortization 
bases as of June 30, 2018 and employer contribution as of July 1, 2020, have been properly and accurately 
determined in accordance with the principles and standards stated above. 


The undersigned is an actuary for CalPERS, a member of both the American Academy of Actuaries and Society 
of Actuaries and meets the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial 
opinion contained herein. 


 
 


 


 
TONY CUNY, ASA, MAAA 
Associate Pension Actuary, CalPERS 
Plan Actuary 


 
 


  


 







 


 
 


 
 


Highlights and Executive Summary 
 
 


 Introduction 
 
 Purpose of Section 1 


 
 Required Employer Contributions 


 
 Plan’s Funded Status 


 
 Projected Employer Contributions 


 
 Changes Since the Prior Year’s Valuation 


 
 Subsequent Events







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 3  
 
 


 


Introduction 
This report presents the results of the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation of the Safety Plan of the Kensington 
Community Services District of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). This actuarial 
valuation sets the required employer contributions for Fiscal Year 2020-21. 


Purpose of Section 1 
This Section 1 report for the Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District of the California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) was prepared by the plan actuary in order to: 


 Set forth the assets and accrued liabilities of this plan as of June 30, 2018; 
 Determine the minimum required employer contribution for this plan for the fiscal year July 1, 2020 


through June 30, 2021; and 
 Provide actuarial information as of June 30, 2018 to the CalPERS Board of Administration and other 


interested parties. 


The pension funding information presented in this report should not be used in financial reports subject to GASB 
Statement No. 68 for a Cost Sharing Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan. A separate accounting valuation 
report for such purposes is available from CalPERS and details for ordering are available on our website. 


The measurements shown in this actuarial valuation may not be applicable for other purposes. The employer 
should contact their actuary before disseminating any portion of this report for any reason that is not explicitly 
described above. 


Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements presented in this report 
due to such factors as the following: plan experience differing from that anticipated by the economic or 
demographic assumptions; changes in economic or demographic assumptions; changes in actuarial policies; and 
changes in plan provisions or applicable law. 


California Actuarial Advisory Panel Recommendations 


This report includes all the basic disclosure elements as described in the Model Disclosure Elements for Actuarial 
Valuation Reports recommended in 2011 by the California Actuarial Advisory Panel (CAAP), with the exception 
of including the original base amounts of the various components of the unfunded liability in the Schedule of 
Amortization Bases shown on page 10. 


Additionally, this report includes the following “Enhanced Risk Disclosures” also recommended by the CAAP in 
the Model Disclosure Elements document and consistent with the recommendations of Actuarial Standard of 
Practice No. 51: 


 A “Scenario Test,” projecting future results under different investment income scenarios. 
 A “Sensitivity Analysis,” showing the impact on current valuation results using alternative discount rates 


of 6.0 percent and 8.0 percent. 
 A “Sensitivity Analysis,” showing the impact on current valuation results using a 1.0 percent plus or 


minus change in the inflation rate.   
 A “Sensitivity Analysis,” showing the impact on current valuation results assuming post-retirement rates 


of mortality are 10 percent lower or 10 percent higher than our current mortality assumptions adopted 
in 2017. This type of analysis highlights the impact on the plan of improving or worsening mortality 
over the long-term. 


 Plan maturity measures which indicate how sensitive a plan may be to the risks noted above. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 4  
 
 


 


Required Employer Contributions 
    Fiscal Year 


Required Employer Contributions    2020-21 
Employer Normal Cost Rate    23.674% 


  Plus, Either     
1) Monthly Employer Dollar UAL Payment   $ 23,917.54 
   Or     
2) Annual UAL Prepayment Option*   $ 277,464 


The total minimum required employer contribution is the sum of the Plan’s Employer Normal Cost Rate 
(expressed as a percentage of payroll) plus the Employer Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) Contribution 
Amount (billed monthly in dollars). 
 
* Only the UAL portion of the employer contribution can be prepaid (which must be received in full no 
later than July 31). Any prepayment totaling over $5 million requires a 72-hour notice email to 
FCSD_public_agency_wires@calpers.ca.gov. Plan Normal Cost contributions will be made as part of the 
payroll reporting process. If there is contractual cost sharing or other change, this amount will change.  
 
In accordance with Sections 20537 and 20572 of the Public Employees’ Retirement Law, if a contracting 
agency fails to remit the required contributions when due, interest and penalties may apply. 


 
 Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 
  2019-20  2020-21 
Development of Normal Cost as a Percentage of Payroll1     


Base Total Normal Cost for Formula  29.696%  31.427% 
Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits2     
   a) FAC 1  1.220%  1.237% 
Phase out of Normal Cost Difference3  0.000%  0.000% 
Plan’s Total Normal Cost  30.916%  32.664% 
Formula's Expected Employee Contribution Rate   8.989%  8.990% 
Employer Normal Cost Rate  21.927%  23.674% 


     
Projected Payroll for the Contribution Fiscal Year $ 873,647 $ 568,515 


     
Estimated Employer Contributions Based on Projected Payroll   


Plan’s Estimated Employer Normal Cost $ 191,565 $ 134,590 
Plan’s Payment on Amortization Bases4  250,446  287,011 


% of Projected Payroll (illustrative only)  28.667%  50.484% 
     
Estimated Total Employer Contribution $ 442,011 $ 421,601 


% of Projected Payroll (illustrative only)  50.594%  74.158% 
 


1 The results shown for Fiscal Year 2019-20 reflect the prior year valuation and may not take into account any lump sum 
payment, side fund payoff, or rate adjustment made after April 30, 2018. 


2 Section 2 of this report contains a list of Class 1 benefits and corresponding surcharges for each benefit. 
3 The normal cost difference is phased out over a five-year period. The phase out of normal cost difference is 100 percent 


for the first year of pooling, and is incrementally reduced by 20 percent of the original normal cost difference for each 
subsequent year.  This is non-zero only for plans that joined a pool within the past 5 years.  Most plans joined a pool June 
30, 2003, when risk pooling was implemented. 


4 See page 10 for a breakdown of the Amortization Bases. 
    


2) Annual UAL Prepayment Option* $ 277,464


287,011


1


2







Summary of Comments on ABCDEF
Page: 10


Number: 1 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 11:45:46 AM 
This is the discounted lump sum that we pay annually in July each year. This amount is fixed and does not change. 


Number: 2 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 11:45:53 AM 
Discounted to $277,464 as long as it is paid in full by 7.31.2020.







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 5  
 
 


 


Plan’s Funded Status 
June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018 


1. Present Value of Projected Benefits (PVB) $ 15,746,857 $ 16,272,674 
2. Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability (AL)  13,518,872  14,874,556 
3. Plan’s Market Value of Assets (MVA)  9,818,967  10,604,177 
4. Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) [(2) - (3)]  3,699,905  4,270,379 
5. Funded Ratio [(3) / (2)]  72.6%  71.3% 


This measure of funded status is an assessment of the need for future employer contributions based on the 
selected actuarial cost method used to fund the plan. The UAL is the present value of future employer 
contributions for service that has already been earned and is in addition to future normal cost contributions for 
active members. For a measure of funded status that is appropriate for assessing the sufficiency of plan assets 
to cover estimated termination liabilities, please see “Hypothetical Termination Liability” in the “Risk Analysis” 
section. 


Projected Employer Contributions 
The table below shows projected employer contributions (before cost sharing) for the next six fiscal years. 
Projected results reflect the adopted changes to the discount rate described in Appendix A, “Statement of 
Actuarial Data, Methods and Assumptions” of the Section 2 report. The projections also assume that all actuarial 
assumptions will be realized and that no further changes to assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will 
occur during the projection period. 


 Required 
Contribution 


Projected Future Employer Contributions 
(Assumes 7.00% Return for Fiscal Year 2018-19) 


Fiscal Year 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 


Normal Cost % 23.674% 23.7% 23.7% 23.7% 23.7% 23.7% 
UAL Payment $287,011 $329,000 $364,000 $386,000 $408,000 $419,000 


Changes in the UAL due to actuarial gains or losses as well as changes in actuarial assumptions or methods are 
amortized using a 5-year ramp up. For more information, please see “Amortization of the Unfunded Actuarial 
Accrued Liability” under “Actuarial Methods” in Appendix A of Section 2. This method phases in the impact of 
unanticipated changes in UAL over a 5-year period and attempts to minimize employer cost volatility from year 
to year. As a result of this methodology, dramatic changes in the required employer contributions in any one 
year are less likely. However, required contributions can change gradually and significantly over the next five 
years. In years where there is a large increase in UAL the relatively small amortization payments during the 
ramp up period could result in a funded ratio that is projected to decrease initially while the contribution impact 
of the increase in the UAL is phased in. 


For projected contributions under alternate investment return scenarios, please see the “Future Investment 
Return Scenarios” in the “Risk Analysis” section. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 6  
 
 


 


Changes Since the Prior Year’s Valuation 
Benefits 


None. This valuation generally reflects plan changes by amendments effective before the date of the report. 
Please refer to the “Plan’s Major Benefit Options” and Appendix B of Section 2 for a summary of the plan 
provisions used in this valuation.  


Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 


In December of 2016 the CalPERS Board of Administration lowered the discount rate from 7.50 percent to 7.00 
percent using a three-year phase-in beginning with the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation. The minimum 
employer contributions for Fiscal Year 2020-21 determined in this valuation were calculated using a discount 
rate of 7.00 percent, payroll growth of 2.75 percent and an inflation rate of 2.50 percent. The projected employer 
contributions on Page 5 are calculated under the assumption that the discount rate remains at 7.00 percent 
going forward and that furthermore the realized rate of return on assets for Fiscal Year 2018-19 is 7.00 percent. 


The decision to reduce the discount rate was primarily based on reduced capital market assumptions provided 
by external investment consultants and CalPERS investment staff. The specific decision adopted by the Board 
reflected recommendations from CalPERS staff and additional input from employer and employee stakeholder 
groups. Based on the investment allocation adopted by the Board and capital market assumptions, the reduced 
discount rate assumption provides a more realistic assumption for the long-term investment return of the fund.  


CalPERS has implemented a new actuarial valuation software system for the June 30, 2018 valuation. With this 
new system we have refined and improved some of our calculation methodology. Any difference in liability 
between the old software and new software calculations is captured as a method change line item.   


Subsequent Events 


The CalPERS Board of Administration has adopted a new amortization policy effective with the June 30, 2019 
actuarial valuation. The new policy shortens the period over which actuarial gains and losses are amortized from 
30 years to 20 years with the payments computed using a level dollar amount. In addition, the new policy 
removes the 5-year ramp-up and ramp-down on UAL bases attributable to assumption changes and non-
investment gains/losses. The new policy removes the 5-year ramp-down on investment gains/losses. These 
changes will apply only to new UAL bases established on or after June 30, 2019. 


For inactive employers the new amortization policy imposes a maximum amortization period of 15 years for all 
unfunded accrued liabilities effective June 30, 2018. Furthermore, the plan actuary has the ability to shorten the 
amortization period on any valuation date based on the life expectancy of plan members and projected cash 
flow needs to the plan. The impact of this has been reflected in the current valuation results. 


The contribution requirements determined in this actuarial valuation report are based on demographic and 
financial information as of June 30, 2018. Changes in the value of assets subsequent to that date are not 
reflected. Investment returns below the assumed rate of return will increase the required contribution, while 
investment returns above the assumed rate of return will decrease the required contribution. 


This actuarial valuation report reflects statutory changes, regulatory changes and CalPERS Board actions through 
January 2019. Any subsequent changes or actions are not reflected. 







 


 
 
 


 
 


Assets and Liabilities 
 
 


 Breakdown of Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability 
 
 Allocation of Plan’s Share of Pool’s Experience/Assumption Change 


 
 Development of Plan’s Share of Pool’s Market Value of Assets 


 
 Schedule of Plan’s Amortization Bases 


 
 Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 


 
 Employer Contribution History 


 
 Funding History







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 8 
 
 


 


Breakdown of Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability 


 Active Members $ 2,404,021 
 Transferred Members   899,147 
 Terminated Members  240,469 
 Members and Beneficiaries Receiving Payments  11,330,919 
 Total $ 14,874,556 


 
 


Allocation of Plan’s Share of Pool’s 
Experience/Assumption Change 
It is the policy of CalPERS to ensure equity within the risk pools by allocating the pool’s experience gains/losses 
and assumption changes in a manner that treats each employer equitably and maintains benefit security for the 
members of the System while minimizing substantial variations in employer contributions. The Pool’s experience 
gains/losses and impact of assumption/method changes is allocated to the plan as follows: 
 


1. Plan’s Accrued Liability $ 14,874,556 
2. Projected UAL balance at 6/30/18   3,823,194 
3. Pool’s Accrued Liability1  22,716,935,494 
4. Sum of Pool’s Individual Plan UAL Balances at 6/30/181  5,835,345,753 
5. Pool’s 2017/18 Investment & Asset (Gain)/Loss1  (166,826,991) 
6. Pool’s 2017/18 Other (Gain)/Loss1  79,829,358 
7. Plan’s Share of Pool’s Asset (Gain)/Loss: [(1) - (2)] ÷ [(3) - (4)] × (5)  (109,212) 
8. Plan’s Share of Pool’s Other (Gain)/Loss: (1) ÷ (3) × (6)  52,271 
9. Plan’s New (Gain)/Loss as of 6/30/2018: (7) + (8)  (56,941) 
10. Increase in Pool’s Accrued Liability due to Change in Assumptions1  623,352,408 
11. Plan’s Share of Pool’s Change in Assumptions: (1) ÷ (3) × (10)  408,158 
12. Increase in Pool’s Accrued Liability due to Change in Method1  146,565,925 
13. Plan’s Share of Pool’s Change in Method: (1) ÷ (3) × (12)  95,968 


 
1 Does not include plans that transferred to Pool on the valuation date. 


Development of the Plan’s Share of Pool’s Market 
Value of Assets 


14.  Plan’s UAL: (2) + (9) + (11) + (13) $ 4,270,379 
15. Plan’s Share of Pool’s MVA: (1) - (14) $ 10,604,177 


 
 


  







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 9 
 
 


Schedule of Plan’s Amortization Bases 


On the next page is the schedule of the plan’s amortization bases. Note that there is a two-year lag between 
the valuation date and the start of the contribution fiscal year. 
 The assets, liabilities, and funded status of the plan are measured as of the valuation date: June 30, 2018. 
 The required employer contributions determined by the valuation are for the fiscal year beginning two years 


after the valuation date: Fiscal Year 2020-21. 


This two-year lag is necessary due to the amount of time needed to extract and test the membership and 
financial data, and the need to provide public agencies with their required employer contribution well in advance 
of the start of the fiscal year. 


The Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) is used to determine the employer contribution and therefore must be rolled 
forward two years from the valuation date to the first day of the fiscal year for which the contribution is being 
determined. The UAL is rolled forward each year by subtracting the expected payment on the UAL for the fiscal 
year and adjusting for interest. The expected payment on the UAL for a fiscal year is equal to the Expected 
Employer Contribution for the fiscal year minus the Expected Normal Cost for the year. The Employer Contribution 
for the first fiscal year is determined by the actuarial valuation two years ago and the contribution for the second 
year is from the actuarial valuation one year ago. Additional discretionary payments are reflected in the Expected 
Payments column in the fiscal year they were made by the agency. 


  







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool                    Page 10 
 
 


 


Schedule of Plan’s Amortization Bases 
 
 


         Amounts for Fiscal 2020-21 


Reason for Base 
Date 


Established 


Ramp 
Up/Down 
2020-21 


Escalat-
ion  


Rate 


Amorti-
zation 
Period 


Balance 
6/30/18 


Payment 
2018-19 


Balance 
6/30/19 


Payment 
2019-20 


Balance 
6/30/20 


Scheduled 
Payment  


for 2020-21 
SHARE OF PRE-2013 POOL UAL 06/30/13 No Ramp 2.750% 17 $1,226,018 $94,864 $1,213,711 $97,442 $1,197,876 $98,842 
NON-ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/13 100% 2.750% 25 $(17,637) $(935) $(17,904) $(1,201) $(17,915) $(1,215) 
ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/13 100% 2.750% 25 $1,494,426 $79,240 $1,517,069 $101,760 $1,518,002 $102,977 
NON-ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/14 100% 2.750% 26 $13,387 $534 $13,772 $731 $13,980 $924 
ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/14 100% 2.750% 26 $(1,043,227) $(41,587) $(1,073,235) $(56,970) $(1,089,431) $(72,041) 
SIDE FUND 2013 or Prior No Ramp 2.750% 0 $(71) $(73) $0 $0 $0 $0 
ASSUMPTION CHANGE 06/30/14 100% 2.750% 16 $726,493 $39,968 $736,004 $54,740 $730,901 $69,501 
NON-ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/15 80% 2.750% 27 $(2,370) $(64) $(2,470) $(99) $(2,540) $(133) 
ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/15 80% 2.750% 27 $631,325 $17,035 $657,897 $26,256 $676,790 $35,399 
NON-ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/16 60% 2.750% 28 $(125,325) $(1,739) $(132,299) $(3,574) $(137,863) $(5,418) 
ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/16 60% 2.750% 28 $744,143 $10,326 $785,552 $21,222 $818,588 $32,169 
ASSUMPTION CHANGE 06/30/16 60% 2.750% 18 $242,214 $4,571 $254,441 $9,392 $262,537 $14,294 
NON-ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/17 40% 2.750% 29 $9,151 $0 $9,792 $136 $10,337 $275 
ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/17 40% 2.750% 29 $(357,194) $0 $(382,198) $(5,310) $(403,459) $(10,725) 
ASSUMPTION CHANGE 06/30/17 40% 2.750% 19 $281,861 $(11,440) $313,425 $5,920 $329,241 $12,006 
NON-ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/18 20% 2.750% 30 $52,271 $0 $55,929 $0 $59,845 $817 
ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/18 20% 2.750% 30 $(109,212) $0 $(116,856) $0 $(125,036) $(1,708) 
ASSUMPTION CHANGE 06/30/18 20% 2.750% 20 $408,158 $(6,860) $443,825 $(7,049) $482,184 $8,990 
METHOD CHANGE 06/30/18 20% 2.750% 20 $95,968 $(158) $102,850 $(163) $110,218 $2,055 
TOTAL     $4,270,379 $183,682 $4,379,305 $243,233 $4,434,255 $287,011 


 
  
 
The (gain)/loss bases are the plan’s allocated share of the risk pool’s (gain)/loss for the fiscal year as disclosed in “Allocation of Plan’s Share of Pool’s 
Experience/Assumption Change” earlier in this section.  These (gain)/loss bases will be amortized according to Board policy over 30 years with a 5-year ramp-up. 
 
If the total Unfunded Liability is negative (i.e., plan has a surplus), the scheduled payment is $0, because the minimum required contribution under PEPRA must be at 
least equal to the normal cost. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool  Page 11 
 
 


Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 


The amortization schedule on the previous page shows the minimum contributions required according to 
CalPERS amortization policy. There has been considerable interest from many agencies in paying off these 
unfunded accrued liabilities sooner and the possible savings in doing so. As a result, we have provided alternate 
amortization schedules to help analyze the current amortization schedule and illustrate the advantages of 
accelerating unfunded liability payments.    


Shown on the following page are future year amortization payments based on: 1) the current amortization 
schedule reflecting the individual bases and remaining periods shown on the previous page, and 2) alternate 
“fresh start” amortization schedules using two sample periods that would both result in interest savings relative 
to the current amortization schedule. Note that the payments under each alternate scenario increase by 2.75 
percent for each year into the future. 


The Current Amortization Schedule typically contains individual bases that are both positive and negative.  
Positive bases result from plan changes, assumption changes or plan experience that result in increases to 
unfunded liability. Negative bases result from plan changes, assumption changes or plan experience that result 
in decreases to unfunded liability. The combination of positive and negative bases within an amortization 
schedule can result in unusual or problematic circumstances in future years such as: 


 A positive total unfunded liability with a negative total payment,      
 A negative total unfunded liability with a positive total payment, or       
 Total payments that completely amortize the unfunded liability over a very short period of time 


In any year where one of the above scenarios occurs, the actuary will consider corrective action such as replacing 
the existing unfunded liability bases with a single “fresh start” base and amortizing it over a reasonable period. 


The Current Amortization Schedule on the following page may appear to show that, based on the current 
amortization bases, one of the above scenarios will occur at some point in the future. It is impossible to know 
today whether such a scenario will in fact arise since there will be additional bases added to the amortization 
schedule in each future year. Should such a scenario arise in any future year, the actuary will take appropriate 
action based on guidelines in the CalPERS amortization policy. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool      Page 12 
 
 


Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 


 
  Alternate Schedules 


 Current Amortization  
Schedule 15 Year Amortization 10 Year Amortization 


Date Balance Payment Balance Payment Balance Payment 
6/30/2020 4,434,254 287,011 4,434,254 399,942 4,434,254 546,742 
6/30/2021 4,447,766 329,254 4,330,949 410,940 4,179,098 561,777 
6/30/2022 4,418,527 364,295 4,209,035 422,241 3,890,527 577,226 
6/30/2023 4,350,994 386,173 4,066,898 433,853 3,565,777 593,100 
6/30/2024 4,256,103 408,112 3,902,800 445,784 3,201,873 609,410 
6/30/2025 4,131,876 419,335 3,714,874 458,043 2,795,626 626,169 
6/30/2026 3,987,344 430,866 3,501,112 470,639 2,343,605 643,389 
6/30/2027 3,820,767 442,715 3,259,357 483,582 1,842,131 661,082 
6/30/2028 3,630,273 454,890 2,987,292 496,880 1,287,252 679,262 
6/30/2029 3,413,850 467,399 2,682,426 510,544 674,725 697,941 
6/30/2030 3,169,338 480,253 2,342,084 524,584   
6/30/2031 2,894,414 493,460 1,963,396 539,010   
6/30/2032 2,586,585 487,781 1,543,277 553,833   
6/30/2033 2,263,081 481,417 1,078,418 569,063   
6/30/2034 1,923,515 467,368 565,263 584,713   
6/30/2035 1,574,711 443,165     
6/30/2036 1,226,528 400,229     
6/30/2037 898,384 219,882     
6/30/2038 733,824 190,383     
6/30/2039 588,258 167,074     
6/30/2040 456,613 152,666     
6/30/2041 330,657 120,887     
6/30/2042 228,757 113,079     
6/30/2043 127,801 88,295     
6/30/2044 45,413 44,964     
6/30/2045 2,081 2,153     
6/30/2046       
6/30/2047       
6/30/2048       
6/30/2049       
       
Totals  8,343,104  7,303,650  6,196,099 


Interest Paid 3,908,850  2,869,396  1,761,845 
Estimated Savings   1,039,454  2,147,005 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 13 
 
       
 
 


Employer Contribution History 
The table below provides a recent history of the required employer contributions for the plan, as determined by 
the annual actuarial valuation. It does not account for prepayments or benefit changes made during a fiscal year. 


[ 
Fiscal 
Year 


Employer 
Normal Cost 


Unfunded Liability 
Payment ($) 


2016 - 17 19.536% $229,208 
2017 - 18 19.723% $263,331 
2018 - 19 20.556% $202,139 
2019 - 20 21.927% $250,446 
2020 - 21 23.674% $287,011 


 


Funding History 
The funding history below shows the plan’s actuarial accrued liability, share of the pool’s market value of assets, 
share of the pool’s unfunded liability, funded ratio, and annual covered payroll. 


 
 


Valuation 
Date 


 
 
 


Accrued 
Liability 


(AL)  


Share of Pool’s 
Market Value of 


Assets (MVA)  


Plan’s Share of 
Pool’s Unfunded 


Liability 


 
Funded 
Ratio 


 
 
 


Annual  
Covered 
Payroll 


06/30/2011 $ 10,054,247 $ 7,523,025 $ 2,531,222 74.8% $ 824,273 
06/30/2012  10,541,771  7,426,501  3,115,270 70.5%  813,883 
06/30/2013  10,843,346  8,086,814  2,756,532 74.6%  919,632 
06/30/2014  11,792,904  9,247,977  2,544,927 78.4%  963,888 
06/30/2015  12,506,997  9,447,142  3,059,855 75.5%  945,713 
06/30/2016  12,838,972  9,017,648  3,821,324 70.2%  903,513 
06/30/2017  13,518,872  9,818,967  3,699,905 72.6%  802,429 
06/30/2018  14,874,556  10,604,177  4,270,379 71.3%  524,079 


 


2020 - 21 23.674% $287,011


06/30/2018 14,874,556 10,604,177 4,270,379 71.3% 524,079


1


2







Page: 19
Number: 1 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 11:46:36 AM 


Number: 2 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 11:46:46 AM 







 


 


 


Risk Analysis 


 Future Investment Return Scenarios 
 


 Discount Rate Sensitivity 
 


 Mortality Rate Sensitivity 
 


 Inflation Rate Sensitivity 
 


 Maturity Measures 
 


 Hypothetical Termination Liability







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 15 
 
 


Future Investment Return Scenarios 
Analysis was performed to determine the effects of various future investment returns on required employer 
contributions. The projections below provide a range of results based on five investment return scenarios 
assumed to occur during the next four fiscal years (2018-19, 2019-20, 2020-21 and 2021-22). The projections 
also assume that all other actuarial assumptions will be realized and that no further changes to assumptions, 
contributions, benefits, or funding will occur. 


For fiscal years 2018-19, 2019-20, 2020-21, and 2021-22, each scenario assumes an alternate fixed annual 
return. The fixed return assumptions for the five scenarios are 1.0 percent, 4.0 percent, 7.0 percent, 9.0 percent 
and 12.0 percent. 


These alternate investment returns were chosen based on stochastic analysis of possible future investment 
returns over the four-year period ending June 30, 2022. Using the expected returns and volatility of the asset 
classes in which the funds are invested, we produced five thousand stochastic outcomes for this period based 
on the most recently completed Asset Liability Management process. We then selected annual returns that 
approximate the 5th, 25th, 50th, 75th, and 95th percentiles for these outcomes. For example, of all the 4-year 
outcomes generated in the stochastic analysis, approximately 25 percent of them had an average annual return 
of 4.0 percent or less. 


Required contributions outside of this range are also possible. In particular, whereas it is unlikely that investment 
returns will average less than 1.0 percent or greater than 12.0 percent over this four-year period, the possibility 
of a single investment return less than 1.0 percent or greater than 12.0 percent in any given year is much 
greater. 


 


Assumed Annual Return From 
2019-20 through 2021-22 


Projected Employer Contributions 


2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 
1.0%     
    Normal Cost 23.7% 23.7% 23.7% 23.7% 
    UAL Contribution $345,000 $412,000 $481,000 $566,000 
4.0%         
    Normal Cost 23.7% 23.7% 23.7% 23.7% 
    UAL Contribution $337,000 $388,000 $435,000 $490,000 
7.0%         
    Normal Cost 23.7% 23.7% 23.7% 23.7% 
    UAL Contribution $329,000 $364,000 $386,000 $408,000 
9.0%         
    Normal Cost 24.1% 24.5% 25.0% 25.4% 
    UAL Contribution $325,000 $353,000 $364,000 $370,000 
12.0%         
    Normal Cost 24.1% 24.5% 25.0% 25.4% 
    UAL Contribution $317,000 $328,000 $313,000 $282,000 


In addition, the projections above reflect the recent changes to the new amortization policy effective with the 
June 30, 2019 valuation. The projections above incorporate the impact of the CalPERS risk mitigation policy 
which reduces the discount rate when investment returns are above specified trigger points. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 16 
 
 


 


Discount Rate Sensitivity 
 
Shown below are various valuation results as of June 30, 2018 assuming alternate discount rates. Results are 
shown using the current discount rate of 7.0 percent as well as alternate discount rates of 6.0 percent and 8.0 
percent. The rates of 6.0 percent and 8.0 percent were selected since they illustrate the impact of a 1 percent 
increase or decrease to the 7.0 percent assumption. This analysis shows the potential plan impacts if the PERF 
were to realize investment returns of 6.0 percent or 8.0 percent over the long-term. 
 
This type of analysis gives the reader a sense of the long-term risk to required contributions. For a measure of 
funded status that is appropriate for assessing the sufficiency of plan assets to cover estimated termination 
liabilities, please see “Hypothetical Termination Liability” at the end of this section. 
 


Sensitivity Analysis 


As of June 30, 2018 Plan’s Total 
Normal Cost 


Accrued 
Liability 


Unfunded 
Accrued Liability 


Funded 
Status 


7.0% (current discount rate) 32.664% $14,874,556 $4,270,379 71.3% 
6.0% 41.172% $16,768,934 $6,164,757 63.2% 
8.0% 26.192% $13,312,579 $2,708,402 79.7% 


Mortality Rate Sensitivity 


The following table looks at the change in the June 30, 2018 plan costs and funded ratio under two different 
longevity scenarios, namely assuming post-retirement rates of mortality are 10 percent lower or 10 percent 
higher than our current mortality assumptions adopted in 2017. This type of analysis highlights the impact on 
the plan of improving or worsening mortality over the long-term. 


As of June 30, 2018 Current Mortality 10% Lower 
Mortality Rates 


10% Higher 
Mortality Rates 


a) Accrued Liability $14,874,556 $15,150,612  $14,620,030 
b) Market Value of Assets $10,604,177 $10,604,177 $10,604,177 
c) Unfunded Liability 
(Surplus) [(a)-(b)] 


$4,270,379 $4,546,435 $4,015,853 


d) Funded Status 71.3% 70.0% 72.5% 


A 10 percent increase (decrease) in assumed mortality rates over the long-term would result in approximately 
a 1.2 percent increase (decrease) to the funded ratio. 


  







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 17 
 
 


Inflation Rate Sensitivity 


The following analysis looks at the change in the June 30, 2018 plan costs and funded ratio under two different 
inflation rate scenarios, namely assuming the liability inflation rate is 1 percent lower or 1 percent higher than 
the current valuation inflation rate assumption of 2.50%, while holding the discount rate fixed at 7.0%. This 
type of analysis highlights the impact on the plan of increased or decreased inflation of active salaries and retiree 
COLAs over the long-term. 


As of June 30, 2018 Current Inflation 
Rate -1% Inflation Rate +1% Inflation Rate 


a) Accrued Liability $14,874,556 $13,977,532 $15,610,005 
b) Market Value of Assets $10,604,177 $10,604,177 $10,604,177 
c) Unfunded Liability 
(Surplus) [(a)-(b)] 


$4,270,379  $3,373,355 $5,005,828 


d) Funded Status 71.3% 75.9% 67.9% 


A decrease of 1 percent in the liability inflation rate (2.50 percent to 1.50 percent) reduces the Accrued Liability 
by 6.0 percent.  However, a 1 percent increase in the liability inflation rate (2.50 percent to 3.50 percent) 
increases the Accrued Liability by 4.9 percent. 


Maturity Measures 


As pension plans mature they become much more sensitive to risks than plans that are less mature. 
Understanding plan maturity and how it affects the ability of a pension plan to tolerate risk is important in 
understanding how the plan is impacted by investment return volatility, other economic variables and changes 
in longevity or other demographic assumptions. One way to look at the maturity level of CalPERS and its plans 
is to look at the ratio of a plan’s retiree liability to its total liability. A pension plan in its infancy will have a very 
low ratio of retiree liability to total liability. As the plan matures, the ratio starts increasing. A mature plan will 
often have a ratio above 0.60 to 0.65. For both CalPERS and other retirement systems in the United States, 
these ratios have been steadily increasing in recent years. 


Ratio of Retiree Accrued Liability to 
Total Accrued Liability June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018


   
1. Retired Accrued Liability 9,710,353 11,330,919 


2. Total Accrued Liability 13,518,872 14,874,556 


3. Ratio of Retiree AL to Total AL [(1) / (2)]  0.72 0.76


Another way to look at the maturity level of CalPERS and its plans is to look at the ratio of actives to retirees. A 
pension plan in its infancy will have a very high ratio of active to retired members. As the plan matures, and 
members retire, the ratio starts declining. A mature plan will often have a ratio near or below one. The average 
support ratio for CalPERS public agency plans is 1.25. 


Support Ratio June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018
   
1. Number of Actives 8 5 


2. Number of Retirees 29 31 


3. Support Ratio [(1) / (2)]  0.28 0.16


 


1. Number of Actives 8 51







Page: 23
Number: 1 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 11:48:45 AM 
The reason the total estimated payroll went from $873,647 in 19-20 to $568,515 in 20-21 is because we lost 3 classic members from 
6.30.17 to 6.30.18. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 18 
 
 


Actuarial calculations are based on a number of assumptions about long-term demographic and economic 
behavior. Unless these assumptions (e.g., terminations, deaths, disabilities, retirements, salary growth, and 
investment return) are exactly realized each year, there will be differences on a year-to-year basis. The year-
to-year differences between actual experience and the assumptions are called actuarial gains and losses and 
serve to lower or raise required employer contributions from one year to the next. Therefore, employer 
contributions will inevitably fluctuate, especially due to the ups and downs of investment returns. 


Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR) 


Plans that have higher asset-to-payroll ratios experience more volatile employer contributions (as a percentage 
of payroll) due to investment return. For example, a plan with an asset-to-payroll ratio of 8 may experience 
twice the contribution volatility due to investment return volatility than a plan with an asset-to-payroll ratio of 
4. Shown below is the asset volatility ratio, a measure of the plan’s current contribution volatility. It should be 
noted that this ratio is a measure of the current situation. It increases over time but generally tends to stabilize 
as the plan matures. 


Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR) 


Plans that have higher liability-to-payroll ratios experience more volatile employer contributions (as a percentage 
of payroll) due to investment return and changes in liability. For example, a plan with a liability-to-payroll ratio 
of 8 is expected to have twice the contribution volatility of a plan with a liability-to-payroll ratio of 4. The liability 
volatility ratio is also shown in the table below. It should be noted that this ratio indicates a longer-term potential 
for contribution volatility. The asset volatility ratio, described above, will tend to move closer to the liability 
volatility ratio as the plan matures. 


Contribution Volatility  June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018 


1. Market Value of Assets $ 9,818,967 $ 10,604,177 


2. Payroll  802,429  524,079 


3. Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR) [(1) / (2)]  12.2  20.2 


4. Accrued Liability $ 13,518,872 $ 14,874,556 


5. Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR) [(4) / (2)]  16.8  28.4 


6. Accrued Liability (7.00% discount rate)  13,880,408  14,874,556 


7. Projected Liability Volatility Ratio [(6) / (2)]  17.3  28.4 


 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 19 
 
 


Hypothetical Termination Liability 
The hypothetical termination liability is an estimate of the financial position of the plan had the contract with 
CalPERS been terminated as of June 30, 2018. The plan liability on a termination basis is calculated differently 
compared to the plan’s ongoing funding liability. For the hypothetical termination liability calculation, both 
compensation and service are frozen as of the valuation date and no future pay increases or service accruals 
are assumed. This measure of funded status is not appropriate for assessing the need for future employer 
contributions in the case of an ongoing plan, that is, for an employer that continues to provide CalPERS 
retirement benefits to active employees. 


A more conservative investment policy and asset allocation strategy was adopted by the CalPERS Board for the 
Terminated Agency Pool. The Terminated Agency Pool has limited funding sources since no future employer 
contributions will be made. Therefore, expected benefit payments are secured by risk-free assets and benefit 
security for members is increased while funding risk is limited. However, this asset allocation has a lower 
expected rate of return than the PERF and consequently, a lower discount rate is assumed. The lower discount 
rate for the Terminated Agency Pool results in higher liabilities for terminated plans. 


The effective termination discount rate will depend on actual market rates of return for risk-free securities on 
the date of termination. As market discount rates are variable, the table below shows a range for the hypothetical 
termination liability based on the lowest and highest interest rates observed during an approximate 2-year period 
centered around the valuation date. 


[] 
 


Market 
Value of  


Assets (MVA) 


Hypothetical 
Termination 
   Liability1,2 


 @ 2.50% 


Funded  
Status 


Unfunded 
Termination 


Liability 
@ 2.50% 


Hypothetical 
Termination 


    Liability1,2 
 @ 3.25% 


Funded 
Status 


Unfunded 
Termination 


Liability 
@ 3.25% 


$10,604,177 $26,933,545 39.4% $16,329,367 $24,732,026 42.9% $14,127,848 
  
 
1 The hypothetical liabilities calculated above include a 5 percent mortality contingency load in accordance with Board policy. 


Other actuarial assumptions can be found in Appendix A of the Section 2 report. 
2 The current discount rate assumption used for termination valuations is a weighted average of the 10-year and 30-year U.S. 


Treasury yields where the weights are based on matching asset and liability durations as of the termination date. The 
discount rates used in the table are based on 20-year Treasury bonds, rounded to the nearest quarter percentage point, 
which is a good proxy for most plans. The 20-year Treasury yield was 2.91 percent on June 30, 2018, and was 2.83 percent 
on January 31, 2019. 


 
In order to terminate the plan, you must first contact our Retirement Services Contract Unit to initiate a 
Resolution of Intent to Terminate. The completed Resolution will allow the plan actuary to give you a preliminary 
termination valuation with a more up-to-date estimate of the plan liabilities. CalPERS advises you to consult with 
the plan actuary before beginning this process. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 20 
 
 


 


Participant Data 
 
The table below shows a summary of your plan’s member data upon which this valuation is based:   
 


 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018 


Reported Payroll $ 802,429 $ 524,079 
Projected Payroll for Contribution Purposes $ 873,647 $ 568,515 
     
Number of Members     
     Active   8  5 
     Transferred  6  6 
     Separated  2  4 
     Retired  29  31 


 


 


List of Class 1 Benefit Provisions 
This plan has the additional Class 1 Benefit Provisions: 
 


 One Year Final Compensation (FAC 1) 


Projected Payroll for Contribution Purposes $ 873,647 $ 568,5151







Page: 26
Number: 1 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 11:50:02 AM 
This is the backup to the two payroll numbers used on page 17.  







 
 
CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 
 


Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 21 
 
 


 


Plan’s Major Benefit Options 
Shown below is a summary of the major optional benefits for which your agency has contracted. A description of principal standard and optional plan provisions 
is in the following section of this Appendix. 
 
 Benefit Group 


Member Category Police Police Police Police    


Demographics        
Actives Yes No No No    
Transfers/Separated Yes No No No    
Receiving Yes Yes Yes Yes    
Benefit Group Key        
Benefit Provision        
        
Benefit Formula 3% @ 50 1/2 @ 55 2% @ 50 2% @ 50    


Social Security Coverage No No No No    
Full/Modified Full Full Full Full    


        
Employee Contribution Rate 9.00%       
        
Final Average Compensation Period One Year Three Year One Year Three Year    
        
Sick Leave Credit Yes No Yes No    
        
Non-Industrial Disability Standard Standard Standard Standard    
        
Industrial Disability Standard Standard Standard Standard    
        
Pre-Retirement Death Benefits        


Optional Settlement 2 Yes No No No    
1959 Survivor Benefit Level Level 4 Level 4 Level 4 Level 4    
Special Yes Yes Yes Yes    
Alternate (firefighters) No No No No    


        
Post-Retirement Death Benefits        


Lump Sum $500 $500 $500 $500    
Survivor Allowance (PRSA) No No No No    


        
COLA 2% 2% 2% 2%    


 
    
 







 
 
CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
Safety Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 22 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 


Section 2 


 


C A L I F O R N I A  P U B L I C  E M P L O Y E E S ’  R E T I R E M E N T  S Y S T E M  


 
 
 


Section 2 may be found on the CalPERS website 
(www.calpers.ca.gov) in the Forms and  


Publications section 


 


 








 


 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
Actuarial Office 
P.O. Box 942709
Sacramento, CA  94229-2709 
TTY: (916) 795-3240  
(888) 225-7377 phone – (916) 795-2744 fax 
www.calpers.ca.gov 
 


 


 


 
August 2018 
 
 
 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
(CalPERS ID: 7381511111) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2017 
 
Dear Employer, 
 
As an attachment to this letter, you will find a copy of the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation report of the pension 
plan. 
 
Because this plan is in a risk pool, the following valuation report has been separated into two sections: 
 


 Section 1 contains specific information for the plan including the development of the current and projected 
employer contributions, and 


 Section 2 contains the Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation appropriate to the plan as of June 30, 2017. 
 
Section 2 can be found on the CalPERS website at (www.calpers.ca.gov). From the home page, go to “Forms & 
Publications” and select “View All”. In the search box, enter “Risk Pool” and from the results list download the 
Miscellaneous or Safety Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation Report as appropriate. 
 
Your June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation report contains important actuarial information about your pension plan at 
CalPERS. Your assigned CalPERS staff actuary, whose signature appears in the Actuarial Certification section on page 
1, is available to discuss the report with you after August 1, 2018. 
 
The exhibit below displays the minimum employer contributions, before any cost sharing, for Fiscal Year 2019-20 
along with estimates of the required contributions for Fiscal Year 2020-21. Member contributions other than cost 
sharing (whether paid by the employer or the employee) are in addition to the results shown below. The employer 
contributions in this report do not reflect any cost sharing arrangements you may have with your 
employees. 
 
 
Required Contribution 
 


Fiscal Year Employer Normal 
Cost Rate  Employer Payment of 


Unfunded Liability 
2019-20 13.034%  $429 
    
Projected Results    
2020-21 13.1%  $1,000  


 
The actual investment return for Fiscal Year 2017-18 was not known at the time this report was prepared. The 
projections above assume the investment return for that year would be 7.25 percent. If the actual investment 
return for Fiscal Year 2017-18 differs from 7.25 percent, the actual contribution requirements for the 
projected years will differ from those shown above.  
 
Moreover, the projected results for Fiscal Year 2020-21 assume that there are no future plan changes, no further 
changes in assumptions other than those recently approved, and no liability gains or losses. Such changes can have a 
significant impact on required contributions. Since they cannot be predicted in advance, the projected employer 
results shown above are estimates. The actual required employer contributions for Fiscal Year 2020-21 will be 
provided in next year’s report.  
 
For additional details regarding the assumptions and methods used for these projections please refer to the 
“Projected Employer Contributions” in the “Highlights and Executive Summary” section.    
 
The “Risk Analysis” section of the valuation report also contains estimated employer contributions in future years 
under a variety of investment return scenarios. 


$1,0001







Summary of Comments on Kensington Community 
Services District
Page: 1


Number: 1 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 12:09:09 PM 







PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
(CalPERS ID: 7381511111) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2017 
Page 2 


 


 
 
Changes since the Prior Year’s Valuation 
 
At its December 2016 meeting, the CalPERS Board of Administration lowered the discount rate from 7.50 percent to 
7.00 percent using a three-year phase-in beginning with the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuations. The minimum 
employer contributions for Fiscal Year 2019-20 determined in this valuation were calculated using a discount rate of 
7.25 percent. The projected employer contributions on Page 5 are calculated under the assumption that the discount 
rate will be lowered to 7.00 percent next year as adopted by the Board.  
 
On December 19, 2017, the CalPERS Board of Administration adopted new actuarial assumptions based on the 
recommendations in the December 2017 CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions. This study 
reviewed the retirement rates, termination rates, mortality rates, rates of salary increases and inflation assumption 
for Public Agencies. These new assumptions are incorporated in your actuarial valuations and will impact the required 
contribution for FY 2019-20. In addition, the Board adopted a new asset portfolio as part of its Asset Liability 
Management. The new asset mix supports a 7.00 percent discount rate. The reduction of the inflation assumption 
will be implemented in two steps in conjunction with the decreases in the discount rate. For the June 30, 2017 
valuation an inflation rate of 2.625 percent was used and a rate of 2.50 percent will be used in the following 
valuation. 
 
The CalPERS Board of Administration has adopted a new amortization policy effective with the June 30, 2019 
actuarial valuation. The new policy shortens the period over which actuarial gains and losses are amortized from 30 
years to 20 years with the payments computed using a level dollar amount. In addition, the new policy removes the 
5-year ramp-up and ramp-down on UAL bases attributable to assumption changes and non-investment gains/losses. 
The new policy removes the 5-year ramp-down on investment gains/losses. These changes will apply only to new 
UAL bases established on or after June 30, 2019. 
 
For inactive employers the new amortization policy imposes a maximum amortization period of 15 years for all 
unfunded accrued liabilities effective June 30, 2017. Furthermore, the plan actuary has the ability to shorten the 
amortization period on any valuation date based on the life expectancy of plan members and projected cash flow 
needs to the plan. The impact of this has been reflected in the current valuation results. 
 
The CalPERS Board of Administration adopted a Risk Mitigation Policy which is designed to reduce funding risk over 
time. This Policy has been temporarily suspended during the period over which the discount rate is being lowered. 
More details on the Risk Mitigation Policy can be found on our website. 
 
Besides the above noted changes, there may also be changes specific to the plan such as contract amendments and 
funding changes. 
 
Further descriptions of general changes are included in the “Highlights and Executive Summary” section and in 
Appendix A, “Statement of Actuarial Data, Methods and Assumptions” of the Section 2 report.  
 
We understand that you might have a number of questions about these results. While we are very interested in 
discussing these results with your agency, in the interest of allowing us to give every public agency their results, we 
ask that you wait until after August 1 to contact us with actuarial related questions. 
 
If you have other questions, please call our customer contact center at (888) CalPERS or (888-225-7377). 
 
 
Sincerely, 


 
SCOTT TERANDO 
Chief Actuary







 
 


 


 
 
 


 
 
 


Actuarial Valuation 
as of June 30, 2017 


 
for the 


 PEPRA Safety Police Plan 
of the 


Kensington Community Services District 
(CalPERS ID: 7381511111) 


 
Required Contributions 


for Fiscal Year 
July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020







 
 


 


Table of Contents 
 


Section 1 – Plan Specific Information 
 
Section 2 – Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation Information







 
 


 


 


Section 1 


C A L I F O R N I A  P U B L I C  E M P L O Y E E S ’  R E T I R E M E N T  S Y S T E M  


 
 
 


Plan Specific Information  
for the 


PEPRA Safety Police Plan 
 of the 


Kensington Community Services District 
 


(CalPERS ID: 7381511111) 
(Rate Plan: 25859)







 
 


 
 


Table of Contents 
 
 
 
Actuarial Certification                      1 
 
Highlights and Executive Summary 


Introduction 3 
Purpose of Section 1 3 
Required Employer Contributions 4 
Plan’s Funded Status 5 
Projected Employer Contributions 5 
Changes Since the Prior Year’s Valuation 6 
Subsequent Events 6 


 
 
Assets and Liabilities 


Breakdown of Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability 8 
Allocation of Plan’s Share of Pool’s Experience/Assumption Change 8 
Development of Plan’s Share of Pool’s MVA 8 
Schedule of Plan’s Amortization Bases 9 
Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 10 
Employer Contribution History 12 
Funding History 12 


 
 
Risk Analysis 


Analysis of Future Investment Return Scenarios 14 
Analysis of Discount Rate Sensitivity 15 
Volatility Ratios 16 
Hypothetical Termination Liability 17 


 
 
Participant Data                 18 
 
List of Class 1 Benefit Provisions               18 
 
Plan’s Major Benefit Options                20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


(CY) FIN PROCESS CONTROL ID: 520038 (PY) FIN PROCESS CONTROL ID: 500968 REPORT ID: 113119 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 1 
 
 


 


Actuarial Certification 
 
Section 1 of this report is based on the member and financial data contained in our records as of June 30, 2017 
which was provided by your agency and the benefit provisions under your contract with CalPERS. Section 2 of 
this report is based on the member and financial data as of June 30, 2017 provided by employers participating 
in the Safety Risk Pool to which the plan belongs and benefit provisions under the CalPERS contracts for those 
agencies. 
 
As set forth in Section 2 of this report, the pool actuaries have certified that, in their opinion, the valuation of 
the risk pool containing your PEPRA Safety Police Plan has been performed in accordance with generally 
accepted actuarial principles consistent with standards of practice prescribed by the Actuarial Standards Board, 
and that the assumptions and methods are internally consistent and reasonable for the risk pool as of the date 
of this valuation and as prescribed by the CalPERS Board of Administration according to provisions set forth in 
the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law. 
 
Having relied upon the information set forth in Section 2 of this report and based on the census and benefit 
provision information for the plan, it is my opinion as the plan actuary that Unfunded Accrued Liability 
amortization bases as of June 30, 2017 and employer contribution as of July 1, 2019, have been properly and 
accurately determined in accordance with the principles and standards stated above. 
 
The undersigned is an actuary for CalPERS, a member of both the American Academy of Actuaries and Society 
of Actuaries and meets the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the 
actuarial opinion contained herein. 
 
 


 


 
FRITZIE ARCHULETA, ASA, MAAA 
Deputy Chief Actuary, CalPERS 
Plan Actuary 


 
 


  


 







 


 
 


 
 


Highlights and Executive Summary 
 
 


 Introduction 
 
 Purpose of Section 1 


 
 Required Employer Contributions 


 
 Plan’s Funded Status 


 
 Projected Employer Contributions 


 
 Changes Since the Prior Year’s Valuation 


 
 Subsequent Events







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 3  
 
 


 


Introduction 
 
This report presents the results of the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation of the PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the 
Kensington Community Services District of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). This 
actuarial valuation sets the required employer contributions for Fiscal Year 2019-20. 
 
 


Purpose of Section 1 
 
This Section 1 report for the PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District of the 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) was prepared by the plan actuary in order to: 
 
 Set forth the assets and accrued liabilities of this plan as of June 30, 2017; 
 Determine the minimum required employer contribution for this plan for the fiscal year July 1, 2019 


through June 30, 2020; and 
 Provide actuarial information as of June 30, 2017 to the CalPERS Board of Administration and other 


interested parties. 
 


The pension funding information presented in this report should not be used in financial reports subject to 
GASB Statement No. 68 for a Cost Sharing Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan. A separate accounting 
valuation report for such purposes is available from CalPERS and details for ordering are available on our 
website. 
 
The measurements shown in this actuarial valuation may not be applicable for other purposes. The employer 
should contact their actuary before disseminating any portion of this report for any reason that is not explicitly 
described above. 
 
Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements presented in this 
report due to such factors as the following: plan experience differing from that anticipated by the economic or 
demographic assumptions; changes in economic or demographic assumptions; changes in actuarial policies; 
and changes in plan provisions or applicable law. 
 
California Actuarial Advisory Panel Recommendations 
 
This report includes all the basic disclosure elements as described in the Model Disclosure Elements for 
Actuarial Valuation Reports recommended in 2011 by the California Actuarial Advisory Panel (CAAP), with the 
exception of including the original base amounts of the various components of the unfunded liability in the 
Schedule of Amortization Bases shown on page 9. 
 
Additionally, this report includes the following “Enhanced Risk Disclosures” also recommended by the CAAP in 
the Model Disclosure Elements document: 
 


 A “Deterministic Stress Test,” projecting future results under different investment income scenarios 
 A “Sensitivity Analysis,” showing the impact on current valuation results using alternative discount 


rates of 6.0 percent, 7.0 percent and 8.0 percent. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 4 


Required Employer Contributions 
Fiscal Year 


Required Employer Contributions 2019-20 
Employer Normal Cost Rate 13.034% 


  Plus, Either 
1) Monthly Employer Dollar UAL Payment $ 35.77 
   Or 
2) Annual Lump Sum Prepayment Option $ 414 


The total minimum required employer contribution is the sum of the Plan’s Employer Normal Cost Rate 
(expressed as a percentage of payroll) plus the Employer Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) Contribution 
Amount (billed monthly in dollars). 


Only the UAL portion of the employer contribution can be prepaid (which must be received in full no 
later than July 31). Plan Normal Cost contributions will be made as part of the payroll reporting process. 
If there is contractual cost sharing or other change, this amount will change.  


In accordance with Sections 20537 and 20572 of the Public Employees’ Retirement Law, if a contracting 
agency fails to remit the required contributions when due, interest and penalties may apply. 


Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 
2018-19 2019-20 


Development of Normal Cost as a Percentage of Payroll1 
Base Total Normal Cost for Formula 24.141% 25.034% 
Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits2 
    None 0.000% 0.000% 
Phase out of Normal Cost Difference3 0.000% 0.000% 
Plan’s Total Normal Cost 24.141% 25.034% 
Plan's Employee Contribution Rate 12.000% 12.000% 
Employer Normal Cost Rate 12.141% 13.034% 


Projected Payroll for the Contribution Fiscal Year $ 77,495 $ 


Estimated Employer Contributions Based on Projected Payroll 
Plan’s Estimated Employer Normal Cost $ 9,409 $ 10,937 
Plan’s Payment on Amortization Bases4 1,687 429 


% of Projected Payroll (illustrative only) 2.177% 0.512% 


Estimated Total Employer Contribution $ 11,096 $ 11,366 
% of Projected Payroll (illustrative only) 14.318% 13.545% 


1 The results shown for Fiscal Year 2018-19 reflect the prior year valuation and may not take into account any lump sum 
payment, side fund payoff, or rate adjustment made after June 30, 2017. 


2 Section 2 of this report contains a list of Class 1 benefits and corresponding surcharges for each benefit. 
3 The normal cost difference is phased out over a five-year period. The phase out of normal cost difference is 100 percent 


for the first year of pooling, and is incrementally reduced by 20 percent of the original normal cost difference for each 
subsequent year.  This is non-zero only for plans that joined a pool within the past 5 years.  Most plans joined a pool 
June 30, 2003, when risk pooling was implemented. 


4 See page 9 for a breakdown of the Amortization Bases. 


2) Annual Lump Sum Prepayment Option $ 414


Employer Normal Cost Rate 13.034%1


2


  
83,912 3







Page: 10
Number: 1 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 12:58:13 PM 
This is the normal cost and is always based only on a % of what we pay per employee. It is based on real-time actual payroll data and changes is 
payroll changes. 


Number: 2 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 12:59:56 PM 
This is the discounted lump sum that we pay annually in July each year. This amount is fixed and does not change.


Number: 3 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 1:01:09 PM 
Total payroll is based on 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 5 


Plan’s Funded Status 
June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017 


1. Present Value of Projected Benefits (PVB) $ 246,696 $ 307,807 
2. Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability (AL) 4,457 26,197 
3. Plan’s Market Value of Assets (MVA) 4,131 25,610 
4. Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) [(2) - (3)] 326 587 
5. Funded Ratio [(3) / (2)] 92.7% 97.8% 


This measure of funded status is an assessment of the need for future employer contributions based on the 
selected actuarial cost method used to fund the plan. The UAL is the present value of future employer 
contributions for service that has already been earned and is in addition to future normal cost contributions for 
active members. For a measure of funded status that is appropriate for assessing the sufficiency of plan assets 
to cover estimated termination liabilities, please see “Hypothetical Termination Liability” in the “Risk Analysis” 
section. 


Projected Employer Contributions 
The table below shows projected employer contributions (before cost sharing) for the next six fiscal years. 
Projected results reflect the adopted changes to the discount rate described in Appendix A, “Statement of 
Actuarial Data, Methods and Assumptions” of the Section 2 report. The projections also assume that all 
actuarial assumptions will be realized and that no further changes to assumptions, contributions, benefits, or 
funding will occur during the projection period. 


Required 
Contribution 


Projected Future Employer Contributions 
(Assumes 7.25% Return for Fiscal Year 2017-18) 


Fiscal Year 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 


Normal Cost % 13.034% 13.1% 13.1% 13.1% 13.1% 13.1% 
UAL Payment $429 $1,000 $880 $740 $620 $520 


Changes in the UAL due to actuarial gains or losses as well as changes in actuarial assumptions or methods 
are amortized using a 5-year ramp up. For more information, please see “Amortization of the Unfunded 
Actuarial Accrued Liability” under “Actuarial Methods” in Appendix A of Section 2. This method phases in the 
impact of unanticipated changes in UAL over a 5-year period and attempts to minimize employer cost volatility 
from year to year. As a result of this methodology, dramatic changes in the required employer contributions in 
any one year are less likely. However, required contributions can change gradually and significantly over the 
next five years. In years where there is a large increase in UAL the relatively small amortization payments 
during the ramp up period could result in a funded ratio that is projected to decrease initially while the 
contribution impact of the increase in the UAL is phased in. 


Due to the adopted changes in the discount rate for next year’s valuation in combination with the 5-year 
phase-in ramp, the increases in the required contributions are expected to continue for six years from Fiscal 
Year 2019-20 through Fiscal Year 2024-25. 


For projected contributions under alternate investment return scenarios, please see the “Analysis of Future 
Investment Return Scenarios” in the “Risk Analysis” section. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 6 


Changes since the Prior Year’s Valuation 
Benefits 


None. This valuation generally reflects plan changes by amendments effective before the date of the report. 
Please refer to the “Plan’s Major Benefit Options” and Appendix B of Section 2 for a summary of the plan 
provisions used in this valuation.  


Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 


At its December 2016 meeting, the CalPERS Board of Administration lowered the discount rate from 7.50 
percent to 7.00 percent using a three-year phase-in beginning with the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuations. 
The minimum employer contributions for Fiscal Year 2019-20 determined in this valuation were calculated 
using a discount rate of 7.25 percent. The projected employer contributions on page 5 are calculated 
assuming that the discount rate will be lowered to 7.00 percent next year as adopted by the Board. The 
decision to reduce the discount rate was primarily based on reduced capital market assumptions provided by 
external investment consultants and CalPERS investment staff. The specific decision adopted by the Board 
reflected recommendations from CalPERS staff and additional input from employer and employee stakeholder 
groups. Based on the investment allocation adopted by the Board and capital market assumptions, the 
reduced discount rate assumption provides a more realistic assumption for the long-term investment return of 
the fund.  


On December 19, 2017, the CalPERS Board of Administration adopted new actuarial assumptions based on the 
recommendations in the December 2017 CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions. This 
study reviewed the retirement rates, termination rates, mortality rates, rates of salary increases and inflation 
assumption for Public Agencies. These new assumptions are incorporated in this actuarial valuation and will 
impact the required contribution for FY 2019-20. In addition, the Board adopted a new asset portfolio as part 
of its Asset Liability Management. The new asset mix supports a 7.00 percent discount rate. The reduction of 
the inflation assumption will be implemented in two steps in conjunction with the decreases in the discount 
rate. For the June 30, 2017 valuation an inflation rate of 2.625 percent will be used and a rate of 2.50 percent 
in the following valuation. 


Notwithstanding the Board’s decision to phase into a 7.0 percent discount rate, subsequent analysis of the 
expected investment return of CalPERS assets or changes to the investment allocation may result in a change 
to this three-year discount rate schedule. 


Subsequent Events
The CalPERS Board of Administration has adopted a new amortization policy effective with the June 30, 2019 
actuarial valuation. The new policy shortens the period over which actuarial gains and losses are amortized 
from 30 years to 20 years with the payments computed using a level dollar amount. In addition, the new 
policy removes the 5-year ramp-up and ramp-down on UAL bases attributable to assumption changes and 
non-investment gains/losses. The new policy removes the 5-year ramp-down on investment gains/losses. 
These changes will apply only to new UAL bases established on or after June 30, 2019. 


For inactive employers the new amortization policy imposes a maximum amortization period of 15 years for all 
unfunded accrued liabilities effective June 30, 2017. Furthermore, the plan actuary has the ability to shorten 
the amortization period on any valuation date based on the life expectancy of plan members and projected 
cash flow needs to the plan. The impact of this has been reflected in the current valuation results. 


The contribution requirements determined in this actuarial valuation report are based on demographic and 
financial information as of June 30, 2017. Changes in the value of assets subsequent to that date are not 
reflected. Investment returns below the assumed rate of return will increase the retired contribution, while 
investment returns above the assumed rate of return will decrease the retired contribution. 


This actuarial valuation report reflects statutory changes, regulatory changes and CalPERS Board actions 
through January 2018. Any subsequent changes or actions are not reflected. 







Assets and Liabilities 


 Breakdown of Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability 


 Allocation of Plan’s Share of Pool’s Experience/Assumption Change 


 Development of Plan’s Share of Pool’s MVA 


 Schedule of Plan’s Amortization Bases 


 Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 


 Employer Contribution History 


 Funding History







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 8 


Breakdown of Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability
Active Members $ 23,260 
Transferred Members 0 
Terminated Members 2,937 
Members and Beneficiaries Receiving Payments 0 
Total $ 26,197 


Allocation of Plan’s Share of Pool’s 
Experience/Assumption Change 
It is the policy of CalPERS to ensure equity within the risk pools by allocating the pool’s experience 
gains/losses and assumption changes in a manner that treats each employer equitably and maintains benefit 
security for the members of the System while minimizing substantial variations in employer contributions. The 
Pool’s experience gains/losses and impact of assumption/method changes is allocated to the plan as follows: 


1. Plan’s Accrued Liability $ 26,197 
2. Projected UAL balance at 6/30/17 945 
3. Pool’s Accrued Liability1 $ 20,966,498,823 
4. Sum of Pool’s Individual Plan UAL Balances at 6/30/171 5,939,788,240 
5. Pool’s 2016/17 Investment & Asset (Gain)/Loss (513,476,842) 
6. Pool’s 2016/17 Other (Gain)/Loss 13,232,897 
7. Plan’s Share of Pool’s Asset (Gain)/Loss [(1) - (2)] / [(3) - (4)] * (5) (863) 
8. Plan’s Share of Pool’s Other (Gain)/Loss [(1)] / [(3)] * (6) 17 
9. Plan’s New (Gain)/Loss as of 6/30/2017 [(7) + (8)] $ (846) 
10. Increase in Pool’s Accrued Liability due to Change in Assumptions1 390,935,533 
11. Plan’s Share of Pool’s Change in Assumptions [(1)] / [(3)] * (10) $ 488 


1 Does not include plans that transferred to Pool on the valuation date. 


Development of the Plan’s Share of Pool’s Market 
Value of Assets 
12. Plan’s UAL [(2) + (9) + (11)] $ 587 
13. Plan’s Share of Pool’s MVA [(1) - (12)] $ 25,610 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool   Page 9 


Schedule of Plan’s Amortization Bases
There is a two-year lag between the valuation date and the start of the contribution fiscal year. 


 The assets, liabilities, and funded status of the plan are measured as of the valuation date: June 30, 2017. 
 The employer contribution determined by the valuation is for the fiscal year beginning two years after the valuation date: Fiscal Year 2019-20. 


This two-year lag is necessary due to the amount of time needed to extract and test the membership and financial data, and the need to provide public agencies 
with their employer contribution well in advance of the start of the fiscal year. 


The Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) is used to determine the employer contribution and therefore must be rolled forward two years from the valuation date to the 
first day of the fiscal year for which the contribution is being determined. The UAL is rolled forward each year by subtracting the payment on the UAL for the fiscal 
year and adjusting for interest. Additional discretionary payments are reflected in the Expected Payments column in the fiscal year they were made by the agency. 


Amounts for Fiscal 2019-20 


Reason for Base 
Date 


Established 


Ramp 
Up/Down 
2019-20 


Amortization 
Period 


Balance 
6/30/17 


Payment 
2017-18 


Balance 
6/30/18 


Payment 
2018-19 


Balance 
6/30/19 


Scheduled 
Payment  


for 2019-20 
FRESH START 06/30/17 No Ramp 5 $587 $(1,660) $2,349 $588 $1,910 $429 
TOTAL $587 $(1,660) $2,349 $588 $1,910 $429 


The (gain)/loss bases are the plan’s allocated share of the risk pool’s (gain)/loss for the fiscal year as disclosed on the previous page. These (gain)/loss bases will be 
amortized according to Board policy over 30 years with a 5-year ramp-up. 


If the total Unfunded Liability is negative (i.e., plan has a surplus), the scheduled payment is $0, because the minimum required contribution under PEPRA must be 
at least equal to the normal cost. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool  Page 10 
 
 


 


Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 
 
The amortization schedule on the previous page shows the minimum contributions required according to 
CalPERS amortization policy. There has been considerable interest from many agencies in paying off these 
unfunded accrued liabilities sooner and the possible savings in doing so. As a result, we have provided 
alternate amortization schedules to help analyze the current amortization schedule and illustrate the 
advantages of accelerating unfunded liability payments.    
 
Shown on the following page are future year amortization payments based on: 1) the current amortization 
schedule reflecting the individual bases and remaining periods shown on the previous page, and 2) alternate 
“fresh start” amortization schedules using two sample periods that would both result in interest savings 
relative to the current amortization schedule. Note that the payments under each alternate scenario increase 
by 2.875 percent for each year into the future. The schedules do not attempt to reflect any experience 
after June 30, 2017 that may deviate from the actuarial assumptions. Therefore, future 
amortization payments displayed in the Current Amortization Schedule may not match projected 
amortization payments shown in connection with Projected Employer Contributions provided 
elsewhere in this report. 
 
The Current Amortization Schedule typically contains individual bases that are both positive and negative.  
Positive bases result from plan changes, assumption changes or plan experience that result in increases to 
unfunded liability. Negative bases result from plan changes, assumption changes or plan experience that result 
in decreases to unfunded liability. The combination of positive and negative bases within an amortization 
schedule can result in unusual or problematic circumstances in future years such as: 
 


 A positive total unfunded liability with a negative total payment,      
 A negative total unfunded liability with a positive total payment, or       
 Total payments that completely amortize the unfunded liability over a very short period of time 


 
In any year where one of the above scenarios occurs, the actuary will consider corrective action such as 
replacing the existing unfunded liability bases with a single “fresh start” base and amortizing it over a 
reasonable period. 
 
The Current Amortization Schedule on the following page may appear to show that, based on the current 
amortization bases, one of the above scenarios will occur at some point in the future. It is impossible to know 
today whether such a scenario will in fact arise since there will be additional bases added to the amortization 
schedule in each future year. Should such a scenario arise in any future year, the actuary will take appropriate 
action based on guidelines in the CalPERS amortization policy. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool      Page 11 
 
 


 


Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 
 


 
* This schedule does not reflect the impact of adopted discount rate changes that will become effective beyond June 30, 
2017. For Projected Employer Contributions, please see page 5.  


  Alternate Schedules 


 Current Amortization  
Schedule 0 Year Amortization 0 Year Amortization 


Date Balance Payment Balance Payment Balance Payment 
6/30/2019 1,910 429 N/A N/A N/A N/A 
6/30/2020 1,604 442     
6/30/2021 1,263 454     
6/30/2022 884 467     
6/30/2023 464 481     
6/30/2024       
6/30/2025       
6/30/2026       
6/30/2027       
6/30/2028       
6/30/2029       
6/30/2030       
6/30/2031       
6/30/2032       
6/30/2033       
6/30/2034       
6/30/2035       
6/30/2036       
6/30/2037       
6/30/2038       
6/30/2039       
6/30/2040       
6/30/2041       
6/30/2042       
6/30/2043       
6/30/2044       
6/30/2045       
6/30/2046       
6/30/2047       
6/30/2048       
       
Totals  2,274  N/A  N/A 


Interest Paid 363  N/A  N/A 
Estimated Savings   N/A  N/A 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 12 


Employer Contribution History 
The table below provides a recent history of the required employer contributions for the plan, as determined by 
the annual actuarial valuation. It does not account for prepayments or benefit changes made during a fiscal 
year. 


Fiscal 
Year 


Employer 
Normal Cost 


Unfunded Liability 
Payment ($) 


2018 - 19 12.141% $1,687 
2019 - 20 13.034% $429 


Funding History 
The funding history below shows the plan’s actuarial accrued liability, share of the pool’s market value of 
assets, share of the pool’s unfunded liability, funded ratio, and annual covered payroll. 


Valuation 
Date 


Accrued 
Liability 


(AL) 


Share of Pool’s 
Market Value of 


Assets (MVA) 


Plan’s Share of 
Pool’s Unfunded 


Liability 
Funded 
Ratio 


Annual  
Covered 
Payroll 


06/30/2016 $ 4,457 $ 4,131 $ 326 92.7% $ 70,919 
06/30/2017 26,197 25,610 587 97.8% 77,072 


2019 - 20 13.034% $429


06/30/2017 26,197 25,610 587 97.8% 77,072


1


2







Page: 18
Number: 1 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 1:01:09 PM 


Number: 2 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 1:05:09 PM 
Payroll number that was used is only based on one PEPRA employee in 2017. Refer to page 18. 







Risk Analysis 


 Analysis of Future Investment Return Scenarios 


 Analysis of Discount Rate Sensitivity 


 Volatility Ratios 


 Hypothetical Termination Liability







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 14 


Analysis of Future Investment Return Scenarios 
Analysis was performed to determine the effects of various future investment returns on required employer 
contributions. The projections below provide a range of results based on five investment return scenarios 
assumed to occur during the next four fiscal years (2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 and 2020-21). The projections 
also assume that all other actuarial assumptions will be realized and that no further changes to assumptions, 
contributions, benefits, or funding will occur. 


Each of the five investment return scenarios assumes a return of 7.25 percent for fiscal year 2017-18. For 
fiscal years 2018-19, 2019-20, and 2020-21 each scenario assumes an alternate fixed annual return. The fixed 
return assumptions for the five scenarios are 1.0 percent, 4.0 percent, 7.0 percent, 9.0 percent and 12.0 
percent. 


The alternate investment returns were chosen based on stochastic analysis of possible future investment 
returns over the four-year period ending June 30, 2021. Using the expected returns and volatility of the asset 
classes in which the funds are invested, we produced five thousand stochastic outcomes for this period based 
on the recently completed Asset Liability Management process. We then selected annual returns that 
approximate the 5th, 25th, 50th, 75th, and 95th percentiles for these outcomes. For example, of all the 4-year 
outcomes generated in the stochastic analysis, approximately 25 percent of them had an average annual 
return of 4.0 percent or less. 


Required contributions outside of this range are also possible. In particular, whereas it is unlikely that 
investment returns will average less than 1.0 percent or greater than 12.0 percent over this four-year period, 
the possibility of a single investment return less than 1.0 percent or greater than 12.0 percent in any given 
year is much greater. 


Assumed Annual Return From 
2018-19 through 2020-21 


Projected Employer Contributions 


2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
1.0% 


 Normal Cost 13.1% 13.1% 13.1% 13.1% 
 UAL Contribution $1,000 $1,300 $1,500 $1,700 


4.0% 
 Normal Cost 13.1% 13.1% 13.1% 13.1% 
 UAL Contribution $1,000 $1,100 $1,100 $1,200 


7.0% 
 Normal Cost 13.1% 13.1% 13.1% 13.1% 
 UAL Contribution $1,000 $880 $740 $620 


9.0% 
 Normal Cost 13.1% 13.4% 13.7% 14.0% 
 UAL Contribution $1,000 $810 $600 $400 


12.0% 
 Normal Cost 13.1% 13.4% 13.7% 14.0% 
 UAL Contribution $1,000 $600 $190 $0 


Given the temporary suspension of the Risk Mitigation Policy during the period over which the discount rate 
assumption is being phased down to 7.0 percent, the projections above were performed without reflection of 
any possible impact of this Policy for Fiscal Year 2020-21. In addition, the projections above do not reflect the 
recent changes to the new amortization policy effective with the June 30, 2019 valuation but the impact on 
the results above is expected to be minimal. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 15 


Analysis of Discount Rate Sensitivity 
Shown below are various valuation results as of June 30, 2017 assuming alternate discount rates. Results are 
shown using the current discount rate of 7.25 percent as well as alternate discount rates of 6.0 percent, 7.0 
percent, and 8.0 percent. The alternate rate of 7.0 percent was selected since the Board has adopted this rate 
as the final discount rate at the end of the three-year phase-in of the reduction in this assumption. The rates 
of 6.0 percent and 8.0 percent were selected since they illustrate the impact of a 1 percent increase or 
decrease to the 7.0 percent assumption. This analysis shows the potential plan impacts if the PERF were to 
realize investment returns of 6.0 percent, 7.0 percent, or 8.0 percent over the long-term. 


This type of analysis gives the reader a sense of the long-term risk to required contributions. For a measure of 
funded status that is appropriate for assessing the sufficiency of plan assets to cover estimated termination 
liabilities, please see “Hypothetical Termination Liability” at the end of this section. 


Sensitivity Analysis 


As of June 30, 2017 Plan’s Total 
Normal Cost 


Accrued 
Liability 


Unfunded 
Accrued Liability 


Funded 
Status 


7.25% (current discount rate) 25.034% $26,197 $587 97.8% 
6.0% 32.466% $31,071 $5,461 82.4% 
7.0% 26.066% $26,981 $1,371 94.9% 
8.0% 21.181% $23,622 $(1,988) 108.4% 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 16 


Volatility Ratios 
Actuarial calculations are based on a number of assumptions about long-term demographic and economic 
behavior. Unless these assumptions (terminations, deaths, disabilities, retirements, salary growth, and 
investment return) are exactly realized each year, there will be differences on a year-to-year basis. The year-
to-year differences between actual experience and the assumptions are called actuarial gains and losses and 
serve to lower or raise required employer contributions from one year to the next. Therefore, employer 
contributions will inevitably fluctuate, especially due to the ups and downs of investment returns. 


Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR) 


Plans that have higher asset-to-payroll ratios experience more volatile employer contributions (as a 
percentage of payroll) due to investment return. For example, a plan with an asset-to-payroll ratio of 8 may 
experience twice the contribution volatility due to investment return volatility, than a plan with an asset-to-
payroll ratio of 4. Shown below is the asset volatility ratio, a measure of the plan’s current contribution 
volatility. It should be noted that this ratio is a measure of the current situation. It increases over time but 
generally tends to stabilize as the plan matures. 


Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR) 


Plans that have higher liability-to-payroll ratios experience more volatile employer contributions (as a 
percentage of payroll) due to investment return and changes in liability. For example, a plan with a liability-to-
payroll ratio of 8 is expected to have twice the contribution volatility of a plan with a liability-to-payroll ratio of 
4. The liability volatility ratio is also shown in the table below. It should be noted that this ratio indicates a
longer-term potential for contribution volatility. The asset volatility ratio, described above, will tend to move
closer to the liability volatility ratio as the plan matures. Since the liability volatility ratio is a long-term
measure, it is shown below at the current discount rate (7.25 percent) as well as the discount rate the Board
has adopted to determine the contribution requirement in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation (7.00
percent).


Rate Volatility As of June 30, 2017 


1. Market Value of Assets $ 25,610 


2. Payroll 77,072 


3. Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR) [(1) / (2)] 0.3 


4. Accrued Liability $ 26,197 


5. Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR) [(4) / (2)] 0.3 


6. Accrued Liability (7.00% discount rate) 26,981 


7. Projected Liability Volatility Ratio [(6) / (2)] 0.4 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 17 


Hypothetical Termination Liability 
The hypothetical termination liability is an estimate of the financial position of the plan had the contract with 
CalPERS been terminated as of June 30, 2017. The plan liability on a termination basis is calculated differently 
compared to the plan’s ongoing funding liability. For the hypothetical termination liability calculation, both 
compensation and service are frozen as of the valuation date and no future pay increases or service accruals 
are assumed. This measure of funded status is not appropriate for assessing the need for future employer 
contributions in the case of an ongoing plan, that is, for an employer that continues to provide CalPERS 
retirement benefits to active employees. 


A more conservative investment policy and asset allocation strategy was adopted by the CalPERS Board for 
the Terminated Agency Pool. The Terminated Agency Pool has limited funding sources since no future 
employer contributions will be made. Therefore, expected benefit payments are secured by risk-free assets 
and benefit security for members is increased while funding risk is limited. However, this asset allocation has a 
lower expected rate of return than the PERF and consequently, a lower discount rate is assumed. The lower 
discount rate for the Terminated Agency Pool results in higher liabilities for terminated plans. 


The effective termination discount rate will depend on actual market rates of return for risk-free securities on 
the date of termination. As market discount rates are variable, the table below shows a range for the 
hypothetical termination liability based on the lowest and highest interest rates observed during an 
approximate 2-year period centered around the valuation date. 


Market 
Value of  


Assets (MVA) 


Hypothetical 
Termination 
   Liability1,2 


 @ 1.75% 


Funded  
Status 


Unfunded 
Termination 


Liability 
@ 1.75%


Hypothetical 
Termination 


    Liability1,2 
 @ 3.00% 


Funded 
Status 


Unfunded 
Termination 


Liability 
@ 3.00% 


$25,610 $74,577 34.3% $48,967 $59,483 43.1% $33,873 


1 The hypothetical liabilities calculated above include a 5 percent mortality contingency load in accordance with Board policy. 
Other actuarial assumptions can be found in Appendix A. 


2 The current discount rate assumption used for termination valuations is a weighted average of the 10-year and 30-year 
U.S. Treasury yields where the weights are based on matching asset and liability durations as of the termination date. The 
discount rates used in the table are based on 20-year Treasury bonds, rounded to the nearest quarter percentage point, 
which is a good proxy for most plans. The 20-year Treasury yield was 2.61 percent on June 30, 2017, and was 2.83 
percent on January 31, 2018. 


In order to terminate the plan, you must first contact our Retirement Services Contract Unit to initiate a 
Resolution of Intent to terminate. The completed Resolution will allow the plan actuary to give you a 
preliminary termination valuation with a more up-to-date estimate of the plan liabilities. CalPERS advises you 
to consult with the plan actuary before beginning this process. 


$25,610 $74,577 34.3% $48,967 $59,483 43.1% $33,8731







Page: 23
Number: 1 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 1:03:47 PM 
The CalPERS PEPRA termination is based on bond rates. It is hypothetical and would be between $34,000 and $75,000. This would only be 
determined at the time of termination. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2017 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 18 


Participant Data 
The table below shows a summary of your plan’s member data upon which this valuation is based: 


June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017 


Reported Payroll $ 70,919 $ 77,072 
Projected Payroll for Contribution Purposes $ 77,495 $ 83,912 


Number of Members 
  Active 1 1 
  Transferred 1 0 
  Separated 0 1 
  Retired 0 0 


List of Class 1 Benefit Provisions 
This plan has the additional Class 1 Benefit Provisions: 


 None 


Reported Payroll $ 70,919 $ 77,072
Projected Payroll for Contribution Purposes $ 77,495 $ 83,912


Number of Members
Active 1 1
Transferred 1 0
Separated 0 1
Retired 0 0


1







Page: 24
Number: 1 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 1:04:24 PM 







Plan’s Major Benefit Options







  


 


 
SECTION 1 – Plan Specific Information for the PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 


Plan’s Major Benefit Options 
Shown below is a summary of the major optional benefits for which your agency has contracted. A description of principal standard and optional plan provisions 
is in Appendix B within Section 2 of this report. 


 
 Contract package 


{sum_of_major_ben_1} Active 
Police       


Benefit Provision        
        
Benefit Formula 2.7% @ 57       


Social Security Coverage No       
Full/Modified Full       


        
Employee Contribution Rate 12.00%       
        
Final Average Compensation Period Three Year       
        
Sick Leave Credit Yes       
        
Non-Industrial Disability Standard       
        
Industrial Disability Yes       
        
Pre-Retirement Death Benefits        


Optional Settlement 2 Yes       
1959 Survivor Benefit Level level 4       
Special  Yes       
Alternate (firefighters) No       


        
Post-Retirement Death Benefits        


Lump Sum $500       
Survivor Allowance (PRSA) No       


        
COLA 2%       
        
        


        
        


        


        
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool   Page 20 
    







  


 


 


Section 2 


 


C A L I F O R N I A  P U B L I C  E M P L O Y E E S ’  R E T I R E M E N T  S Y S T E M  


 
 
 


Section 2 may be found on the CalPERS website 
(www.calpers.ca.gov) in the Forms and  


Publications section 








 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
Actuarial Office 
400 Q Street, Sacramento, CA 95811 |Phone: (916) 795-3000 | Fax: (916) 795-2744 
888 CalPERS (or 888-225-7377) | TTY: (877) 249-7442 | www.calpers.ca.gov  
 


 


July 2019 
 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
(CalPERS ID: 7381511111) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2018 


Dear Employer, 


Attached to this letter, you will find the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation report of your CalPERS pension plan. 
Provided in this report is the determination of the minimum required employer contributions for Fiscal 
Year 2020-21.  In addition, the report contains important information regarding the current financial status of the 
plan as well as projections and risk measures to aid in planning for the future. 


Because this plan is in a risk pool, the following valuation report has been separated into two sections: 


 Section 1 contains specific information for the plan including the development of the current and projected 
employer contributions, and 


 Section 2 contains the Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation appropriate to the plan as of June 30, 2018. 


Section 2 can be found on the CalPERS website (www.calpers.ca.gov). From the home page, go to “Forms & 
Publications” and select “View All”. In the search box, enter “Risk Pool” and from the results list download the 
Miscellaneous or Safety Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation Report as appropriate. 


Your June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation report contains important actuarial information about your pension plan at 
CalPERS. Your assigned CalPERS staff actuary, whose signature appears in the Actuarial Certification section on page 
1, is available to discuss the report with you after August 1, 2019. 


Actuarial valuations are based on assumptions regarding future plan experience including investment return and payroll 
growth, eligibility for the types of benefits provided, and longevity among retirees. The CalPERS Board of Administration 
adopts these assumptions after considering the advice of CalPERS actuarial and investment teams and other 
professionals. Each actuarial valuation reflects all prior differences between actual and assumed experience and adjusts 
the contribution rates as needed. This valuation is based on an investment return assumption of 7.0% which was 
adopted by the board in December 2016. Other assumptions used in this report are those recommended in the CalPERS 
Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions report from December 2017. 


Required Contribution 


The exhibit below displays the minimum employer contributions, before any cost sharing, for Fiscal Year 2020-21 along 
with estimates of the required contributions for Fiscal Year 2021-22. Member contributions other than cost sharing 
(whether paid by the employer or the employee) are in addition to the results shown below. The employer 
contributions in this report do not reflect any cost sharing arrangements you may have with your 
employees. 


  
  


Fiscal Year Employer Normal 
Cost Rate 


Employer Amortization of 
Unfunded Accrued Liability 


PEPRA Employee 
Rate 


2020-21 13.044% $1,914 13.000% 
    


Projected 
Results 


   


2021-22 13.0% $2,000  TBD 







PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
(CalPERS ID: 7381511111) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2018 
Page 1 
 
 


 


The actual investment return for Fiscal Year 2018-19 was not known at the time this report was prepared. The 
projections above assume the investment return for that year would be 7.00 percent. If the actual investment 
return for Fiscal Year 2018-19 differs from 7.00 percent, the actual contribution requirements for the 
projected years will differ from those shown above.  For additional details regarding the assumptions and 
methods used for these projections please refer to the “Projected Employer Contributions” in the “Highlights and 
Executive Summary” section. This section also contains projected required contributions through fiscal year 2025-26. 


Changes from Previous Year’s Valuation 


CalPERS continues to strive to provide comprehensive risk assessments regarding plan funding and sustainability 
consistent with the Board of Administration’s pension and investment beliefs. Your report this year includes new metrics 
on plan maturity in recognition of the fact that most pension plans at CalPERS are maturing as anticipated. As plans 
mature, they become more sensitive to risks than plans that are less mature. The “Risk Analysis” section of your report 
will help you understand how your plan is affected by investment return volatility and other economic assumptions. 
We have included plan sensitivity analysis with respect to longevity and inflation to further that discussion and 
encourage you to review our most recent Annual Review of Funding Levels and Risks report on our website that takes 
a holistic view of the system. 


Upcoming Change for June 30, 2019 Valuations 


The CalPERS Board of Administration has adopted a new amortization policy effective with the June 30, 2019 actuarial 
valuation. The new policy shortens the period over which actuarial gains and losses are amortized from 30 years to 20 
years with the payments computed using a level dollar amount. In addition, the new policy removes the 5-year ramp-
up and ramp-down on Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) bases attributable to assumption changes and non-investment 
gains/losses. The new policy removes the 5-year ramp-down on investment gains/losses. These changes will apply 
only to new UAL bases established on or after June 30, 2019. 


Besides the above noted changes, there may also be changes specific to the plan such as contract amendments and 
funding changes. 


Further descriptions of general changes are included in the “Highlights and Executive Summary” section and in Appendix 
A, “Statement of Actuarial Data, Methods and Assumptions” of the Section 2 report.  


We understand that you might have a number of questions about these results. While we are very interested in 
discussing these results with your agency, in the interest of allowing us to give every public agency their results, we 
ask that you wait until after August 1 2019 to contact us with actuarial questions. 


If you have other questions, please call our customer contact center at (888) CalPERS or (888-225-7377). 
 
 
Sincerely, 


 
SCOTT TERANDO 
Chief Actuary







 
 
CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 


 
 
 


 
 
 


Actuarial Valuation 
as of June 30, 2018 


 
for the 


 PEPRA Safety Police Plan 
of the 


Kensington Community Services District 
(CalPERS ID: 7381511111) 


 
Required Contributions 


for Fiscal Year 
July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021







 
 
CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 


Table of Contents 
 


Section 1 – Plan Specific Information 
 
Section 2 – Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation Information







 
 
CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 


 


Section 1 


C A L I F O R N I A  P U B L I C  E M P L O Y E E S ’  R E T I R E M E N T  S Y S T E M  


 
 
 


Plan Specific Information  
for the 


PEPRA Safety Police Plan 
 of the 


Kensington Community Services District 
 


(CalPERS ID: 7381511111) 
(Valuation Rate Plan ID: 25859)







 
 
CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 6 
 
 
 
 


Table of Contents 
 
 
 
Actuarial Certification            1 
 
Highlights and Executive Summary 


Introduction 3 
Purpose of Section 1 3 
Required Employer Contributions 4 
Plan’s Funded Status 5 
Projected Employer Contributions 5 
Changes Since the Prior Year’s Valuation 6 
Subsequent Events 6 


 
 
Assets and Liabilities 


Breakdown of Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability 8 
Allocation of Plan’s Share of Pool’s Experience/Assumption Change 8 
Development of Plan’s Share of Pool’s Market Value of Assets 8 
Schedule of Plan’s Amortization Bases 9 
Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 11 
Employer Contribution History 13 
Funding History 13 


 
 
Risk Analysis 


Future Investment Return Scenarios 15 
Discount Rate Sensitivity 16 
Mortality Rate Sensitivity 16 
Inflation Rate Sensitivity 17 
Maturity Measures 17 
Hypothetical Termination Liability 19 


 
 
Participant Data          20 
 
List of Class 1 Benefit Provisions        20 
 
Plan’s Major Benefit Options         21 
 
PEPRA Member Contribution Rates        22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 1 
 
 


 


Actuarial Certification 
 
Section 1 of this report is based on the member and financial data contained in our records as of June 30, 2018 
which was provided by your agency and the benefit provisions under your contract with CalPERS. Section 2 of 
this report is based on the member and financial data as of June 30, 2018 provided by employers participating 
in the Safety Risk Pool to which the plan belongs and benefit provisions under the CalPERS contracts for those 
agencies. 


As set forth in Section 2 of this report, the pool actuaries have certified that, in their opinion, the valuation of the 
risk pool containing your PEPRA Safety Police Plan has been performed in accordance with generally accepted 
actuarial principles consistent with standards of practice prescribed by the Actuarial Standards Board, and that 
the assumptions and methods are internally consistent and reasonable for the risk pool as of the date of this 
valuation and as prescribed by the CalPERS Board of Administration according to provisions set forth in the 
California Public Employees’ Retirement Law. 


Having relied upon the information set forth in Section 2 of this report and based on the census and benefit 
provision information for the plan, it is my opinion as the plan actuary that Unfunded Accrued Liability amortization 
bases as of June 30, 2018 and employer contribution as of July 1, 2020, have been properly and accurately 
determined in accordance with the principles and standards stated above. 


The undersigned is an actuary for CalPERS, a member of both the American Academy of Actuaries and Society 
of Actuaries and meets the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial 
opinion contained herein. 


 
 


 


 
TONY CUNY, ASA, MAAA 
Associate Pension Actuary, CalPERS 
Plan Actuary 


 
 


  


 







 


 
 


 
 


Highlights and Executive Summary 
 
 


 Introduction 
 
 Purpose of Section 1 


 
 Required Employer Contributions 


 
 Plan’s Funded Status 


 
 Projected Employer Contributions 


 
 Changes Since the Prior Year’s Valuation 


 
 Subsequent Events







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 3  
 
 


 


Introduction 
This report presents the results of the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation of the PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the 
Kensington Community Services District of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). This 
actuarial valuation sets the required employer contributions for Fiscal Year 2020-21. 


Purpose of Section 1 
This Section 1 report for the PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District of the 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) was prepared by the plan actuary in order to: 


 Set forth the assets and accrued liabilities of this plan as of June 30, 2018; 
 Determine the minimum required employer contribution for this plan for the fiscal year July 1, 2020 


through June 30, 2021; and 
 Provide actuarial information as of June 30, 2018 to the CalPERS Board of Administration and other 


interested parties. 


The pension funding information presented in this report should not be used in financial reports subject to GASB 
Statement No. 68 for a Cost Sharing Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan. A separate accounting valuation 
report for such purposes is available from CalPERS and details for ordering are available on our website. 


The measurements shown in this actuarial valuation may not be applicable for other purposes. The employer 
should contact their actuary before disseminating any portion of this report for any reason that is not explicitly 
described above. 


Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements presented in this report 
due to such factors as the following: plan experience differing from that anticipated by the economic or 
demographic assumptions; changes in economic or demographic assumptions; changes in actuarial policies; and 
changes in plan provisions or applicable law. 


California Actuarial Advisory Panel Recommendations 


This report includes all the basic disclosure elements as described in the Model Disclosure Elements for Actuarial 
Valuation Reports recommended in 2011 by the California Actuarial Advisory Panel (CAAP), with the exception 
of including the original base amounts of the various components of the unfunded liability in the Schedule of 
Amortization Bases shown on page 10. 


Additionally, this report includes the following “Enhanced Risk Disclosures” also recommended by the CAAP in 
the Model Disclosure Elements document and consistent with the recommendations of Actuarial Standard of 
Practice No. 51: 


 A “Scenario Test,” projecting future results under different investment income scenarios. 
 A “Sensitivity Analysis,” showing the impact on current valuation results using alternative discount rates 


of 6.0 percent and 8.0 percent. 
 A “Sensitivity Analysis,” showing the impact on current valuation results using a 1.0 percent plus or 


minus change in the inflation rate.   
 A “Sensitivity Analysis,” showing the impact on current valuation results assuming post-retirement rates 


of mortality are 10 percent lower or 10 percent higher than our current mortality assumptions adopted 
in 2017. This type of analysis highlights the impact on the plan of improving or worsening mortality 
over the long-term. 


 Plan maturity measures which indicate how sensitive a plan may be to the risks noted above. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 4  
 
 


 


Required Employer Contributions 
    Fiscal Year 


Required Employer Contributions    2020-21 
Employer Normal Cost Rate    13.044% 


  Plus, Either     
1) Monthly Employer Dollar UAL Payment   $ 159.48 
   Or     
2) Annual UAL Prepayment Option*   $ 1,850 


The total minimum required employer contribution is the sum of the Plan’s Employer Normal Cost Rate 
(expressed as a percentage of payroll) plus the Employer Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) Contribution 
Amount (billed monthly in dollars). 
 
* Only the UAL portion of the employer contribution can be prepaid (which must be received in full no 
later than July 31). Any prepayment totaling over $5 million requires a 72-hour notice email to 
FCSD_public_agency_wires@calpers.ca.gov. Plan Normal Cost contributions will be made as part of the 
payroll reporting process. If there is contractual cost sharing or other change, this amount will change.  
 
In accordance with Sections 20537 and 20572 of the Public Employees’ Retirement Law, if a contracting 
agency fails to remit the required contributions when due, interest and penalties may apply. 


 
 Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 
  2019-20  2020-21 
Development of Normal Cost as a Percentage of Payroll1     


Base Total Normal Cost for Formula  25.034%  26.044% 
Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits2     
    None  0.000%  0.000% 
Phase out of Normal Cost Difference3  0.000%  0.000% 
Plan’s Total Normal Cost  25.034%  26.044% 
Plan's Employee Contribution Rate4  12.000%  13.000% 
Employer Normal Cost Rate  13.034%  13.044% 


     
Projected Payroll for the Contribution Fiscal Year $ 83,912 $ 176,019 


     
Estimated Employer Contributions Based on Projected Payroll   


Plan’s Estimated Employer Normal Cost $ 10,937 $ 22,960 
Plan’s Payment on Amortization Bases5  429  1,914 


% of Projected Payroll (illustrative only)  0.512%  1.087% 
     
Estimated Total Employer Contribution $ 11,366 $ 24,874 


% of Projected Payroll (illustrative only)  13.546%  14.131% 
 


1 The results shown for Fiscal Year 2019-20 reflect the prior year valuation and may not take into account any lump sum 
payment, side fund payoff, or rate adjustment made after April 30, 2018. 


2 Section 2 of this report contains a list of Class 1 benefits and corresponding surcharges for each benefit. 
3 The normal cost difference is phased out over a five-year period. The phase out of normal cost difference is 100 percent 


for the first year of pooling, and is incrementally reduced by 20 percent of the original normal cost difference for each 
subsequent year.  This is non-zero only for plans that joined a pool within the past 5 years.  Most plans joined a pool June 
30, 2003, when risk pooling was implemented. 


4 For detail regarding the determination of the required PEPRA employee contribution rate see Section on PEPRA Member 
Contribution Rates. 


5 See page 10 for a breakdown of the Amortization Bases. 


Employer Normal Cost Rate 13.044%


2) Annual UAL Prepayment Option* $ 1,850


Projected Payroll for the Contribution Fiscal Year $ 83,912 $ 176,019


1


2


3







Summary of Comments on ABCDEF
Page: 10


Number: 1 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 1:13:15 PM 


Number: 2 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 1:13:42 PM 
We will need to pay this amount by July 31, 2020. 


Number: 3 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 1:15:29 PM 
The $176,019 total payroll number is based on payroll of 2 PEPRA employees as of June 30, 2018. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 5  
 
 


 


Plan’s Funded Status 
June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018 


1. Present Value of Projected Benefits (PVB) $ 307,807 $ 686,690 
2. Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability (AL)  26,197  70,066 
3. Plan’s Market Value of Assets (MVA)  25,610  65,765 
4. Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) [(2) - (3)]  587  4,301 
5. Funded Ratio [(3) / (2)]  97.8%  93.9% 


This measure of funded status is an assessment of the need for future employer contributions based on the 
selected actuarial cost method used to fund the plan. The UAL is the present value of future employer 
contributions for service that has already been earned and is in addition to future normal cost contributions for 
active members. For a measure of funded status that is appropriate for assessing the sufficiency of plan assets 
to cover estimated termination liabilities, please see “Hypothetical Termination Liability” in the “Risk Analysis” 
section. 


Projected Employer Contributions 
The table below shows projected employer contributions (before cost sharing) for the next six fiscal years. 
Projected results reflect the adopted changes to the discount rate described in Appendix A, “Statement of 
Actuarial Data, Methods and Assumptions” of the Section 2 report. The projections also assume that all actuarial 
assumptions will be realized and that no further changes to assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will 
occur during the projection period. 


 Required 
Contribution 


Projected Future Employer Contributions 
(Assumes 7.00% Return for Fiscal Year 2018-19) 


Fiscal Year 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 


Normal Cost % 13.044% 13.0% 13.0% 13.0% 13.0% 13.0% 
UAL Payment $1,914 $2,000 $2,000 $2,100 $2,100 $0 


Changes in the UAL due to actuarial gains or losses as well as changes in actuarial assumptions or methods are 
amortized using a 5-year ramp up. For more information, please see “Amortization of the Unfunded Actuarial 
Accrued Liability” under “Actuarial Methods” in Appendix A of Section 2. This method phases in the impact of 
unanticipated changes in UAL over a 5-year period and attempts to minimize employer cost volatility from year 
to year. As a result of this methodology, dramatic changes in the required employer contributions in any one 
year are less likely. However, required contributions can change gradually and significantly over the next five 
years. In years where there is a large increase in UAL the relatively small amortization payments during the 
ramp up period could result in a funded ratio that is projected to decrease initially while the contribution impact 
of the increase in the UAL is phased in. 


For projected contributions under alternate investment return scenarios, please see the “Future Investment 
Return Scenarios” in the “Risk Analysis” section. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 6  
 
 


 


Changes Since the Prior Year’s Valuation 
Benefits 


None. This valuation generally reflects plan changes by amendments effective before the date of the report. 
Please refer to the “Plan’s Major Benefit Options” and Appendix B of Section 2 for a summary of the plan 
provisions used in this valuation.  


Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 


In December of 2016 the CalPERS Board of Administration lowered the discount rate from 7.50 percent to 7.00 
percent using a three-year phase-in beginning with the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation. The minimum 
employer contributions for Fiscal Year 2020-21 determined in this valuation were calculated using a discount 
rate of 7.00 percent, payroll growth of 2.75 percent and an inflation rate of 2.50 percent. The projected employer 
contributions on Page 5 are calculated under the assumption that the discount rate remains at 7.00 percent 
going forward and that furthermore the realized rate of return on assets for Fiscal Year 2018-19 is 7.00 percent. 


The decision to reduce the discount rate was primarily based on reduced capital market assumptions provided 
by external investment consultants and CalPERS investment staff. The specific decision adopted by the Board 
reflected recommendations from CalPERS staff and additional input from employer and employee stakeholder 
groups. Based on the investment allocation adopted by the Board and capital market assumptions, the reduced 
discount rate assumption provides a more realistic assumption for the long-term investment return of the fund.  


CalPERS has implemented a new actuarial valuation software system for the June 30, 2018 valuation. With this 
new system we have refined and improved some of our calculation methodology. Any difference in liability 
between the old software and new software calculations is captured as a method change line item.   


Subsequent Events 


The CalPERS Board of Administration has adopted a new amortization policy effective with the June 30, 2019 
actuarial valuation. The new policy shortens the period over which actuarial gains and losses are amortized from 
30 years to 20 years with the payments computed using a level dollar amount. In addition, the new policy 
removes the 5-year ramp-up and ramp-down on UAL bases attributable to assumption changes and non-
investment gains/losses. The new policy removes the 5-year ramp-down on investment gains/losses. These 
changes will apply only to new UAL bases established on or after June 30, 2019. 


For inactive employers the new amortization policy imposes a maximum amortization period of 15 years for all 
unfunded accrued liabilities effective June 30, 2018. Furthermore, the plan actuary has the ability to shorten the 
amortization period on any valuation date based on the life expectancy of plan members and projected cash 
flow needs to the plan. The impact of this has been reflected in the current valuation results. 


The contribution requirements determined in this actuarial valuation report are based on demographic and 
financial information as of June 30, 2018. Changes in the value of assets subsequent to that date are not 
reflected. Investment returns below the assumed rate of return will increase the required contribution, while 
investment returns above the assumed rate of return will decrease the required contribution. 


This actuarial valuation report reflects statutory changes, regulatory changes and CalPERS Board actions through 
January 2019. Any subsequent changes or actions are not reflected. 







 


 
 
 


 
 


Assets and Liabilities 
 
 


 Breakdown of Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability 
 
 Allocation of Plan’s Share of Pool’s Experience/Assumption Change 


 
 Development of Plan’s Share of Pool’s Market Value of Assets 


 
 Schedule of Plan’s Amortization Bases 


 
 Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 


 
 Employer Contribution History 


 
 Funding History







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 8 
 
 


 


Breakdown of Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability 


 Active Members $ 66,953 
 Transferred Members   0 
 Terminated Members  3,113 
 Members and Beneficiaries Receiving Payments  0 
 Total $ 70,066 


 
 


Allocation of Plan’s Share of Pool’s 
Experience/Assumption Change 
It is the policy of CalPERS to ensure equity within the risk pools by allocating the pool’s experience gains/losses 
and assumption changes in a manner that treats each employer equitably and maintains benefit security for the 
members of the System while minimizing substantial variations in employer contributions. The Pool’s experience 
gains/losses and impact of assumption/method changes is allocated to the plan as follows: 
 


1. Plan’s Accrued Liability $ 70,066 
2. Projected UAL balance at 6/30/18   2,349 
3. Pool’s Accrued Liability1  22,716,935,494 
4. Sum of Pool’s Individual Plan UAL Balances at 6/30/181  5,835,345,753 
5. Pool’s 2017/18 Investment & Asset (Gain)/Loss1  (166,826,991) 
6. Pool’s 2017/18 Other (Gain)/Loss1  79,829,358 
7. Plan’s Share of Pool’s Asset (Gain)/Loss: [(1) - (2)] ÷ [(3) - (4)] × (5)  (669) 
8. Plan’s Share of Pool’s Other (Gain)/Loss: (1) ÷ (3) × (6)  246 
9. Plan’s New (Gain)/Loss as of 6/30/2018: (7) + (8)  (423) 
10. Increase in Pool’s Accrued Liability due to Change in Assumptions1  623,352,408 
11. Plan’s Share of Pool’s Change in Assumptions: (1) ÷ (3) × (10)  1,923 
12. Increase in Pool’s Accrued Liability due to Change in Method1  146,565,925 
13. Plan’s Share of Pool’s Change in Method: (1) ÷ (3) × (12)  452 


 
1 Does not include plans that transferred to Pool on the valuation date. 


Development of the Plan’s Share of Pool’s Market 
Value of Assets 


14.  Plan’s UAL: (2) + (9) + (11) + (13) $ 4,301 
15. Plan’s Share of Pool’s MVA: (1) - (14) $ 65,765 


 
 


  







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 9 
 
 


Schedule of Plan’s Amortization Bases 


On the next page is the schedule of the plan’s amortization bases. Note that there is a two-year lag between 
the valuation date and the start of the contribution fiscal year. 
 The assets, liabilities, and funded status of the plan are measured as of the valuation date: June 30, 2018. 
 The required employer contributions determined by the valuation are for the fiscal year beginning two years 


after the valuation date: Fiscal Year 2020-21. 


This two-year lag is necessary due to the amount of time needed to extract and test the membership and 
financial data, and the need to provide public agencies with their required employer contribution well in advance 
of the start of the fiscal year. 


The Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) is used to determine the employer contribution and therefore must be rolled 
forward two years from the valuation date to the first day of the fiscal year for which the contribution is being 
determined. The UAL is rolled forward each year by subtracting the expected payment on the UAL for the fiscal 
year and adjusting for interest. The expected payment on the UAL for a fiscal year is equal to the Expected 
Employer Contribution for the fiscal year minus the Expected Normal Cost for the year. The Employer Contribution 
for the first fiscal year is determined by the actuarial valuation two years ago and the contribution for the second 
year is from the actuarial valuation one year ago. Additional discretionary payments are reflected in the Expected 
Payments column in the fiscal year they were made by the agency. 


  







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool                    Page 10 
 
 


 


Schedule of Plan’s Amortization Bases 
 
 


         Amounts for Fiscal 2020-21 


Reason for Base 
Date 


Established 


Ramp 
Up/Down 
2020-21 


Escalat-
ion  


Rate 


Amorti-
zation 
Period 


Balance 
6/30/18 


Payment 
2018-19 


Balance 
6/30/19 


Payment 
2019-20 


Balance 
6/30/20 


Scheduled 
Payment  


for 2020-21 
FRESH START 06/30/18 No Ramp 2.750% 5 $4,301 $(1,585) $6,241 $(1,804) $8,544 $1,914 
TOTAL     $4,301 $(1,585) $6,241 $(1,804) $8,544 $1,914 


 
  
 
The (gain)/loss bases are the plan’s allocated share of the risk pool’s (gain)/loss for the fiscal year as disclosed in “Allocation of Plan’s Share of Pool’s 
Experience/Assumption Change” earlier in this section.  These (gain)/loss bases will be amortized according to Board policy over 30 years with a 5-year ramp-up. 
 
If the total Unfunded Liability is negative (i.e., plan has a surplus), the scheduled payment is $0, because the minimum required contribution under PEPRA must be at 
least equal to the normal cost. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool  Page 11 
 
 


Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 


The amortization schedule on the previous page shows the minimum contributions required according to 
CalPERS amortization policy. There has been considerable interest from many agencies in paying off these 
unfunded accrued liabilities sooner and the possible savings in doing so. As a result, we have provided alternate 
amortization schedules to help analyze the current amortization schedule and illustrate the advantages of 
accelerating unfunded liability payments.    


Shown on the following page are future year amortization payments based on: 1) the current amortization 
schedule reflecting the individual bases and remaining periods shown on the previous page, and 2) alternate 
“fresh start” amortization schedules using two sample periods that would both result in interest savings relative 
to the current amortization schedule. Note that the payments under each alternate scenario increase by 2.75 
percent for each year into the future. 


The Current Amortization Schedule typically contains individual bases that are both positive and negative.  
Positive bases result from plan changes, assumption changes or plan experience that result in increases to 
unfunded liability. Negative bases result from plan changes, assumption changes or plan experience that result 
in decreases to unfunded liability. The combination of positive and negative bases within an amortization 
schedule can result in unusual or problematic circumstances in future years such as: 


 A positive total unfunded liability with a negative total payment,      
 A negative total unfunded liability with a positive total payment, or       
 Total payments that completely amortize the unfunded liability over a very short period of time 


In any year where one of the above scenarios occurs, the actuary will consider corrective action such as replacing 
the existing unfunded liability bases with a single “fresh start” base and amortizing it over a reasonable period. 


The Current Amortization Schedule on the following page may appear to show that, based on the current 
amortization bases, one of the above scenarios will occur at some point in the future. It is impossible to know 
today whether such a scenario will in fact arise since there will be additional bases added to the amortization 
schedule in each future year. Should such a scenario arise in any future year, the actuary will take appropriate 
action based on guidelines in the CalPERS amortization policy. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool      Page 12 
 
 


Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 


 
  Alternate Schedules 


 Current Amortization  
Schedule 0 Year Amortization 0 Year Amortization 


Date Balance Payment Balance Payment Balance Payment 
6/30/2020 8,544 1,914 N/A N/A N/A N/A 
6/30/2021 7,162 1,966     
6/30/2022 5,630 2,020     
6/30/2023 3,934 2,076     
6/30/2024 2,062 2,133     
6/30/2025       
6/30/2026       
6/30/2027       
6/30/2028       
6/30/2029       
6/30/2030       
6/30/2031       
6/30/2032       
6/30/2033       
6/30/2034       
6/30/2035       
6/30/2036       
6/30/2037       
6/30/2038       
6/30/2039       
6/30/2040       
6/30/2041       
6/30/2042       
6/30/2043       
6/30/2044       
6/30/2045       
6/30/2046       
6/30/2047       
6/30/2048       
6/30/2049       
       
Totals  10,109  N/A  N/A 


Interest Paid 1,565  N/A  N/A 
Estimated Savings   N/A  N/A 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111  


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 13 
 
       
 
 


Employer Contribution History 
The table below provides a recent history of the required employer contributions for the plan, as determined by 
the annual actuarial valuation. It does not account for prepayments or benefit changes made during a fiscal year. 


[ 
Fiscal 
Year 


Employer 
Normal Cost 


Unfunded Liability 
Payment ($) 


2018 - 19 12.141% $1,687 
2019 - 20 13.034% $429 
2020 - 21 13.044% $1,914 


 


Funding History 
The funding history below shows the plan’s actuarial accrued liability, share of the pool’s market value of assets, 
share of the pool’s unfunded liability, funded ratio, and annual covered payroll. 


 
 


Valuation 
Date 


 
 
 


Accrued 
Liability 


(AL)  


Share of Pool’s 
Market Value of 


Assets (MVA)  


Plan’s Share of 
Pool’s Unfunded 


Liability 


 
Funded 
Ratio 


 
 
 


Annual  
Covered 
Payroll 


06/30/2016 $ 4,457 $ 4,131 $ 326 92.7% $ 70,919 
06/30/2017  26,197  25,610  587 97.8%  77,072 
06/30/2018  70,066  65,765  4,301 93.9%  162,261 


 


2020 - 21 13.044% $1,914


06/30/2018 70,066 65,765 4,301 93.9% 162,261


1


2







Page: 19
Number: 1 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 1:16:05 PM 


Number: 2 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 1:16:08 PM 







 


 


 


Risk Analysis 


 Future Investment Return Scenarios 
 


 Discount Rate Sensitivity 
 


 Mortality Rate Sensitivity 
 


 Inflation Rate Sensitivity 
 


 Maturity Measures 
 


 Hypothetical Termination Liability







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 15 
 
 


Future Investment Return Scenarios 
Analysis was performed to determine the effects of various future investment returns on required employer 
contributions. The projections below provide a range of results based on five investment return scenarios 
assumed to occur during the next four fiscal years (2018-19, 2019-20, 2020-21 and 2021-22). The projections 
also assume that all other actuarial assumptions will be realized and that no further changes to assumptions, 
contributions, benefits, or funding will occur. 


For fiscal years 2018-19, 2019-20, 2020-21, and 2021-22, each scenario assumes an alternate fixed annual 
return. The fixed return assumptions for the five scenarios are 1.0 percent, 4.0 percent, 7.0 percent, 9.0 percent 
and 12.0 percent. 


These alternate investment returns were chosen based on stochastic analysis of possible future investment 
returns over the four-year period ending June 30, 2022. Using the expected returns and volatility of the asset 
classes in which the funds are invested, we produced five thousand stochastic outcomes for this period based 
on the most recently completed Asset Liability Management process. We then selected annual returns that 
approximate the 5th, 25th, 50th, 75th, and 95th percentiles for these outcomes. For example, of all the 4-year 
outcomes generated in the stochastic analysis, approximately 25 percent of them had an average annual return 
of 4.0 percent or less. 


Required contributions outside of this range are also possible. In particular, whereas it is unlikely that investment 
returns will average less than 1.0 percent or greater than 12.0 percent over this four-year period, the possibility 
of a single investment return less than 1.0 percent or greater than 12.0 percent in any given year is much 
greater. 


 


Assumed Annual Return From 
2019-20 through 2021-22 


Projected Employer Contributions 


2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 
1.0%     
    Normal Cost 13.0% 13.0% 13.0% 13.0% 
    UAL Contribution $2,100 $2,300 $2,700 $3,100 
4.0%         
    Normal Cost 13.0% 13.0% 13.0% 13.0% 
    UAL Contribution $2,000 $2,200 $2,400 $2,600 
7.0%         
    Normal Cost 13.0% 13.0% 13.0% 13.0% 
    UAL Contribution $2,000 $2,000 $2,100 $2,100 
9.0%         
    Normal Cost 13.4% 13.7% 14.0% 13.6% 
    UAL Contribution $1,900 $2,000 $2,000 $0 
12.0%         
    Normal Cost 13.4% 13.7% 14.0% 13.6% 
    UAL Contribution $1,900 $0 $0 $0 


In addition, the projections above reflect the recent changes to the new amortization policy effective with the 
June 30, 2019 valuation. The projections above incorporate the impact of the CalPERS risk mitigation policy 
which reduces the discount rate when investment returns are above specified trigger points. 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 16 
 
 


 


Discount Rate Sensitivity 
 
Shown below are various valuation results as of June 30, 2018 assuming alternate discount rates. Results are 
shown using the current discount rate of 7.0 percent as well as alternate discount rates of 6.0 percent and 8.0 
percent. The rates of 6.0 percent and 8.0 percent were selected since they illustrate the impact of a 1 percent 
increase or decrease to the 7.0 percent assumption. This analysis shows the potential plan impacts if the PERF 
were to realize investment returns of 6.0 percent or 8.0 percent over the long-term. 
 
This type of analysis gives the reader a sense of the long-term risk to required contributions. For a measure of 
funded status that is appropriate for assessing the sufficiency of plan assets to cover estimated termination 
liabilities, please see “Hypothetical Termination Liability” at the end of this section. 
 


Sensitivity Analysis 


As of June 30, 2018 Plan’s Total 
Normal Cost 


Accrued 
Liability 


Unfunded 
Accrued Liability 


Funded 
Status 


7.0% (current discount rate) 26.044% $70,066 $4,301 93.9% 
6.0% 32.461% $81,774 $16,009 80.4% 
8.0% 21.147% $60,405 $(5,360) 108.9% 


Mortality Rate Sensitivity 


The following table looks at the change in the June 30, 2018 plan costs and funded ratio under two different 
longevity scenarios, namely assuming post-retirement rates of mortality are 10 percent lower or 10 percent 
higher than our current mortality assumptions adopted in 2017. This type of analysis highlights the impact on 
the plan of improving or worsening mortality over the long-term. 


As of June 30, 2018 Current Mortality 10% Lower 
Mortality Rates 


10% Higher 
Mortality Rates 


a) Accrued Liability $70,066 $71,431  $68,826 
b) Market Value of Assets $65,765 $65,765 $65,765 
c) Unfunded Liability 
(Surplus) [(a)-(b)] 


$4,301 $5,666 $3,061 


d) Funded Status 93.9% 92.1% 95.6% 


A 10 percent increase (decrease) in assumed mortality rates over the long-term would result in approximately 
a 1.7 percent increase (decrease) to the funded ratio. 


  







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 17 
 
 


Inflation Rate Sensitivity 


The following analysis looks at the change in the June 30, 2018 plan costs and funded ratio under two different 
inflation rate scenarios, namely assuming the liability inflation rate is 1 percent lower or 1 percent higher than 
the current valuation inflation rate assumption of 2.50%, while holding the discount rate fixed at 7.0%. This 
type of analysis highlights the impact on the plan of increased or decreased inflation of active salaries and retiree 
COLAs over the long-term. 


As of June 30, 2018 Current Inflation 
Rate -1% Inflation Rate +1% Inflation Rate 


a) Accrued Liability $70,066 $64,082 $74,854 
b) Market Value of Assets $65,765 $65,765 $65,765 
c) Unfunded Liability 
(Surplus) [(a)-(b)] 


$4,301  $(1,683) $9,089 


d) Funded Status 93.9% 102.6% 87.9% 


A decrease of 1 percent in the liability inflation rate (2.50 percent to 1.50 percent) reduces the Accrued Liability 
by 8.5 percent.  However, a 1 percent increase in the liability inflation rate (2.50 percent to 3.50 percent) 
increases the Accrued Liability by 6.8 percent. 


Maturity Measures 


As pension plans mature they become much more sensitive to risks than plans that are less mature. 
Understanding plan maturity and how it affects the ability of a pension plan to tolerate risk is important in 
understanding how the plan is impacted by investment return volatility, other economic variables and changes 
in longevity or other demographic assumptions. One way to look at the maturity level of CalPERS and its plans 
is to look at the ratio of a plan’s retiree liability to its total liability. A pension plan in its infancy will have a very 
low ratio of retiree liability to total liability. As the plan matures, the ratio starts increasing. A mature plan will 
often have a ratio above 0.60 to 0.65. For both CalPERS and other retirement systems in the United States, 
these ratios have been steadily increasing in recent years. 


Ratio of Retiree Accrued Liability to 
Total Accrued Liability June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018


   
1. Retired Accrued Liability 0 0 


2. Total Accrued Liability 26,197 70,066 


3. Ratio of Retiree AL to Total AL [(1) / (2)]  0.00 0.00


Another way to look at the maturity level of CalPERS and its plans is to look at the ratio of actives to retirees. A 
pension plan in its infancy will have a very high ratio of active to retired members. As the plan matures, and 
members retire, the ratio starts declining. A mature plan will often have a ratio near or below one. The average 
support ratio for CalPERS public agency plans is 1.25. 


Support Ratio June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018
   
1. Number of Actives 1 2 


2. Number of Retirees 0 0 


3. Support Ratio [(1) / (2)]  N/A N/A


 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 18 
 
 


Actuarial calculations are based on a number of assumptions about long-term demographic and economic 
behavior. Unless these assumptions (e.g., terminations, deaths, disabilities, retirements, salary growth, and 
investment return) are exactly realized each year, there will be differences on a year-to-year basis. The year-
to-year differences between actual experience and the assumptions are called actuarial gains and losses and 
serve to lower or raise required employer contributions from one year to the next. Therefore, employer 
contributions will inevitably fluctuate, especially due to the ups and downs of investment returns. 


Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR) 


Plans that have higher asset-to-payroll ratios experience more volatile employer contributions (as a percentage 
of payroll) due to investment return. For example, a plan with an asset-to-payroll ratio of 8 may experience 
twice the contribution volatility due to investment return volatility than a plan with an asset-to-payroll ratio of 
4. Shown below is the asset volatility ratio, a measure of the plan’s current contribution volatility. It should be 
noted that this ratio is a measure of the current situation. It increases over time but generally tends to stabilize 
as the plan matures. 


Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR) 


Plans that have higher liability-to-payroll ratios experience more volatile employer contributions (as a percentage 
of payroll) due to investment return and changes in liability. For example, a plan with a liability-to-payroll ratio 
of 8 is expected to have twice the contribution volatility of a plan with a liability-to-payroll ratio of 4. The liability 
volatility ratio is also shown in the table below. It should be noted that this ratio indicates a longer-term potential 
for contribution volatility. The asset volatility ratio, described above, will tend to move closer to the liability 
volatility ratio as the plan matures. 


Contribution Volatility  June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018 


1. Market Value of Assets $ 25,610 $ 65,765 


2. Payroll  77,072  162,261 


3. Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR) [(1) / (2)]  0.3  0.4 


4. Accrued Liability $ 26,197 $ 70,066 


5. Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR) [(4) / (2)]  0.3  0.4 


6. Accrued Liability (7.00% discount rate)  26,981  70,066 


7. Projected Liability Volatility Ratio [(6) / (2)]  0.4  0.4 


 







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 19 
 
 


Hypothetical Termination Liability 
The hypothetical termination liability is an estimate of the financial position of the plan had the contract with 
CalPERS been terminated as of June 30, 2018. The plan liability on a termination basis is calculated differently 
compared to the plan’s ongoing funding liability. For the hypothetical termination liability calculation, both 
compensation and service are frozen as of the valuation date and no future pay increases or service accruals 
are assumed. This measure of funded status is not appropriate for assessing the need for future employer 
contributions in the case of an ongoing plan, that is, for an employer that continues to provide CalPERS 
retirement benefits to active employees. 


A more conservative investment policy and asset allocation strategy was adopted by the CalPERS Board for the 
Terminated Agency Pool. The Terminated Agency Pool has limited funding sources since no future employer 
contributions will be made. Therefore, expected benefit payments are secured by risk-free assets and benefit 
security for members is increased while funding risk is limited. However, this asset allocation has a lower 
expected rate of return than the PERF and consequently, a lower discount rate is assumed. The lower discount 
rate for the Terminated Agency Pool results in higher liabilities for terminated plans. 


The effective termination discount rate will depend on actual market rates of return for risk-free securities on 
the date of termination. As market discount rates are variable, the table below shows a range for the hypothetical 
termination liability based on the lowest and highest interest rates observed during an approximate 2-year period 
centered around the valuation date. 


[] 
 


Market 
Value of  


Assets (MVA) 


Hypothetical 
Termination 
   Liability1,2 


 @ 2.50% 


Funded  
Status 


Unfunded 
Termination 


Liability 
@ 2.50% 


Hypothetical 
Termination 


    Liability1,2 
 @ 3.25% 


Funded 
Status 


Unfunded 
Termination 


Liability 
@ 3.25% 


$65,765 $121,027 54.3% $55,262 $104,244 63.1% $38,479 
  
 
1 The hypothetical liabilities calculated above include a 5 percent mortality contingency load in accordance with Board policy. 


Other actuarial assumptions can be found in Appendix A of the Section 2 report. 
2 The current discount rate assumption used for termination valuations is a weighted average of the 10-year and 30-year U.S. 


Treasury yields where the weights are based on matching asset and liability durations as of the termination date. The 
discount rates used in the table are based on 20-year Treasury bonds, rounded to the nearest quarter percentage point, 
which is a good proxy for most plans. The 20-year Treasury yield was 2.91 percent on June 30, 2018, and was 2.83 percent 
on January 31, 2019. 


 
In order to terminate the plan, you must first contact our Retirement Services Contract Unit to initiate a 
Resolution of Intent to Terminate. The completed Resolution will allow the plan actuary to give you a preliminary 
termination valuation with a more up-to-date estimate of the plan liabilities. CalPERS advises you to consult with 
the plan actuary before beginning this process. 


$65,765 $121,027 54.3% $55,262 $104,244 63.1% $38,4791







Page: 25
Number: 1 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 1:17:40 PM 
The CalPERS PEPRA termination is based on bond rates. It is hypothetical and would be between $38,000 and $121,000 . This would only 
be determined at the time of termination.   







CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 20 
 
 


 


Participant Data 
 
The table below shows a summary of your plan’s member data upon which this valuation is based:   
 


 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018 


Reported Payroll $ 77,072 $ 162,261 
Projected Payroll for Contribution Purposes $ 83,912 $ 176,019 
     
Number of Members     
     Active   1  2 
     Transferred  0  0 
     Separated  1  1 
     Retired  0  0 


 


 


List of Class 1 Benefit Provisions 
This plan has the additional Class 1 Benefit Provisions: 
 


 None 


Reported Payroll $ 77,072 $ 162,261
Projected Payroll for Contribution Purposes $ 83,912 $ 176,019


Number of Members
Active 1 2
Transferred 0 0
Separated 1 1
Retired 0 0


1







Page: 26
Number: 1 Author: kkorsak Subject: Highlight Date: 2/26/2020 1:18:33 PM 
This calculation is based on payroll data from June 30, 2018, where the district had 2 PEPRA employees







 
 
CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 
 


Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 21 
 
 


 


Plan’s Major Benefit Options 
Shown below is a summary of the major optional benefits for which your agency has contracted. A description of principal standard and optional plan provisions 
is in the following section of this Appendix. 
 
 Benefit Group 


Member Category Police       


Demographics        
Actives Yes       
Transfers/Separated Yes       
Receiving No       
Benefit Group Key        
Benefit Provision        
        
Benefit Formula 2.7% @ 57       


Social Security Coverage No       
Full/Modified Full       


        
Employee Contribution Rate 12.00%       
        
Final Average Compensation Period Three Year       
        
Sick Leave Credit Yes       
        
Non-Industrial Disability Standard       
        
Industrial Disability Standard       
        
Pre-Retirement Death Benefits        


Optional Settlement 2 Yes       
1959 Survivor Benefit Level Level 4       
Special Yes       
Alternate (firefighters) No       


        
Post-Retirement Death Benefits        


Lump Sum $500       
Survivor Allowance (PRSA) No       


        
COLA 2%       


 
    
 







 
 
CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 


 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 22 
 
 
 
 


PEPRA Member Contribution Rates 


The table below shows the determination of the PEPRA Member contribution rates based on 50 percent of the Total Normal 
Cost for each respective plan on June 30, 2018. Assembly Bill (AB) 340 created PEPRA that implemented new benefit formulas 
and a final compensation period as well as new contribution requirements for new employees. In accordance with Section 
Code 7522.30(b), “new members … shall have an initial contribution rate of at least 50 percent of the normal cost rate.” The 
normal cost for the plan is dependent on the benefit levels, actuarial assumptions and demographics of the plan particularly 
the entry age into the plan. Should the total normal cost of the plan change by one percent or more from the base total 
normal cost established for the plan, the new member rate shall be 50 percent of the new normal cost rounded to the nearest 
quarter percent. 


 
   Basis for Current Rate Rates Effective July 1, 2020 


Rate Plan 
Identifier Benefit Group Name 


Total 
Normal 


Cost 


Member 
Rate 


Total 
Normal 


Cost 
Change Change 


Needed 
Member 


Rate 


25859 Safety Police PEPRA Level 24.141% 12.000% 26.044% 1.903% Yes 13.000% 
 
 







 
 
CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2018 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the Kensington Community Services District 
CalPERS ID: 7381511111 
 


 
 


Section 2 


 


C A L I F O R N I A  P U B L I C  E M P L O Y E E S ’  R E T I R E M E N T  S Y S T E M  


 
 
 


Section 2 may be found on the CalPERS website 
(www.calpers.ca.gov) in the Forms and  


Publications section 


 


 













‹#
›


Ca
lP


ER
S 


CE
PP


T 
Pr


og
ra


m


Ke
ns


in
gt


on
 P


ol
ice


 P
ro


te
ct


io
n


an
d


Co
m


m
un


ity
 S


er
vic


es
 D


ist
ric


t
Fe


br
ua


ry
 2


5,
 2


02
0







‹#
›


W
hy


 P
re


fu
nd


 E
m


pl
oy


er
 P


en
sio


n
Co


nt
rib


ut
io


ns
?


 







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


in
gt


on
 P


ol
ice


 P
ro


te
ct


io
n 


an
d 


Co
m


m
un


ity
 S


er
vic


es
 D


ist
ric


t


W
hy


 P
re


fu
nd


 E
m


pl
oy


er
 P


en
sio


n 
Co


nt
rib


ut
io


ns
?


•
Em


pl
oy


er
 p


en
sio


n 
co


nt
rib


ut
io


ns
 a


re
 in


cr
ea


sin
g


–
Em


pl
oy


er
 b


ud
ge


ts
 a


re
 n


ot
 in


cr
ea


sin
g 


at
 th


e 
sa


m
e 


ra
te


•
As


se
t-l


ia
bi


lity
 re


la
tio


ns
hi


ps
 c


an
 b


e 
vo


la
tile


–
Ec


on
om


ic 
an


d 
in


ve
st


m
en


t v
ol


at
ilit


y
•


Em
pl


oy
er


s 
se


ek
in


g 
ge


ne
ra


l f
un


d 
in


ve
st


m
en


t a
lte


rn
at


ive
s


–
Lo


ok
in


g 
fo


r h
ig


he
r y


ie
ld


s 
th


an
 C


ou
nt


y 
tre


as
ur


y 
an


d 
LA


IF
•


In
cr


ea
se


d 
in


ve
st


m
en


t i
nc


om
e 


ca
n 


re
du


ce
 e


m
pl


oy
er


 p
en


sio
n


co
nt


rib
ut


io
ns


 fr
om


 p
rin


cip
al


 a
ss


et
s 


an
d 


sa
ve


 e
m


pl
oy


er
s


m
on


ey







‹#
›


Pe
ns


io
n 


Li
ab


ilit
ie


s


 







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


ing
to


n 
Po


lic
e 


Pr
ot


ec
tio


n 
an


d 
Co


m
m


un
ity


 S
er


vic
es


 D
ist


ric
t


Em
plo


ye
r P


en
sio


n 
Co


st 
Co


ns
ide


ra
tio


ns
•


No
rm


al 
co


st
–


On
go


ing
–


PE
PR


A 
is 


ch
ea


pe
r t


ha
n 


cla
ss


ic 
bu


t in
cr


ea
se


s w
ith


 p
ay


ro
ll


•
Un


fu
nd


ed
 a


cc
ru


ed
 lia


bil
itie


s (
UA


L)
–


Cu
rre


nt
ly 


ex
ist


 fo
r m


os
t a


ge
nc


ies
–


W
ill 


re
oc


cu
r if


 p
lan


 e
xp


er
ien


ce
 is


 n
eg


at
ive


•
Ov


er
all


 co
st 


tre
nd


s
–


Lik
ely


 to
 in


cr
ea


se
 fo


r 1
0 


ye
ar


s d
ue


 to
 u


nf
un


de
d 


lia
bil


itie
s


–
Lik


ely
 to


 d
ec


re
as


e 
wi


th
 P


EP
RA


 b
ut


 in
cr


ea
se


 w
ith


 p
ay


ro
ll


 







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


in
gt


on
 P


ol
ice


 P
ro


te
ct


io
n 


an
d 


Co
m


m
un


ity
 S


er
vic


es
 D


ist
ric


t


Em
pl


oy
er


 P
en


sio
n 


Co
nt


rib
ut


io
n 


Pr
oj


ec
tio


ns
*


*D
at


a 
fo


r 2
01


9-
20


25
 is


 fr
om


 6
/3


0/
20


17
 C


al
PE


RS
 a


ct
ua


ria
l v


al
ua


tio
n 


re
po


rt.
 D


at
a 


fo
r 2


02
5-


20
30


 a
re


 n
ot


 a
ct


ua
ria


l p
ro


je
ct


io
ns


.


Fi
sc


al
 Y


ea
r


Pa
yr


ol
l


No
rm


al
 C


os
t


Co
nt


rib
ut


io
n


(%
 o


f P
ay


ro
ll)


No
rm


al
 C


os
t


Co
nt


rib
ut


io
n


Un
fu


nd
ed


 A
cc


ru
ed


Li
ab


ili
ty


 P
ay


m
en


t
To


ta
l C


on
tri


bu
tio


n


20
19


-2
0


$2
22


,6
68


,2
05


9.
00


6%
$2


0,
05


3,
49


9
$4


6,
68


4,
99


9
$6


6,
73


8,
49


8


20
20


-2
1


$2
28


,2
35


,9
25


9.
7%


$2
2,


13
8,


88
5


$5
1,


44
4,


00
0


$7
3,


58
2,


88
5


20
21


-2
2


$2
34


,5
12


,4
13


9.
7%


$2
2,


74
7,


70
4


$5
7,


30
9,


00
0


$8
0,


05
6,


70
4


20
22


-2
3


$2
40


,9
61


,5
04


9.
7%


$2
3,


37
3,


26
6


$6
2,


18
4,


00
0


$8
5,


55
7,


26
6


20
23


-2
4


$2
47


,5
87


,9
46


9.
7%


$2
4,


01
6,


03
1


$6
4,


77
5,


00
0


$8
8,


79
1,


03
1


20
24


-2
5


$2
54


,3
96


,6
14


9.
7%


$2
4,


67
6,


47
2


$6
8,


05
1,


00
0


$9
2,


72
7,


47
2


20
25


-2
6


$2
60


,7
56


,5
29


9.
7%


$2
5,


29
3,


38
3


$6
1,


95
9,


34
9


$8
7,


25
2,


73
2


20
26


-2
7


$2
67


,2
75


,4
43


9.
7%


$2
5,


92
5,


71
8


$6
4,


50
6,


90
7


$9
0,


43
2,


62
5


20
27


-2
8


$2
73


,9
57


,3
29


9.
7%


$2
6,


57
3,


86
1


$6
6,


36
2,


18
2


$9
2,


93
6,


04
3


20
28


-2
9


$2
80


,8
06


,2
62


9.
7%


$2
7,


23
8,


20
7


$6
8,


27
0,


37
0


$9
5,


50
8,


57
7


20
29


-3
0


$2
87


,8
26


,4
18


9.
7%


$2
7,


91
9,


16
3


$7
0,


23
2,


57
4


$9
8,


15
1,


73
7







‹#
›


Pr
ef


un
di


ng
 P


en
sio


n 
Co


nt
rib


ut
io


ns


 







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


in
gt


on
 P


ol
ice


 P
ro


te
ct


io
n 


an
d 


Co
m


m
un


ity
 S


er
vic


es
 D


ist
ric


t


Pe
ns


io
n 


Co
nt


rib
ut


io
n 


To
ol


s 
fo


r E
m


pl
oy


er
s


•
Fu


ll p
re


-p
ay


m
en


t o
f a


nn
ua


l U
AL


 p
ay


m
en


t
•


Ad
di


tio
na


l d
isc


re
tio


na
ry


 p
ay


m
en


ts
 (A


DP
) o


f U
AL


•
Re


-a
m


or
tiz


at
io


n 
of


 b
as


es
 (“


Fr
es


h 
St


ar
t”)


•
Es


ta
bl


is
h 


“S
ec


tio
n 


11
5”


 p
en


si
on


 c
on


tri
bu


tio
n


pr
ef


un
di


ng
 tr


us
t


  







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


ing
to


n 
Po


lic
e 


Pr
ot


ec
tio


n 
an


d 
Co


m
m


un
ity


 S
er


vic
es


 D
ist


ric
t


Pe
ns


ion
 C


on
trib


ut
ion


 P
re


fu
nd


ing
 T


ru
st 


Op
tio


ns
•


Es
ta


bli
sh


 a
nd


 g
ro


w 
a 


co
nt


ing
en


cy
 re


se
rv


e
–


Fo
r r


ev
en


ue
 a


nd
 co


nt
rib


ut
ion


 vo
lat


ilit
y


•
Pr


ef
un


d 
fu


tu
re


 n
or


m
al 


co
st 


pa
ym


en
ts


•
Pr


ef
un


d 
fu


tu
re


 a
nn


ua
l U


AL
 p


ay
m


en
ts


•
Pr


ef
un


d 
fu


tu
re


 A
DP


’s
–


M
ak


e 
sm


all
er


 m
or


e 
fre


qu
en


t A
DP


’s
•M


itig
at


e 
m


ar
ke


t t
im


ing
 ris


k
  







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


in
gt


on
 P


ol
ice


 P
ro


te
ct


io
n 


an
d 


Co
m


m
un


ity
 S


er
vic


es
 D


ist
ric


t


Pe
ns


io
n 


Co
nt


rib
ut


io
n 


Pr
ef


un
di


ng
 T


ru
st


 B
en


ef
its


•
G


ro
w 


as
se


ts
 fo


r f
ut


ur
e 


pe
ns


io
n 


co
nt


rib
ut


io
ns


•
Re


ta
in


 liq
ui


di
ty


 o
f t


ru
st


 a
ss


et
s 


via
 re


im
bu


rs
em


en
t


•
In


ve
st


 a
ss


et
s 


ov
er


 d
iffe


re
nt


 ti
m


e 
ho


riz
on


s 
th


an
 p


en
sio


n 
fu


nd
•


In
ve


st
 a


ss
et


s 
wi


th
 le


ss
 v


ol
at


ilit
y 


th
an


 p
en


sio
n 


fu
nd


•
Ea


rn
 m


or
e 


in
ve


st
m


en
t i


nc
om


e 
th


an
 in


 s
ho


rte
r t


er
m


 o
pt


io
ns


(e
.g


. L
AI


F 
an


d 
Co


un
ty


 T
re


as
ur


y)
•


Irr
ev


oc
ab


ly 
de


di
ca


te
 a


ss
et


s 
fo


r f
ut


ur
e 


pe
ns


io
n 


co
nt


rib
ut


io
ns


 







‹#
›


Inv
es


tm
en


t M
an


ag
em


en
t


 







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


ing
to


n 
Po


lic
e 


Pr
ot


ec
tio


n 
an


d 
Co


m
m


un
ity


 S
er


vic
es


 D
ist


ric
t


In
ve


stm
en


t C
on


sid
er


at
ion


s
•


W
ha


t is
 m


y i
nv


es
tm


en
t t


im
e 


ho
riz


on
?


•
W


ha
t is


 th
e 


ap
pr


op
ria


te
 le


ve
l o


f in
ve


stm
en


t r
isk


?
•


W
ha


t is
 th


e 
as


so
cia


te
d 


lev
el 


of
 e


xp
ec


te
d 


inv
es


tm
en


t r
et


ur
n?


•
W


hic
h 


inv
es


tm
en


t s
tra


te
gy


 b
es


t m
at


ch
es


 m
y n


ee
ds


?
•


Ho
w 


do
 I 


es
ta


bli
sh


 re
ali


sti
c e


xp
ec


ta
tio


ns
?


•
Ho


w 
do


 I 
m


ea
su


re
 p


er
fo


rm
an


ce
?


 







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


in
gt


on
 P


ol
ice


 P
ro


te
ct


io
n 


an
d 


Co
m


m
un


ity
 S


er
vic


es
 D


ist
ric


t


CE
PP


T 
an


d 
CE


RB
T 


In
ve


st
m


en
t P


ol
ici


es


•
Ca


lP
ER


S 
Bo


ar
d 


ac
ce


pt
s 


in
ve


st
m


en
t f


id
uc


ia
ry


 re
sp


on
sib


ilit
y


–
G


C 
21


71
0-


21
71


5 
(C


EP
PT


)
–


G
C 


53
62


0-
53


62
2 


(C
ER


BT
)


•
Ca


lP
ER


S 
Bo


ar
d 


ap
pr


ov
es


 in
ve


st
m


en
t p


ol
icy


•
Po


lic
ie


s 
m


an
ag


ed
 c


om
pl


ia
nt


ly 
by


 th
e 


sa
m


e 
sk


ille
d


in
ve


st
m


en
t p


ro
fe


ss
io


na
ls 


th
at


 m
an


ag
e 


th
e 


Pu
bl


ic
Em


pl
oy


ee
s 


Re
tir


em
en


t F
un


d 
(P


ER
F)


–
Ex


te
rn


al
 a


ss
et


 c
la


ss
 m


an
ag


em
en


t b
y 


SS
gA


 







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


ing
to


n 
Po


lic
e 


Pr
ot


ec
tio


n 
an


d 
Co


m
m


un
ity


 S
er


vic
es


 D
ist


ric
t


CE
PP


T 
an


d 
CE


RB
T 


In
ve


stm
en


t P
oli


cie
s


•
In


ve
stm


en
t p


oli
cy


 co
m


pli
an


ce
•


Br
oa


d 
div


er
sif


ica
tio


n 
of


 a
ss


et
s


•
Pe


rfo
rm


an
ce


 m
ea


su
re


d 
ag


ain
st 


es
ta


bli
sh


ed
 b


en
ch


m
ar


ks
–


Co
ns


ist
en


tly
 lo


w 
tra


ck
ing


 e
rro


r
•


Ov
er


sig
ht


 b
y i


nd
ep


en
de


nt
 e


xte
rn


al 
inv


es
tm


en
t c


on
su


lta
nt


,
CF


O,
 a


nd
 O


ffic
e 


of
 E


nt
er


pr
ise


 R
isk


 M
an


ag
em


en
t


In
ve


stm
en


t r
isk


 is
 m


an
ag


ed
 th


ro
ug


h:







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


in
gt


on
 P


ol
ice


 P
ro


te
ct


io
n 


an
d 


Co
m


m
un


ity
 S


er
vic


es
 D


ist
ric


t


CE
PP


T/
CE


RB
T 


Ex
pe


ct
ed


 R
at


es
 o


f R
et


ur
n 


& 
Ri


sk


Po
rtf


ol
io


s
CE


RB
T


St
ra


te
gy


 1
CE


RB
T


St
ra


te
gy


 2
CE


PP
T


St
ra


te
gy


 1
CE


RB
T


St
ra


te
gy


 3
CE


PP
T


St
ra


te
gy


 2


Ex
pe


ct
ed


 T
im


e-
W


ei
gh


te
d 


Ne
t


Re
tu


rn
, N


ea
r T


er
m


5.
85


%
5.


22
%


5.
00


%
4.


41
%


4.
00


%


Ex
pe


ct
ed


 T
im


e-
W


ei
gh


te
d


Bl
en


de
d 


Ne
t R


et
ur


n,
Lo


ng
er


 T
er


m
7.


59
%


7.
01


%
N/


A
6.


22
%


N/
A


St
an


da
rd


 D
ev


ia
tio


n 
of


Ex
pe


ct
ed


 In
ve


st
m


en
t R


et
ur


ns
11


.8
3%


9.
24


%
8.


2%
7.


28
%


5.
2%


Ne
ar


 te
rm


 is
 1


0 
ye


ar
s.


 L
on


ge
r t


er
m


 is
 6


0 
ye


ar
s.


 E
xp


ec
te


d 
re


tu
rn


s 
ar


e 
ne


t o
f f


ee
s.


 C
ER


BT
 to


ta
l f


ee
s 


ar
e 


10
 b


ps
. C


EP
PT


 to
ta


l f
ee


s 
ar


e 
25


 b
ps


. C
ER


BT
 d


at
a 


us
e 


20
18


 c
ap


ita
l m


ar
ke


t
as


su
m


pt
io


ns
. C


EP
PT


 d
at


a 
us


e 
20


19
 c


ap
ita


l m
ar


ke
t a


ss
um


pt
io


ns
. S


ta
nd


ar
d 


de
via


tio
n 


is 
10


 y
ea


rs
.







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


in
gt


on
 P


ol
ice


 P
ro


te
ct


io
n 


an
d 


Co
m


m
un


ity
 S


er
vic


es
 D


ist
ric


t


CE
PP


T 
As


se
t C


la
ss


 T
ar


ge
t A


llo
ca


tio
ns


As
se


t C
la


ss
ifi


ca
tio


n
Be


nc
hm


ar
k


St
ra


te
gy


 1
St


ra
te


gy
 2


G
lo


ba
l E


qu
ity


M
SC


I A
CW


I I
M


I (
Ne


t)
40


%
±5


%
14


%
±5


%


Fi
xe


d 
In


co
m


e
Bl


oo
m


be
rg


 B
ar


cla
ys


 U
.S


. A
gg


re
ga


te
 B


on
d 


In
de


x
47


%
±5


%
73


%
±5


%


G
lo


ba
l R


ea
l E


st
at


e
(R


EI
Ts


)
FT


SE
 E


PR
A/


NA
RE


IT
 D


ev
el


op
ed


 L
iq


ui
d 


(N
et


)
8% ±5


%
8% ±5


%


Tr
ea


su
ry


 In
fla


tio
n 


Pr
ot


ec
te


d
Se


cu
rit


ie
s


(T
IP


S)
Bl


oo
m


be
rg


 B
ar


cla
ys


 U
S 


TI
PS


 In
de


x 
(S


er
ie


s 
L)


5% ±3
%


5% ±3
%


Li
qu


id
ity


91
-D


ay
 T


re
as


ur
y 


Bi
ll


0% +2
%


0% +2
%







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


in
gt


on
 P


ol
ice


 P
ro


te
ct


io
n 


an
d 


Co
m


m
un


ity
 S


er
vic


es
 D


ist
ric


t


CE
RB


T 
As


se
t C


la
ss


 T
ar


ge
t A


llo
ca


tio
ns


As
se


t C
la


ss
ifi


ca
tio


n
Be


nc
hm


ar
k


St
ra


te
gy


 1
St


ra
te


gy
 2


St
ra


te
gy


 3


G
lo


ba
l E


qu
ity


M
SC


I A
ll C


ou
nt


ry
 W


or
ld


 In
de


x
59


%
±5


%
40


%
±5


%
22


%
±5


%


Fi
xe


d 
In


co
m


e
Ba


rc
la


ys
 C


ap
ita


l L
on


g 
Li


ab
ilit


y 
In


de
x


25
%


±5
%


43
%


±5
%


49
%


±5
%


G
lo


ba
l R


ea
l E


st
at


e
(R


EI
Ts


)
FT


SE
 E


PR
A/


NA
RE


IT
 D


ev
el


op
ed


Li
qu


id
 In


de
x


8% ±5
%


8% ±5
%


8% ±5
%


Tr
ea


su
ry


 In
fla


tio
n 


Pr
ot


ec
te


d
Se


cu
rit


ie
s


(T
IP


S)


Ba
rc


la
ys


 C
ap


ita
l G


lo
ba


l R
ea


l: 
US


TI
PS


 In
de


x
5% ±3


%
5% ±3


%
16


%
±3


%


Co
m


m
od


itie
s


S&
P 


G
SC


I T
ot


al
 R


et
ur


n 
In


de
x


3% ±3
%


4% ±3
%


5% ±3
%


Li
qu


id
ity


91
-D


ay
 T


re
as


ur
y 


Bi
ll


0% +2
%


0% +2
%


0% +2
%







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


ing
to


n 
Po


lic
e 


Pr
ot


ec
tio


n 
an


d 
Co


m
m


un
ity


 S
er


vic
es


 D
ist


ric
t


CE
PP


T 
In


ve
stm


en
t S


tra
te


gy
 C


on
sid


er
at


ion
s


•
Sh


or
te


r t
o 


int
er


m
ed


iat
e 


te
rm


 in
ve


stm
en


t h
or


izo
n


–
Lo


we
r v


ola
tili


ty 
inv


es
tm


en
t s


tra
te


gy
 re


qu
ire


d
•


W
e 


ex
pe


ct 
low


er
 a


ve
ra


ge
 a


cc
ou


nt
 b


ala
nc


es
 th


an
 O


PE
B


•
W


e 
ex


pe
ct 


ea
rlie


r a
nd


 m
or


e 
fre


qu
en


t d
isb


ur
se


m
en


ts
•


Th
es


e 
ca


sh
 flo


w 
fa


cto
rs


 re
qu


ire
 a


lig
nin


g 
inv


es
tm


en
t s


tra
te


gy
wi


th
 in


ve
stm


en
t h


or
izo


n
–


If 
m


isa
lig


ne
d,


 th
er


e 
is 


gr
ea


te
r r


isk
 o


f in
ve


stm
en


t r
et


ur
n


un
de


rp
er


fo
rm


an
ce


 a
nd


 o
f h


igh
er


 in
ve


stm
en


t v
ola


tili
ty


  
  







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


ing
ton


 P
oli


ce
 P


ro
tec


tio
n a


nd
 C


om
mu


nit
y S


er
vic


es
 D


ist
ric


t


CE
RB


T 
Inv


es
tm


en
t R


etu
rn


s –
 T


im
e W


eig
hte


d
Fu


nd
As


se
ts


1 
M


on
th


3 
M


on
th


s
FY


TD
1 


Ye
ar


3 
Ye


ar
s


5 
Ye


ar
s


10
 Y


ea
rs


IT
D


CE
RB


T 
St


ra
teg


y 1
(In


ce
pti


on
 Ju


ne
 1,


 20
07


)
$9


,25
8,4


38
,27


2
-0


.09
%


3.5
7%


6.8
4%


14
.20


%
9.0


2%
6.6


4%
8.2


4%
5.1


7%


Be
nc


hm
ar


k
 


-0
.07


%
3.5


6%
6.7


7%
14


.15
%


8.7
9%


6.3
2%


8.0
9%


4.8
1%


CE
RB


T 
St


ra
teg


y 2
(In


ce
pti


on
 O


cto
be


r 1
, 2


01
1)


$1
,42


7,4
67


,93
6


0.6
7%


3.1
2%


6.5
7%


13
.85


%
8.2


7%
5.8


4%
NA


7.6
2%


Be
nc


hm
ar


k
 


0.6
9%


3.1
2%


6.5
2%


13
.86


%
8.0


4%
5.5


3%
NA


7.4
4%


CE
RB


T 
St


ra
teg


y 3
(In


ce
pti


on
 Ja


nu
ar


y 1
, 2


01
2)


$6
70


,73
2,4


05
1.2


5%
2.6


6%
5.9


9%
12


.89
%


7.1
3%


4.8
3%


NA
5.9


6%


Be
nc


hm
ar


k
 


1.2
5%


2.6
6%


5.9
6%


12
.89


%
6.9


5%
4.5


8%
NA


5.7
4%


Pe
rio


ds
 E


nd
ed


 Ja
nu


ar
y 3


1, 
20


19


Tim
e w


eig
hte


d r
etu


rn
 re


po
rts


 th
e p


er
for


ma
nc


e o
f th


e i
nv


es
tm


en
t v


eh
icl


e, 
no


t o
f th


e e
mp


loy
er


 as
se


ts.
 R


etu
rn


s a
re


 gr
os


s. 
Hi


sto
ric


al 
pe


rfo
rm


an
ce


 is
 no


t n
ec


es
sa


rily
 in


dic
ati


ve
 of


 ac
tua


l fu
tur


e i
nv


es
tm


en
t p


er
for


ma
nc


e o
r o


f fu
tur


e
tot


al 
pr


og
ra


m 
co


st.
 C


ur
re


nt 
an


d f
utu


re
 pe


rfo
rm


an
ce


 m
ay


 be
 lo


we
r o


r h
igh


er
 th


an
 th


e h
ist


or
ica


l p
er


for
ma


nc
e d


ata
 re


po
rte


d h
er


e. 
Inv


es
tm


en
t r


etu
rn


 an
d p


rin
cip


al 
va


lue
 m


ay
 flu


ctu
ate


 so
 th


at 
yo


ur
 in


ve
stm


en
t, w


he
n r


ed
ee


me
d, 


ma
y


be
 w


or
th 


mo
re


 or
 le


ss
 th


an
 th


e o
rig


ina
l c


os
t. T


he
 va


lue
 of


 an
 em


plo
ye


r’s
 C


ER
BT


 fu
nd


 sh
ar


es
 w


ill 
go


 up
 an


d d
ow


n b
as


ed
 on


 th
e p


er
for


ma
nc


e o
f th


e u
nd


er
lyi


ng
 fu


nd
s i


n w
hic


h t
he


 as
se


ts 
ar


e i
nv


es
ted


. T
he


 va
lue


 of
 th


e u
nd


er
lyi


ng
fun


ds
’ a


ss
ets


 w
ill,


 in
 tu


rn
, fl


uc
tua


te 
ba


se
d o


n t
he


 pe
rfo


rm
an


ce
 an


d o
the


r f
ac


tor
s g


en
er


all
y a


ffe
cti


ng
 th


e s
ec


ur
itie


s m
ar


ke
t.


 







‹#
›


Fu
nd


in
g 


Po
lic


ie
s


 







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


in
gt


on
 P


ol
ice


 P
ro


te
ct


io
n 


an
d 


Co
m


m
un


ity
 S


er
vic


es
 D


ist
ric


t


CE
PP


T 
Fu


nd
in


g 
Po


lic
y 


Co
ns


id
er


at
io


ns


•
W


ill 
m


y 
lia


bi
liti


es
 in


cr
ea


se
 o


r d
ec


re
as


e 
ov


er
 ti


m
e?


•
W


he
n 


wi
ll m


y 
co


nt
rib


ut
io


ns
 re


ac
h 


th
ei


r p
ea


k?
•


W
he


n 
wi


ll I
 re


im
bu


rs
e 


m
y 


CE
PP


T 
as


se
ts


?
•


W
hi


ch
 C


EP
PT


 in
ve


st
m


en
t s


tra
te


gy
 b


es
t m


at
ch


es
 m


y 
ne


ed
s


at
 th


is 
tim


e?
 







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


in
gt


on
 P


ol
ice


 P
ro


te
ct


io
n 


an
d 


Co
m


m
un


ity
 S


er
vic


es
 D


ist
ric


t


Em
pl


oy
er


 C
on


tro
ls 


th
e 


CE
PP


T 
Fu


nd
in


g 
Po


lic
y


•
Ch


oo
se


s 
ap


pr
op


ria
te


 C
EP


PT
 in


ve
st


m
en


t s
tra


te
gy


–
Ba


se
d 


on
 in


ve
st


m
en


t t
im


e 
ho


riz
on


•
De


cid
es


 if
, w


he
n,


 a
nd


 h
ow


 m
uc


h 
to


 c
on


tri
bu


te
–


Vo
lu


nt
ar


y 
an


d 
ne


ve
r r


eq
ui


re
d


•
De


cid
es


 if
 a


nd
 w


he
n 


to
 s


ee
k 


re
im


bu
rs


em
en


t o
f C


EP
PT


as
se


ts
–


An
y 


pe
ns


io
n 


co
nt


rib
ut


io
ns


 m
ad


e 
th


is 
fis


ca
l y


ea
r a


re
re


im
bu


rs
ab


le
  







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


in
gt


on
 P


ol
ice


 P
ro


te
ct


io
n 


an
d 


Co
m


m
un


ity
 S


er
vic


es
 D


ist
ric


t


Di
sc


la
im


er


Th
e 


fo
llo


wi
ng


 in
fo


rm
at


io
n 


as
su


m
es


 a
 s


in
gl


e 
in


ve
st


m
en


t
ou


tc
om


e 
of


 a
 5


%
 a


nn
ua


liz
ed


 c
om


po
un


de
d 


ra
te


 o
f r


et
ur


n 
an


d
is 


us
ed


 fo
r s


im
pl


e 
illu


st
ra


tio
n 


on
ly.


 It
 d


oe
s 


no
t c


on
sid


er
 th


e
pr


ob
ab


ilis
tic


 ra
ng


e 
of


 in
ve


st
m


en
t o


ut
co


m
es


 th
at


 a
re


 lik
el


y 
to


be
 th


e 
ac


tu
al


 e
xp


er
ie


nc
e 


fro
m


 o
ne


 y
ea


r t
o 


th
e 


ne
xt


. A
ct


ua
l


ou
tc


om
es


 w
ill 


al
m


os
t c


er
ta


in
ly 


di
ffe


r. 
As


se
ts


 c
an


 b
e 


ga
in


ed
 o


r
lo


st
.


 







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


in
gt


on
 P


ol
ice


 P
ro


te
ct


io
n 


an
d 


Co
m


m
un


ity
 S


er
vic


es
 D


ist
ric


t


Co
m


po
un


di
ng


 In
te


re
st


 M
od


el
In


ve
st


m
en


t D
ur


at
io


n 
(Y


ea
rs


)
1


2
3


4
5


6
7


8
9


10
11


No
m


in
al


 E
xp


ec
te


d 
Co


m
po


un
de


d
An


nu
al


ize
d


Ra
te


 o
f I


nv
es


tm
en


t R
et


ur
n


5%
5%


5%
5%


5%
5%


5%
5%


5%
5%


5%


Cu
m


ul
at


ive
 E


xp
ec


te
d


Co
m


po
un


de
d 


Ra
te


 o
f


In
ve


st
m


en
t R


et
ur


n
5%


10
%


16
%


22
%


28
%


34
%


41
%


48
%


55
%


63
%


71
%


Re
qu


ire
d 


In
ve


st
m


en
t P


rin
cip


al
Co


nt
rib


ut
io


n 
Ne


ed
ed


 to
G


en
er


at
e 


$1
$0


.9
5


$0
.9


1
$0


.8
6


$0
.8


2
$0


.7
8


$0
.7


5
$0


.7
1


$0
.6


8
$0


.6
4


$0
.6


1
$0


.5
8







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


in
gt


on
 P


ol
ice


 P
ro


te
ct


io
n 


an
d 


Co
m


m
un


ity
 S


er
vic


es
 D


ist
ric


t


Em
pl


oy
er


 N
or


m
al


 C
os


t C
on


tri
bu


tio
n 


Pr
ef


un
di


ng
 S


ce
na


rio
 ($


 M
illi


on
s)


Fi
sc


al
Ye


ar
No


rm
al


 C
os


t
Co


nt
rib


ut
io


n
In


ve
st


m
en


t D
ur


at
io


n 
(Y


ea
rs


)


1
2


3
4


5
6


7
8


9
10


11


20
19


-
20


$2
0.


1
$1


9.
1


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


20
20


-
21


$2
2.


1
$2


1.
1


$2
0.


1
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


20
21


-
22


$2
2.


7
$2


1.
7


$2
0.


6
$1


9.
7


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


20
22


-
23


$2
3.


4
$2


2.
3


$2
1.


2
$2


0.
2


$1
9.


2
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


20
23


-
24


$2
4.


0
$2


2.
9


$2
1.


8
$2


0.
7


$1
9.


8
$1


8.
8


 
 


 
 


 
 


20
24


-
25


$2
4.


7
$2


3.
5


$2
2.


4
$2


1.
3


$2
0.


3
$1


9.
3


$1
8.


4
 


 
 


 
 


20
25


-
26


$2
5.


3
$2


4.
1


$2
2.


9
$2


1.
8


$2
0.


8
$1


9.
8


$1
8.


9
$1


8.
0


 
 


 
 


20
26


-
27


$2
5.


9
$2


4.
7


$2
3.


5
$2


2.
4


$2
1.


3
$2


0.
3


$1
9.


3
$1


8.
4


$1
7.


5
 


 
 


20
27


-
28


$2
6.


6
$2


5.
3


$2
4.


1
$2


3.
0


$2
1.


9
$2


0.
8


$1
9.


8
$1


8.
9


$1
8.


0
$1


7.
1


 
 


20
28


-
29


$2
7.


2
$2


5.
9


$2
4.


7
$2


3.
5


$2
2.


4
$2


1.
3


$2
0.


3
$1


9.
4


$1
8.


4
$1


7.
6


$1
6.


7
 


20
29


-
30


$2
7.


9
$2


6.
6


$2
5.


3
$2


4.
1


$2
3.


0
$2


1.
9


$2
0.


8
$1


9.
8


$1
8.


9
$1


8.
0


$1
7.


1
$1


6.
3







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


in
gt


on
 P


ol
ice


 P
ro


te
ct


io
n 


an
d 


Co
m


m
un


ity
 S


er
vic


es
 D


ist
ric


t


Em
pl


oy
er


 U
AL


 C
on


tri
bu


tio
n 


Pr
ef


un
di


ng
 S


ce
na


rio
 ($


 M
illi


on
s)


Fi
sc


al
Ye


ar
UA


L
Co


nt
rib


ut
io


n
In


ve
st


m
en


t D
ur


at
io


n 
(Y


ea
rs


)


1
2


3
4


5
6


7
8


9
10


11


20
19


-
20


$4
6.


7
$4


4.
5


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


20
20


-
21


$5
1.


4
$4


9.
0


$4
6.


7
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


20
21


-
22


$5
7.


3
$5


4.
6


$5
2.


0
$4


9.
5


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


20
22


-
23


$6
2.


2
$5


9.
2


$5
6.


4
$5


3.
7


$5
1.


2
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


20
23


-
24


$6
4.


8
$6


1.
7


$5
8.


8
$5


6.
0


$5
3.


3
$5


0.
8


 
 


 
 


 
 


20
24


-
25


$6
8.


1
$6


4.
8


$6
1.


7
$5


8.
8


$5
6.


0
$5


3.
3


$5
0.


8
 


 
 


 
 


20
25


-
26


$6
2.


0
$5


9.
0


$5
6.


2
$5


3.
5


$5
1.


0
$4


8.
5


$4
6.


2
$4


4.
0


 
 


 
 


20
26


-
27


$6
4.


5
$6


1.
4


$5
8.


5
$5


5.
7


$5
3.


1
$5


0.
5


$4
8.


1
$4


5.
8


$4
3.


7
 


 
 


20
27


-
28


$6
6.


4
$6


3.
2


$6
0.


2
$5


7.
3


$5
4.


6
$5


2.
0


$4
9.


5
$4


7.
2


$4
4.


9
$4


2.
8


 
 


20
28


-
29


$6
8.


3
$6


5.
0


$6
1.


9
$5


9.
0


$5
6.


2
$5


3.
5


$5
0.


9
$4


8.
5


$4
6.


2
$4


4.
0


$4
1.


9
 


20
29


-
30


$7
0.


2
$6


6.
9


$6
3.


7
$6


0.
7


$5
7.


8
$5


5.
0


$5
2.


4
$4


9.
9


$4
7.


5
$4


5.
3


$4
3.


1
$4


1.
1







‹#
›


Pa
rti


cip
at


io
n 


Co
st


s


 







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


in
gt


on
 P


ol
ice


 P
ro


te
ct


io
n 


an
d 


Co
m


m
un


ity
 S


er
vic


es
 D


ist
ric


t


CE
PP


T/
CE


RB
T 


To
ta


l P
ar


tic
ip


at
io


n 
Co


st
 F


ee
Ra


te
s


•
To


ta
l a


ll-
in


clu
siv


e 
co


st
 o


f p
ar


tic
ip


at
io


n 
is 


ex
pr


es
se


d 
in


 b
as


is
po


in
ts


 a
nd


 a
pp


lie
d 


to
 e


m
pl


oy
er


 a
ss


et
s 


un
de


r m
an


ag
em


en
t


–
CE


PP
T 


is 
cu


rre
nt


ly 
25


 b
as


is 
po


in
ts


–
CE


RB
T 


is 
cu


rre
nt


ly 
10


 b
as


is 
po


in
ts


–
CE


PP
T 


an
d 


CE
RB


T 
ar


e 
se


pa
ra


te
, s


el
f-f


un
de


d,
 tr


us
t f


un
ds


–
CE


PP
T 


an
d 


CE
RB


T 
do


 n
ot


 p
ro


fit
–


Em
pl


oy
er


 a
cc


ou
nt


 c
ha


rg
ed


 d
ai


ly
–


Ra
te


 c
an


 b
e 


ch
an


ge
d 


wi
th


ou
t p


rio
r n


ot
ice


 a
nd


 m
ay


 b
e 


hi
gh


er
or


 lo
we


r i
n 


th
e 


fu
tu


re







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


ing
to


n 
Po


lic
e 


Pr
ot


ec
tio


n 
an


d 
Co


m
m


un
ity


 S
er


vic
es


 D
ist


ric
t


CE
RB


T 
Fe


e 
Ra


te
 H


ist
or


y
Fi


sc
al


 Y
ea


r
To


ta
l P


ar
tic


ip
at


io
n 


Co
st


20
07


-2
00


8
2.


00
 b


as
is 


po
int


s


20
08


-2
00


9
6.


00
 b


as
is 


po
int


s


20
09


-2
01


0
9.


00
 b


as
is 


po
int


s


20
10


-2
01


1
12


.0
0 


ba
sis


 p
oin


ts


20
11


-2
01


2
12


.0
0 


ba
sis


 p
oin


ts


20
12


-2
01


3
15


.0
0 


ba
sis


 p
oin


ts


20
13


-2
01


4
14


.0
0 


ba
sis


 p
oin


ts


20
14


-2
01


5
10


.0
0 


ba
sis


 p
oin


ts


20
15


-2
01


6
10


.0
0 


ba
sis


 p
oin


ts


20
16


-2
01


7
10


.0
0 


ba
sis


 p
oin


ts


20
17


-2
01


8
10


.0
0 


ba
sis


 p
oin


ts


20
18


-2
01


9
10


.0
0 


ba
sis


 p
oin


ts


20
19


-2
02


0
10


.0
0 


ba
sis


 p
oin


ts







‹#
›


Ad
va


nt
ag


es
 o


f t
he


 C
EP


PT
 a


nd
 C


ER
BT


 







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


in
gt


on
 P


ol
ice


 P
ro


te
ct


io
n 


an
d 


Co
m


m
un


ity
 S


er
vic


es
 D


ist
ric


t


Ad
va


nt
ag


es
 o


f t
he


 C
EP


PT
 a


nd
 C


ER
BT


•
In


ve
st


m
en


t m
an


ag
em


en
t e


xp
er


tis
e 


an
d 


sc
al


e
•


Lo
we


st
 to


ta
l p


ar
tic


ip
at


io
n 


co
st


•
De


di
ca


te
d 


cu
st


om
er


 o
ut


re
ac


h 
an


d 
su


pp
or


t t
ea


m
•


St
re


am
lin


ed
 a


dm
in


ist
ra


tio
n


•
G


AS
B 


co
m


pl
ia


nt
 fi


na
nc


ia
l r


ep
or


tin
g







‹#
›


Co
nt


ac
ts


 a
nd


 C
om


m
un


ica
tio


n


 







‹#
›


 Ke
ns


ing
ton


 P
oli


ce
 P


ro
tec


tio
n a


nd
 C


om
mu


nit
y S


er
vic


es
 D


ist
ric


t


Qu
es


tio
ns


? W
he


re
 to


 G
et 


Tr
us


t F
un


d I
nfo


rm
ati


on
?


Na
m


e
Ti


tle
E-


m
ai


l
De


sk
M


ob
ile


Ma
tt G


os
s


Ou
tre


ac
h &


 S
up


po
rt


Pr
og


ra
m 


Ma
na


ge
r


Ma
tth


ew
.G


os
s@


ca
lpe


rs.
ca


.go
v


(9
16


) 7
95


-9
07


1
(9


16
) 3


82
-6


48
7


Ka
re


n L
oo


kin
gb


ill
Ou


tre
ac


h &
 S


up
po


rt
Ma


na
ge


r
Ka


re
n.L


oo
kin


gb
ill@


ca
lpe


rs.
ca


.go
v


(9
16


) 7
95


-1
38


7
(9


16
) 5


01
-2


21
9


Ja
sp


er
 Ja


co
bs


Ou
tre


ac
h &


 S
up


po
rt


An
aly


st
Ja


sp
er.


Ja
co


bs
@


ca
lpe


rs.
ca


.go
v


(9
16


) 7
95


-0
43


2
(9


16
) 7


17
-3


88
6


Co
lle


en
 C


ain
-H


er
rb


ac
k


Ad
mi


nis
tra


tio
n &


 R
ep


or
tin


g
Pr


og
ra


m 
Ma


na
ge


r
Co


lle
en


.C
ain


-H
er


rb
ac


k@
ca


lpe
rs.


ca
.go


v
(9


16
) 7


95
-2


47
4


(9
16


) 5
05


-2
50


6


Ro
be


rt 
Sh


ar
p


As
sis


tan
t


Di
vis


ion
 C


hie
f


Ro
be


rt.
Sh


ar
p@


ca
lpe


rs.
ca


.go
v


(9
16


) 7
95


-3
87


8
(9


16
) 3


97
-0


75
6


Pr
og


ra
m


 E
-m


ai
l A


dd
re


ss
es


Pr
ef


un
di


ng
 P


ro
gr


am
s 


W
eb


pa
ge


s


CE
RB


T4
U@


ca
lpe


rs.
ca


.go
v –


 Q
ue


sti
on


s &
 D


oc
um


en
t S


ub
mi


tta
l


ww
w.


ca
lpe


rs.
ca


.go
v/C


ER
BT


CE
PP


T4
U@


ca
lpe


rs.
ca


.go
v –


 Q
ue


sti
on


s &
 D


oc
um


en
t S


ub
mi


tta
l


ww
w.


ca
lpe


rs.
ca


.go
v/C


EP
PT


CE
RB


TA
CC


OU
NT


@
ca


lpe
rs.


ca
.go


v –
 O


nli
ne


 R
ec


or
d K


ee
pin


g S
ys


tem
 








Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 1


Kensington Police 
Protection & Community Services District
OPEB Prefunding and Pension Rate Stabilization Program (PRSP)


March 3, 2020







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 2


Contacts


Mitch Barker


Executive Vice President


(800) 540-6369 x116


mbarker@pars.org


Benson Lao


Senior Analyst, Consulting


(800) 540-6369 x182


blao@pars.org


Fred Hurst


Director


(415) 705-5015


fred.hurst@highmarkcapital.com


Andrew Brown, CFA


Director, Senior Portfolio Manager


(415) 705-7605


andrew.brown@highmarkcapital.com







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 3


Pars 115 Trust Team
Trust Administrator & Consultant


36
Years of Experience


(1984-2020)


1,400+
Plans under 


Administration


900+
Public Agency


Clients


$4.1 B
Assets under 


Administration


500 K+
Plan Participants


• Recordkeeping


• Sub-trust accounting


• Monitors plan compliance


• Processes contributions/disbursements


• Hands-on, dedicated support teams


• Coordinates all agency services


Investment Manager


• Investment sub-advisor to trustee U.S. Bank


• Investment policy assistance


• Uses open architecture


• Active and passive platform options


• Customized portfolios (with minimum asset level)


101
Years of Experience


(1919-2020)


$17.4 B
Assets under 
Management


Trustee


• 5th largest commercial bank and one of the 


nation’s largest trustees for Section 115 trusts.


• Safeguard plan assets, 


• Oversight protection as plan fiduciary


• Custodian of assets 


157
Years of Experience


(1863-2020)


$5.0 T
Assets under 


Administration







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 4


Alameda County Mosquito Abatement District


California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority


Central Contra Costa Sanitary District


Central Contra Costa Transit Authority


Coastside Fire Protection District


Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Assn


Contra Costa Mosquito & Vector Control District


Delta Diablo


East Bay Regional Park District


East Contra Costa Fire Protection District


Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA)


Hayward Area Recreation & Park District


Housing Authority of the County of Contra Costa


Menlo Park Fire Protection District


Midpeninsula Regional Open Space District


Mid-Peninsula Water District


Monterey Bay Unified APCD


Moraga-Orinda Fire Protection District


Napa County Mosquito Abatement District


Northern Salinas Valley Mosquito Abatement Dist


Novato Sanitary District


Pebble Beach Community Services District


San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control Dist


Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside


Southern Marin Fire Protection District


Superior Court of CA, County of Contra Costa


Superior Court of CA, County of Marin


Superior Court of CA, County of San Mateo


West Bay Sanitary District


West County Wastewater District


PARS 115 Client list – Bay Area (400+ TOTAL)


CITIES & TOWNS


City of Alameda


City of Brisbane


City of Burlingame


City of Cupertino


City of Daly City


City of Del Rey Oaks


City of Dublin


City of Emeryville


City of Gilroy


City of Half Moon Bay


City of Hercules


City of Livermore


City of Morgan Hill


City of Napa


City of Novato


City of Oakley


City of Orinda


City of Palo Alto


City of Piedmont


City of Pinole


City of Pittsburg


City of Pleasanton


City of Redwood City


City of Richmond


City of San Leandro


City of San Ramon


City of Santa Clara


City of Sausalito


City of Union City


Town of Atherton


Town of Colma


Town of Fairfax


Town of Los Altos Hills


Town of Los Gatos


Town of Ross


Town of San Anselmo


Town of Tiburon


Town of Woodside


Town of Yountville


SPECIAL DISTRICTS


EDUCATIONAL DISTRICTS


Alisal Union School District


Calistoga Joint Unified School District


Campbell Union High School District


Hartnell Community College District


Marin Community College District


Napa Valley Unified School District


San Bruno Park School District


Santa Rita Union School District


West Valley-Mission Comm College District


COUNTIES


County of Contra Costa


County of Napa


County of Placer


County of Solano 


County of Sutter







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 5


Subaccounts


OPEB and pension assets are 
individually sub-accounted, 
and can be divided by dept., 
bargaining group, or cost center


Assets in the PARS Section 115 
Combination Trust can be used 
to address unfunded liabilities.


Financial Stability


Allows separate investment 
strategies for OPEB and 
pension subaccounts.


Flexible Investing


OPEB and pension assets 
aggregate and reach lower fees 
on tiered schedule sooner –
saving money!


Economies-of-ScaleAnytime Access


Trust funds are available 
anytime; OPEB for OPEB 
and pension for pension.


No set-up costs, no minimum 
annual contribution amounts, 
and no fees until assets are added.


No Set Up Cost or Minimums


Retiree Medical Benefits


Prefund OPEB GASB 75


OPEB


Reimburse agency; or


Pay benefits provider


Pension Rate Stabilization Program


Prefund Pension (PRSP) GASB 68


Pension


Reimburse agency; or


Pay retirement system


Assets can be used to: Assets can be used to:


prefund
either or both


General Fund


PARS IRS-Approved Section 115 Trust







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 6


PARS Pension Rate 
Stabilization Program
for prefunding pension obligations


The







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 7


• A Section 115 Trust can be used by local governments to fund essential 


governmental functions (i.e., retiree healthcare, pension)


• Any income derived from a Section 115 Trust is tax exempt


• Section 115 Trusts are irrevocable and designed to prefund retirement plan 


obligations


• Once contributions are placed into a Section 115 Trust, assets from the trust can 


only be used for retirement plan purposes:


— reimburse Agency for retirement system contributions


— assets can be transferred to retirement system at anytime for pension


What is a Section 115 Trust?







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 8


• Since 2015, GASB 68 


has required disclosing 


Net Pension Liability on financial 


statements as a line item on the 


balance sheet


• Before the concept of pension 


prefunding, the only way to 


reduce retirement system 


unfunded liabilities was to send 


additional contributions in 


excess of annual required 


employer contributions


• Pension trust prefunding 


assets can be transferred to 


the retirement system at the 


Agency’s direction, which can 


help offset future rate increases 


(i.e., pension rate stabilization).


Background


Upcoming CalPERS Changes


CalPERS has announced changes directly 


affecting unfunded liability amounts and 


employer contributions:


Lowered Discount Rate


CalPERS will be lowering the 


discount rate from 7.5% to 7.0% 


with a 3-year phase-in 


(in effect as of FY 2020-21)


Shortened Amortization Period


A new actuarial amortization policy 


for new liabilities, shortening the 


amortization period from 30 years 


to 20 years (as of FY 2021-22)


7.5%


7.0%


30 years


20 years







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 9


Actuarial Liability $14.9 M


Assets $10.7 M


Unfunded Liability $4.3 M


Funded Ratio 71.4%


Employer Contribution Amount (FY 19-20) $453.4 K


Projected Employer Contribution Amount (FY 25-26) $599.9 M (32.3% ↑)


Pension Funding Status
As of June 30, 2018, Kensington Police Protection and Community Service District’s plan is funded as follows*:


* Data through 2025-26 from Agency’s latest CalPERS actuarial valuation. 







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 10


Projected Employer Contributions (Safety)


Projected safety contributions increase from $453.4K to $599.9K* (32.3% ↑)


* Data through 2025-26 from Agency’s latest CalPERS actuarial valuation. 


45.00%


50.00%


55.00%


60.00%


65.00%


70.00%


75.00%


2
0


1
9


-2
0


2
0


2
0


-2
1


2
0


2
1


-2
2


2
0


2
2


-2
3


2
0


2
3


-2
4


2
0


2
4


-2
5


2
0


2
5


-2
6


%
 o


f 
P


a
y


ro
ll


Total Contributions (%)







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 11


Why Prefund Pension Obligations?


Complete Local Control over Assets


Agency has complete control over assets, including contributions, disbursements 
and the timing, amount, and risk tolerance level of investments


1.


Pension Rate Stabilization


Assets can be transferred to the retirement system at the Agency’s direction, 
potentially reducing/eliminating large fluctuations in employer contribution amounts


2.


Rainy Day Fund


Emergency source of funds when employer revenues are strained in difficult 
budgetary or economic times


3.


Diversified Investing


The PARS Trust allows for investment flexibility and offers the potential for assets to 
earn greater returns than the general fund


4.







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 12


• Agency maintains oversight of the 


investment manager and the portfolio’s 


risk tolerance level


• Investment restrictions that apply to the 


general fund (CA Government Code 53601) 


are not applicable to assets held in 


The PARS Section 115 Irrevocable Trust


• Assets held in The PARS Section 115 


Irrevocable Trust can be invested per 


Government Code Sections 53216 (Pension) 


and 53620 (OPEB)


• Investments can be diversified and invested 


in a prudent fashion


• Investments can be tailored to the Agency’s unique demographics and needs


• Increased risk diversification


Investment Flexibility


Diversified Investing


Assets held in The PARS Section 


115 Irrevocable Trust can be 


diversely invested in a prudent 


fashion per Government Code 


Sections 53216 (Pension) 


and 53620 (OPEB).


GOV § 53216 (Pension)


GOV § 53620 (OPEB)







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 13


1. Input Phase


– Target discount rate


– Risk tolerance


– Investment philosophy


– Asset allocation


– Timing on use of funds


2. Model Portfolios 3. Portfolio Manager


– Makes recommendation


– Fiduciary responsibility


– Drafts investment policy


– Annual on-site reviews


– Cell phone access


Strategy Equity


Capital Appreciation 65-85%


Balanced 50-70%


Moderate 40-60%


Moderately Conservative 20-40%


Conservative 5-20%


Simple Investment Approach







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 14


Strategy Equity (%) 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 10 Years


Capital 


Appreciation
65-85% 22.62% 10.46% 7.90% 9.00%


Balanced 50-70% 19.85% 9.59% 7.06% 8.25%


Moderate 40-60% 17.71% 8.54% 6.39% 7.44%


Moderately


Conservative
20-40% 13.73% 6.67% 5.02% 5.96%


Conservative 5-20% 11.05% 5.35% 4.08% 4.71%


HighMark Capital Management Returns


* Past performance does not guarantee future results


ACTIVE RETURNS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 15


Plan Set-Up Fee: Ongoing Fees:


None 0.35% for assets under $5 million


0.25% for assets $5-10 million


0.20% for assets $10-15 million


0.15% for assets $15-50 million


0.10% for assets over $50 million


Program Fees


Plan Set-Up Fee: Ongoing Fees:


None 0.25% for assets $0-10 million


0.20% for assets $10-15 million


0.15% for assets $15-50 million


0.10% for assets over $50 million


* PARS does not receive any compensation from the investments or any commissions, back-end loads, or any other forms of compensation.
** Subject to change due to rebalancing.


Trust Administration/Consulting Fees*


Discretionary Trustee/Investment Management Fees**


As of December 31, 2019







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 16


Sample Funding Policies


1. Contribute 50% of a given year’s realized year end surplus to address pension liability


2. Contribute full amount of annual PERS employer cont., allowing anytime access to trust assets


3. Contribute funds to stabilize PERS employer Misc. and Safety rates through FY 23-24


4. “One equals five plan” - $1M contribution for 5 years will save taxpayers $5M over 25 years


5.
Contribute Employer contribution equal to the 2.8% discount rate 


(as opposed to the standard 7.5% rate), with difference going into the Section 115 Trust


6. Maintain a 15% general fund reserve and target add ’l cont. over and above that threshold


7. Earmark a portion of a local sales tax to be set aside for unfunded pension liabilities


8. Use ongoing savings from prepaying CalPERS unfunded liability vs. higher monthly payments


9. Use one-time revenue source & lower the minimum General Fund Reserve level (30%  20%)







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 17


Key Program Advantages


1. IRS-approved trust structure which protects the Agency from Day 1 of prefunding


2. Market pioneer and leader with over 200 PRSP client agencies in California


3. Low cost prefunding solution with economies-of-scale and low investment fees


4. No start-up costs


5. No minimum annual contribution amounts or minimum annual fees


6. No fees charged until assets are in trust


7. No trading fees


8. No termination fees or restrictions


9. True, historical return information over 1, 3, 5 and 10 year periods – not hypotheticals


10. Five active or passive risk tolerance portfolios in addition to a custom portfolio option







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 18


PARS OPEB TRUST Program
for prefunding Other Post-Employment Benefits


The







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 19


Data from 2018 CAFR
Valuation Date: June 30, 2016


Prefunding 
Discount Rate: 7.28%


Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $4,099,539


Actuarial Value of Assets $843,504


Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) $3,256,035


Funded Ratio (%) 20.58%


Actuarially Determined Contribution
(ADC) for FY 2017-18


$404,577


Annual Benefit Payments 
(Pay-as-you-Go) for FY 2017-18


$142,894


OPEB Actuarial Results


Rule of thumb: For every one percent increase in the discount rate, the unfunded liability is lowered by 10-12%.


Note: $1,500,776 in CalPERS CERBT assets as of June 30, 2019







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 20


Program Advantages


Dedicated 
Portfolio Manager


PARS offers a dedicated 


portfolio manager with 


onsite reviews, investment 


policy assistance, and cell 


phone access. CalPERS 


CERBT has no direct contact.


Combination Trust (OPEB & Pension), 
Offering Economies-of-Scale and Lower Fees


The PARS Section 115 Combination Trust is capable of prefunding OPEB and/or 


pension. Using one portfolio manager brings economies-of-scale, efficiencies, and 


lower fees due to our tiered fee schedule. CalPERS doesn’t offer a combination 


trust capable of prefunding OPEB and pension in the same trust.


Greater 
Investment Flexibility


PARS offers 5 investment risk 


tolerance levels across both active 


and index platforms, as well as 


custom portfolios. 


CalPERS offers 3 models only, and 


offers no choice of active, passive, 


or custom portfolios.


Greater
Reimbursements


PARS can reimburse 


up to 2 years of OPEB 


expenses. CalPERS CERBT 


allows reimbursements for 


the current year only.


Complete 
Operating Transparency


HighMark Capital Management


discloses individual holdings and 


their percentages by asset class –


offering clients full transparency. 


CalPERS does not disclose 


individual holdings.


PARS conducts an annual SOC-1 


audit of internal organizational 


controls, which is sent out to all 


client agencies. CalPERS does not 


offer an audit of their internal 


organizational processes.


Greater Net Performance


PARS has greater returns, net of all fees. 


As of December 31, 2019, 5-Year Net 


Returns for the Capital Appreciation 


strategy are 7.31%, compared to 6.75% 


from CalPERS CERBT Strategy 1.


7.31%


6.75%


0.00%


2.00%


4.00%


6.00%


8.00%


PARS CalPERS







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 21


Program Advantages: Full Service


Dedicated PARS Senior Consultant


• Ensures superior client satisfaction


Dedicated PARS Client Services Coordinator


• Customizes Administrator’s Handbook


• Monitors contributions


• Processes disbursements to retiree medical provider, Agency, or retirees (stipend)


• Coordinates annual reviews and addresses all client concerns


Dedicated Investment Management Team


• Assists with Investment Policy Statement (versus no IPS from CalPERS)


• Conducts periodic onsite reviews of performance & market conditions 


(versus no on-site review)


• Frequency determined by the Agency


• Directly available by cell phone (versus no personal cell access)


1.


2.


3.







Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District ▎ 22


P A R S / H I G H M A R K


Capital Appreciation
(22% Fixed Income) 22.62%


minus weighted PARS 
administration fee


(-) 0.25%


minus weighted HighMark 
investment management fee


(-) 0.34%


1-Year Net Return 22.03%


Net Performance Fee Analysis


C A L P E R S C E R B T


Strategy 1
(25% Fixed Income) 21.71%


minus fees (-) 0.10%


1-Year Net Return 21.61%


P A R S / H I G H M A R K


Capital Appreciation
(22% Fixed Income) 10.46%


minus weighted PARS 
administration fee


(-) 0.25%


minus weighted HighMark 
investment management fee


(-) 0.34%


3-Year Net Return 9.87%


C A L P E R S C E R B T


Strategy 1
(25% Fixed Income) 9.76%


minus fees (-) 0.10%


3-Year Net Return 9.66%


P A R S / H I G H M A R K


Capital Appreciation
(22% Fixed Income) 7.90%


minus weighted PARS 
administration fee


(-) 0.25%


minus weighted HighMark 
investment management fee


(-) 0.34%


5-Year Net Return 7.31%


C A L P E R S C E R B T


Strategy 1
(25% Fixed Income) 6.84%


minus fees (-) 0.10%


5-Year Net Return 6.75%


Over 1 Year Over 3 Years Over 5 Years


* Subject to change due to rebalancing; fees are based on assets under $5 million; 


past performance does not guarantee future results


As of December 31, 2019







PARS Investment Program


Q4 2019







About HighMark Capital Management, Inc.


24


*Includes predecessor organizations. HighMark Capital Management, Inc. registered with the SEC as an investment adviser on August 7, 1998.


**Assets under management (“AUM”) include assets for which HighMark provides continuous and regular supervisory and management services.  


Assets under advisement (“AUA”) include assets for which HighMark provides certain investment advisory services (including, but not limited to, 


investment research and strategies) for client assets of its parent company, MUFG Union Bank, N.A.


Asset ClassClient Base


LONGEVITY


Managing assets for clients 


since 1919*


STABILITY


Investment boutique structure     


headquartered in San Francisco 


backed by global strength within 


MUFG Union Bank, N.A. 


TALENT


45 investment professionals


26 professionals hold the Chartered   


Financial Analyst® (CFA) designation


23 years average industry experience


ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT AND ADVISEMENT**
$17.4 billion as of 12/31/2019


Equity $6.4 billion


Fixed Income $5.0 billion


Liquidity $4.0 billion


Cash $2.0 billion


AUM $8.9 billion


AUA $8.5 billion







Disciplined Investment Process


Your Plan’s Portfolio Manager is supported by deep investment resources and unique 


processes.


Tactical 
Asset 


Allocation


Manager 
Research


Equity & 
Fixed Income 


Research


Trading & 
Rebalancing


Investment 
Review


Performance 
Results


Strategic 
Asset 


Allocation


Your portfolio’s strategic asset allocation 


policy is established in your Investment 


Guidelines Document (IGD) after a 


thorough analysis of your needs and 


objectives.


Asset Allocation Committee (AAC) 


employs a multi-factor approach to 


establish long-term strategic asset 


allocation ranges as well as provide 


tactical diversification guidelines in 


an effort to capitalize on short-term 


market opportunities.


Regular investment & 


performance reports, as well 


as contact with your account 


portfolio manager, helps to 


keep you informed.


Andrew Brown, CFA


Sr. Portfolio 


Manager


25


Manager Research Group utilizes 


rigorous due diligence 


methodologies to provide access 


to competitive externally managed 


strategies and index-based funds.


We typically invest in share 


classes that offer the lowest 


expense ratio available for that 


fund, which is typically reserved 


for larger institutional investors.







Establish: Determine your Strategic Asset Allocation Strategy


Each Investment Objective reflects the associated PARS Diversified Portfolio as of 12/31/2019. A client ‘s portfolio construction may vary depending on the 


client's investment needs, objectives, and restrictions as well as the prevailing market conditions at the time of investment. 


Moderately Conservative


Moderate


Expected Standard Deviation (Volatility)


E
x
p
e


c
te


d
 R


e
tu


rn


Balanced


Capital Appreciation


Efficient frontier of portfolios with varying ranges of equities and fixed income


Conservative


Equity Fixed Income Cash


Conservative 5-20% 60-95% 0-20%


Moderately Conservative 20-40% 50-80% 0-20%


Moderate 40-60% 40-60% 0-20%


Balanced 50-70% 30-50% 0-20%


Capital Appreciation 65-85% 10-30% 0-20%


26







Construct Your Plan’s Portfolio: PARS Diversified Portfolios – Tactical Allocation


27


Each Investment Objective reflects the associated PARS Diversified Portfolio as of 12/31/2019. A client ‘s portfolio construction may vary depending on the 


client's investment needs, objectives, and restrictions as well as the prevailing market conditions at the time of investment. 


Conservative


Moderately 


Conservative Moderate Balanced Capital Appreciation


Equity 5-20% 20-40% 40-60% 50-70% 65-85%


Current Tactical 15.00% 30.00% 50.00% 60.00% 75.00%


Large Cap Blend 4.26% 8.66% 14.79% 18.00% 22.38%


Large Cap Value 1.90% 3.92% 6.67% 8.00% 9.80%


Large Cap Growth 1.40% 2.92% 5.00% 6.00% 7.30%


Mid Cap Blend 1.18% 2.35% 3.85% 4.70% 5.87%


Mid Cap Value 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%


Real Estate 0.97% 1.69% 2.84% 3.30% 4.07%


Small Cap Value 1.25% 2.29% 3.79% 4.50% 5.18%


Small Cap Growth 1.25% 2.29% 3.79% 4.50% 5.18%


International 1.80% 3.85% 5.95% 7.00% 10.08%


Tactical - Europe 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%


Emerging Markets 1.00% 2.02% 3.32% 4.00% 5.14%


Fixed Income 60-95% 50-80% 40-60% 30-50% 10-30%


Current Tactical 81.25% 66.85% 47.60% 38.00% 23.74%


Short Term Bond 16.75% 12.15% 8.80% 6.00% 2.64%


Intermediate Term Bond 64.50% 54.70% 38.80% 32.00% 21.10%


Floating Rate Note 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%


Cash 0-20% 0-20% 0-20% 0-20% 0-20%


Current Tactical 3.75% 3.15% 2.40% 2.00% 1.26%


TOTAL 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%







Construct Your Plan’s Portfolio: PARS Diversified Portfolios – Active v. Passive


28


Each Investment Objective reflects the associated PARS Diversified Portfolio as of 12/31/2019. A client ‘s portfolio construction may vary depending on the client's investment 


needs, objectives, and restrictions as well as the prevailing market conditions at the time of investment. Specific securities identified above do not represent all of the securities 


purchased, sold or recommended for advisory clients, and you should not assume that investments in the securities identified in this presentation were or will be profitable.


HighMark Plus (Active) Index Plus (Passive)


Equity Ticker Fund Name Ticker Fund Name


Large Cap Blend COFYX Columbia Contrarian Core I3 IVV iShares Core S&P 500 ETF


Large Cap Blend VGIAX Vanguard Growth & Income Adm


Large Cap Value DODGX Dodge & Cox Stock IVE iShares S&P 500 Value ETF


Large Cap Value IVE iShares S&P 500 Value ETF


Large Cap Growth HNACX Harbor Capital Appreciation Ret IVW iShares S&P 500 Growth ETF


Large Cap Growth PRUFX T. Rowe Price Growth Stock I


Mid Cap Blend IWR iShares Russell Mid-Cap ETF IWR iShares Russell Mid-Cap ETF


Real Estate VNQ Vanguard Real Estate ETF VNQ Vanguard Real Estate ETF


Small Cap Value UBVFX Undiscovered Managers Behavioral Val R6 IWN iShares Russell 2000 Value ETF


Small Cap Growth RSEJX Victory RS Small Cap Growth R6 IWO iShares Russell 2000 Growth ETF


International DFALX DFA Large Cap International Portfolio


International DODFX Dodge & Cox International Stock


International MGRDX MFS International Growth R6 EFA iShares MSCI EAFE ETF


Emerging Markets HHHYX Hartford Schroders Emerging Mkts Eq Y VWO Vanguard FTSE Emerging Markets ETF


Fixed Income Ticker Fund Name Ticker Fund Name


Short Term Bond VFSUX Vanguard Short-Term Investment-Grade Adm VFSUX Vanguard Short-Term Investment-Grade Adm


Intermediate Term Bond PTTRX PIMCO Total Return Instl AGG iShares Core U.S. Aggregate Bond


Intermediate Term Bond PTRQX PGIM Total Return Bond Q


Intermediate Term Bond DBLFX DoubleLine Core Fixed Income I


Cash


Characteristics


Fund Manager Dependency Higher dependency on portfolio manager skill
Tracks index, thus little-to-no dependency on portfolio 


manager skill


Opportunity to Outperform Index Opportunity to outperform index Typically performs below index after fees


Costs Higher expense ratios due to portfolio manager skill
Lower expense ratio due to little dependency on portfolio 


manager skill or opportunity for outperformance







HighMark’s dedicated investment team 


continuously seeks to add value to our 


relationship with your organization.


 Integrated client service program established 


with PARS over the last 23 years


 We have a tradition of interactive client 


service to maintain a strong relationship 


delivered  by local portfolio managers


 You benefit from face-to-face meetings and 


scheduled conference calls with your client 


service team and portfolio management 


team


 You receive regular communications in a 


variety of formats


• Account holdings and transactions


• Quarterly performance evaluation 


reports


• Investment outlook and economic 


updates


Report: Responsive and Proactive Client Communication


29


Tory Milazzo, CFA


Vice President


Sr. Portfolio Manager


Central Coast


Andrew Brown, CFA


Director


Sr. Portfolio Manager


Northern California


Hoddy Fritz


Director


Business 


Development


Southern California


Fred Hurst


Director


Business 


Development


Northern California


Keith Stribling, CFA


Vice President


Sr. Portfolio Manager


Orange County


Christiane Tsuda


Vice President


Sr. Portfolio Manager


San Diego


Anne Wimmer, CFA


Director


Sr. Portfolio Manager


Los Angeles


Randy Yurchak, CFA


Vice President


Sr. Portfolio Manager


Northern California








KENSINGTON POLICE PROTECTION AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 


Arlington Community Church 
 52 Arlington Avenue, Kensington, CA 


January 21, 2020 


1. Call to Order/Roll Call


Finance Committee Chair Chris Deppe called to order the Finance Committee meeting at 1:03
p.m. Committee members present at roll call included: Director Rachelle Sherris-Watt, Jim
Watt, Karl Kruger, Mike Logan, and Rob Firmin.


Staff present included: General Manager Tony Constantouros, Interim Chief of Police Steve 
Simpkins, District Finance and Business Manager Katherine Korsak, and Financial Advisor 
Bill Zenoni. 


2. Public Comment


There was no public comment.


3. Proposal for Body Worn Cameras


Interim Police Chief Simpkins presented information on the proposal for body worn cameras
(BWCs) along with a brief overview of the BWC Policy.


• Motion by Rob Firmin, seconded by Mike Logan, to recommend the proposal to the
KPPCSD Board, carried (5-0-1) by the following roll call vote: AYES (Jim Watt, Karl
Kruger, Mike Logan, Rob Firmin, and Chris Deppe); and ABSTAINED (Rachelle
Sherris-Watt).


4. Proposal for East Bay Regional Communications System Authority (EBRCSA) Patrol
Radio Update.


Interim Police Chief Simpkins summarized the recommendation for upgrading police radios
in order to communicate with the EBRCSA system.


• Motion by Rob Firmin, seconded by Karl Kruger, to recommend the proposal to the
KPPCSD Board, carried (5-0-1) by the following roll call vote: AYES (Jim Watt, Karl
Kruger, Mike Logan, Rob Firmin, and Chris Deppe); and ABSTAINED (Rachelle
Sherris-Watt).







KPPCSD Finance Committee 
Meeting Minutes 
January 21, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 


5. Proposal for Purchase of Mobile Patrol Car Computers


Interim Chief Simpkins provided information on the purchase agreement for mobile data
computers.


• Motion by Rob Firmin, seconded by Jim Watt, to recommend the proposal to the
KPPCSD Board, carried (5-0-1) by the following roll call vote: AYES (Jim Watt, Karl
Kruger, Mike Logan, Rob Firmin, and Chris Deppe); and ABSTAINED (Rachelle
Sherris-Watt).


6. Budget Update


Financial Advisor Bill Zenoni presented a preliminary unaudited/unreconciled overview of
the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 General Fund Revenue and Expense Report through December
31, 2019.  District Business and Finance Manager Katherine Korsak reported on efforts to
reconcile the accounts from October 2019 through January 2020. She also reported that she is
working with Maze and Associates on continuing to review and update accounting
procedures. The annual audit for 6/30/2019 year end is being completed by Steven Chang
and Debbie Russell.


Public Comment.


Lynn Wolters commented on the budget.


Lastly, Bill Zenoni presented an update on pension funding options. He highlighted the
current KPPCSD Safety Plan, unfunded accrued pension liability and projected costs. Staff
will present the following information at the next Finance Committee meeting: update on the
10-year budget forecast; complete budget projections for fiscal year 2019-2020; information
on CalPERS pension funding amortization and the establishment of a 115 Retirement Trust;
and a quantitative budget summary to determine cash flow status.


7. Schedule Next Meeting


The next Finance Committee meeting was scheduled for Tuesday, March 3, 2020.


Adjournment 


Chair Deppe adjourned the meeting at 3:15 p.m.  







KPPCSD Finance Committee 
Meeting Minutes 
January 21, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 


SUBMITTED BY: 


__________ 
Lynelle M. Lewis 
District Clerk of the Board 


APPROVED: March 10, 2020 


_______________________                         
Tony Constantouros 
General Manager 


_______________________ 
Chris Deppe 
President of the Board 


_______________________ 








FY 2019-20  
Budget


Actual as of March 
31, 2020


Actual vs 
Budget


% of Budget


REVENUE
Police Activities Revenue


401 · Levy Tax  1,941,000  1,916,343 (24,657) 98.7%
402 · Special Tax-Police  682,000  681,750 (250) 100.0%


403 · Misc  Tax-Police  - 


404 · Measure G Supplemental Tax Rev  588,400  588,398 (2) 100.0%
410 · Police Fees/Service Charges  1,500  1,885 385 125.7%
411 · Kensington Hilltop Srvcs Reimb  - -  - 
413 · West County Crossing Guard Reim  - -  - 
414 · POST Reimbursement  -  4,323 4,323 
415 · Grants-Police  100,000  87,350 (12,650) 87.4%
416 · Interest-Police  15,000  9,657 (5,343) 64.4%
418 · Misc Police Income  10,000  4,371 (5,629) 43.7%
419 · Supplemental W/C Reimb (4850)  - -  - 0.0%


Total  Police Activities Revenue 3,337,900$    3,294,076$    (43,824)$    98.7%


Park/Rec Activities Revenue 0.00


424 · Special Tax-L&L  39,000  40,195  1,195 103.1%
427 · Community Center Revenue  - - 0 
438 · Misc Park/Rec Rev  200  160 (40) 80.0%


Total Park/Recreation Activities Revenue 39,200$    40,355$    1,155$    102.9%


General District Activities Revenue
448a · Franchise Fees Gross      90,000  64,278  (25,722) 71.4%
448b · less Franchise Fees Paid Out      (38,570)  (28,973)   9,597 75.1%
456 · Interest-District      200  1,040   (200)
458· Miscellaneous District Revenue      -  1,024  1,024 


Total General District Activities Revenue 51,630$    37,369$    (15,301)$    72.4%


TOTAL REVENUE 3,428,730$   3,371,800$   (57,970)$   98.3%


EXPENSES


 Police Salaries & Benefits
502 · Salary . Officers  995,791  602,356 (393,435) 60.5%
504 · Compensated Absences  9,600  10,977 1,377 114.3%
506 · Overtime  75,000  120,204 45,204 160.3%
508 · Salary • Non-Sworn  52,912  10,402 (42,510) 19.7%
516 · Uniform Allowance  8,200  8,150 (50) 99.4%
518 · Safety Equipment  2,500  611 (1,889) 24.4%
521-A · Medical/Vision/Dental-Activ e  146,536  101,963 (44,573) 69.6%
521-R · Medical/Vision/Dental-Retirees  186,097  140,573 (45,524) 75.5%
521-T · Medical Vision/Dental-Trust  239,911 - (239,911) 0.0%
522 · Insurance · Police  6,246  1,986 (4,260) 31.8%
523 · Social Security/Medicare  16,537  12,187 (4,350) 73.7%
524 · Social Security · District  3,281  12,167 8,886 370.8%
527 · PERS . District Portion  405,090  381,068 (24,022) 94.1%
528 · PERS · Officers Portion  23,393  26,147 2,754 111.8%
530 · Workers Comp  92,000  67,556 (24,444) 73.4%
541 · Consultant - Chief of Police CCC - 151,922 151,922 0.0%


Total Police Salaries & Benefits  $   2,263,094  $   1,648,270  $   (614,824) 72.8%


Kensington Police Protection and Community Services District
Fiscal Year 2019-20 General Fund Revenue and Expense Report


As of March 31, 2020







FY 2019-20  
Budget


Actual as of March 
31, 2020


Actual vs 
Budget


% of Budget


Kensington Police Protection and Community Services District
Fiscal Year 2019-20 General Fund Revenue and Expense Report


As of March 31, 2020


Other Police Expenses
552 · Police Supplies  2,200  1,017 (1,183) 46.2%
553 · Range/Ammunition Supplies  5,500  398 (5,102) 7.2%
560 · Crossing Guard  14,893  9,929 (4,964) 66.7%
562 · Vehicle Operation  30,000  28,428 (1,572) 94.8%
564 · Communications (RPD)  142,578  128,701 (13,877) 90.3%
566 · Radio Maintenance - 10,201 10,201 New Radios 
568 · Prisoner/Case Exp./Booking  12,000 5,266 (6,734) 43.9%
570 · Training  10,000 10,645 645 106.4%
572 · Hiring  15,750 9,026 (6,724) 57.3%
574 · Reserve Officers  4,000 - (4,000) 0.0%
576 · Misc. Dues, Meals & Travel  2,850  4,777 1,927 167.6%
580 · Utilities - Police  13,800  8,860 (4,940) 64.2%
581 · Bldg Repairs/Maint.  3,000  314 (2,686) 10.5%
582 · Expendable Office Supplies  6,500  4,878 (1,622) 75.1%
588 · Telephone(+Rich. Line)  5,280  3,802 (1,478) 72.0%
590 · Housekeeping  4,000  3,002 (998) 75.0%
592 · Publications  3,500  3,030 (470) 86.6%
594 · Community Policing  4,500  606 (3,894) 13.5%
595 · Legal/Consulting - Police  50,000  69,116 19,116 138.2%
596 · CAL I.D.  6,100  5,983 (117) 98.1%
599 · Police Taxes Administration  4,000  2,926  (1,074) 73.2%


Total 550 · Other Police Expenses  $  340,451  $  310,907  $  (29,544) 91.3%


Total Police Activity  Expenses  $  2,603,545  $   1,959,177  $   (644,368) 75.3%







FY 2019-20  
Budget


Actual as of March 
31, 2020


Actual vs 
Budget


% of Budget


Kensington Police Protection and Community Services District
Fiscal Year 2019-20 General Fund Revenue and Expense Report


As of March 31, 2020


Park/Rec Salaries & Benefits
601 · Salaries  6,788  4,750 (2,038) 70.0%
602 · Custodian  5,250  4,085 (1,165) 77.8%
623 · Social Security/Medicare - Dist  519 - (519) 0.0%


Total 600 · Park/Rec Sal & Benefits  $  12,557  $  8,835  $   (3,722) 70.4%


 Community Center Expenses
640 · Community Center Expenses  -  78 0.0%
642 · Utilities-Community Center  1,327  2,751 1,424 207.3%
643 · Janitorial Supplies  250  126 (124) 50.2%
646 · Community Center Repairs  2,400  871 (1,529) 36.3%
648 · Community Center Equip Maint  3,000  319 (2,681) 10.6%
Total 640 · Community Center Expenses  $  6,977  $  4,144  $   (2,911) 59.4%


Annex Expenses
662 · Utilities - Annex  - - 
666 · Annex Repairs  - -  - 
668 · Misc Annex Expenses  4,000 - (4,000) 0.0%
Total 660 · Annex Expenses  $  4,000  $ - $  (4,000) 0.0%


670 · Gardening Supplies  1,000 - (1,000) 0.0%
672 · Tennis Court Maintenance  90,600 (90,600) 0.0%
674 · Park Construction Exp  10,000 (10,000) 0.0%
678 · Misc Park/Rec Expense  1,000 (1,000) 0.0%
Total Parks/Recreation Expenses  $  102,600  $  (102,600) 0.0%


Total  Park/Recreation Expenses  $  126,134  $   (113,234) 0.0%


District Administration Expenses
808 - Salaries  227,347  161,950 (65,397) 71.2%
809 · Payroll Taxes  17,392 - (17,392) 0.0%
810 · Computer Maintenance  30,088  23,320 (6,768) 77.5%
815 - Website Maintenance  5,000  4,970 (30) 99.4%
820 · Copier Contract  6,893  4,020 (2,873) 58.3%
830 · Legal  80,840  148,732 67,892 184.0%
835 · Consulting  25,800  16,738 (9,063) 64.9%
840 · Accounting  51,450  63,347 11,897 123.1%
850 · Insurance  70,000  45,280 (24,720) 64.7%
860 · Elections  - -  - 
865 · Police Bldg. Lease  36,603  27,452 (9,151) 75.0%
870 · County Expense  24,300  22,144 (2,156) 91.1%
890 · Waste/Recycle  51,000  1,750 (49,250) 3.4%
898 · Miscellaneous Expenses  26,650  26,659 9 100.0%


Total District Administration Expenses  $  653,363  $ - $  (107,001) 0.0%


Capital Outlay
961 · Police Bldg Improvements  - 0 
962 · Patrol Cars  - - 


965 · Personal Police Equipment - 12,948 Body Warn Camera's 
966 · Police Traffic Equipment  -  1,045 1,045 
968 · Office Furniture/Equipment  -  963 963 
969 · Computer Equipment  1,500  14,491 12,991 966.1% New Computers 
972 - Park Buildings Improvement  - 0 
974 · Other Park Improvements  -  1,446 1,446 
975 - Community Center Loan Repayment  30,617 0.0%
978 · Pk/Rec Furniture/Equipment  - - 0 


Total Capital Outlay  $  32,117  $  30,893  $  16,445 96.2%


TOTAL EXPENSES  $  3,415,159  $  1,990,070  $  (848,158) 58.3%


NET OPERATING  $  13,571  $   1,381,730  $   790,187 







Kensington Police Protection and Community Services District
Fiscal Year 2019-20 General Fund Revenue and Expense Report


As of March 31, 2020


Community Center Project


Revenue Budget Actual Remaining 
Budget


439 - Contributions for Community Center -$   5,000$   


Expenditures
985 - Community Center Renovation 1,761,670$    1,334,908$    426,762.4$    








Cash Flow Projection: 
KEY:


Fiscal Year Begins (month) July


Actuals through March


Beginning Cash Balance $3,804,793


Prior Year 
Carryover


Current Yr 
Budget


Spread 
Evenly? Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun  TOTAL 


Year-to-
Date


Remaining 
to Budget


Projected 
Variance


7 8 9 10 11 12 1 2 3 4 5 6


401 · Levy Tax 1,941,000 0 7,482 0 48,611 (379) 1,773,882 5,736 (1,519) (1,598) 130,830 1,963,046$    1,832,216$  108,784$     22,046$     
402 · Special Tax-Police 682,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 681,780 681,780$       -$             682,000$     (220)$         
403 · Misc Tax-Police 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             -$             -$           
404 · Measure G Supplemental Tax Rev 588,400 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 588,398 588,398$       -$             588,400$     (2)$             
409 · Asset seizure forfeit/WEST NET 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             -$             -$           
410 · Police Fees/Service Charges 1,500 240 250 0 320 370 0 445 260 1,885$           1,885$         (385)$           385$          
411 · Kensington Hilltop Srvcs Reimb 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             -$             -$           
412 · Special Assignment Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             -$             -$           
413 · West County Crossing Guard Reim 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             -$             -$           
414 · POST Reimbursement 0 0 391 0 2,275 1,657 0 0 0 4,323$           4,323$         (4,323)$        4,323$       
415 · Grants-Police 100,000 0 0 0 0 27,143 0 27,718 32,489 45,139 132,489$       87,350$       12,650$       32,489$     
416 · Interest-Police 15,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15,000 15,000$         -$             15,000$       -$           
418 · Misc Police Income 10,000 0 0 0 1,202 1,167 0 513 1,488 7,118 11,489$         4,371$         5,629$         1,489$       
419 · Supplemental W/C Reimb (4850) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             -$             -$           
400 · Police Activities Revenue - Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             -$             -$           


420 · Park/Rec Activities Revenue
424 · Special Tax-L&L 39,000 0 0 0 40,195 0 0 0 0 40,195$         40,195$       (1,195)$        1,195$       
427 · Community Center Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             -$             -$           
438 · Misc Park/Rec Rev 200 0 0 0 0 40 0 80 40 160$              160$            40$              (40)$           


439 · Contributions for Community Ctr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,000 5,000$           5,000$         (5,000)$        5,000$       


440 · District Activities Revenue
448a · Franchise Fees Gross 90,000 0 4,281 0 4,143 25,862 0 3,540 26,452 0 17,148 8,574 90,000$         64,278$       25,722$       0$              
448b · less Franchise Fees Paid Out -38,570 0 (1,955) (1,655) 0 (11,084) 0 0 (14,279) (1,309) (3,674) (3,674) (37,630)$        (28,973)$      (9,597)$        940$          
456 · Interest-District 200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             200$            (200)$         
458 · Misc District Revenue 0 500 504 0 0 0 0 0 20 1,024$           1,024$         (1,024)$        1,024$       
440 · District Activities Revenue - Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             -$             -$           


$0 $3,428,730 $740 $10,953 ($1,655) $96,746 $44,777 $1,773,882 $38,033 ($1,519) $49,873 $1,399,699 $13,474 $72,157 3,497,158$    2,011,828$  1,416,902$  68,428$     


Police Activity Expenses
500 · Police Sal & Ben


502 · Salary - Officers 955,791 58,712 58,712 58,712 58,712 58,712 90,203 55,528 80,669 68,248 66,500 66,500 66,500 787,710$       588,210$     367,581$     (168,081)$  
504 · Compensated Absences 9,600 3,641 0 0 0 5,252 12,236 (930) 0 3,993 0 0 0 24,193$         24,193$       (14,593)$      14,593$     
506 · Overtime 75,000 20,801 10,435 17,277 14,559 17,485 12,277 9,070 9,362 8,939 493 14,558 14,558 149,813$       120,204$     (45,204)$      74,813$     
508 · Salary - Non-Sworn 52,912 2,186 2,359 1,574 1,314 1,323 1,647 0 0 0 0 1,486 1,486 13,374$         10,402$       42,510$       (39,538)$    
516 · Uniform Allowance 8,200 433 400 400 400 400 1,361 664 3,033 1,060 1,060 1,060 1,060 11,330$         8,150$         50$              3,130$       
518 · Safety Equipment 2,500 0 163 0 198 0 250 0 0 0 740 87 87 1,525$           611$            1,889$         (975)$         
521-A · Medical/Vision/Dental-Active 146,536 22,306 10,574 10,879 9,362 11,717 10,953 8,785 8,785 8,601 8,601 8,601 8,601 127,766$       101,963$     44,573$       (18,770)$    
521-R · Medical/Vision/Dental-Retired 186,097 28,248 14,386 14,190 11,753 15,390 14,449 14,062 14,062 14,034 14,034 14,034 14,034 182,675$       140,573$     45,524$       (3,422)$      
521-T · Medical/Vision/Dental-Trust 239,911 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             239,911$     (239,911)$  
522 · Insurance - Police 6,246 368 0 485 448 0 343 172 0 172 172 259 259 2,676$           1,986$         4,260$         (3,570)$      
523 · Social Security/Medicare 16,537 1,526 1,368 1,286 1,264 1,402 1,979 902 1,307 1,154 1,154 1,389 1,389 16,119$         12,187$       4,350$         (418)$         
524 · Social Security - District 3,281 1,342 1,536 763 836 1,013 1,219 1,614 1,894 1,949 1,949 1,189 1,189 16,494$         12,167$       (8,886)$        13,213$     
527 · PERS - District Portion 405,090 253,199 10,952 10,952 10,952 10,952 14,197 16,041 26,222 27,599 27,599 27,599 27,599 463,865$       381,068$     24,022$       58,775$     
528 · PERS - Officers Portion 23,393 1,583 1,583 1,583 1,583 1,583 2,092 2,829 5,945 7,368 6,557 6,557 6,557 45,818$         26,147$       (2,754)$        22,425$     
530 · Workers Comp 92,000 67,556 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,651 9,651 86,858$         67,556$       24,444$       (5,142)$      
540 · Advanced Industrial Disability 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             -$             -$           
541 · Consultant/Operational Audit 0 0 0 0 0 0 46,287 35,219 35,196 35,220 35,000 35,000 19,000 240,922$       151,922$     (151,922)$    240,922$   


550 · Other Police Expenses
552 · Expendable Police Supplies 2,200 0 0 0 150 0 550 0 28 289 53 100 100 1,270$           1,017$         1,183$         (930)$         
553 · Range/Ammunition Supplies 5,500 327 0 0 71 0 0 0 0 0 0 57 57 511$              398$            5,102$         (4,989)$      
560 · Crossing Guard 14,893 0 0 1,158 1,655 1,489 1,986 414 1,986 1,241 414 957 957 12,257$         9,929$         4,964$         (2,636)$      
562 · Vehicle Operation 30,000 641 2,301 1,617 4,635 2,953 7,107 3,189 2,047 3,938 4,798 3,206 3,206 39,639$         28,428$       1,572$         9,639$       
564 · Communications (RPD) 142,578 0 100,324 1,308 11,525 1,836 9,034 1,454 1,787 1,433 1,747 17,926 17,926 166,300$       128,701$     13,877$       23,722$     
566 · Radio Maintenance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,101 0 5,101 0 729 729 11,659$         10,201$       (10,201)$      11,659$     
568 · Prisoner/Case Exp./Booking 12,000 284 862 0 358 343 454 0 1,650 1,315 1,737 329 329 7,661$           5,266$         6,734$         (4,339)$      
570 · Training 10,000 1,727 1,611 35 948 2,422 907 552 2,057 387 100 1,172 1,172 13,088$         10,645$       (645)$           3,088$       
572 · Hiring (new title) 15,750 0 249 4,873 668 127 0 1,700 948 461 440 1,088 1,088 11,643$         9,026$         6,724$         (4,107)$      
574 · Reserve Officers 4,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 0 0 1,000$           -$             4,000$         (3,000)$      
576 · Misc. Dues, Meals & Travel 2,850 348 0 147 3,535 100 382 190 291 (215) 0 672 672 6,121$           4,777$         (1,927)$        3,271$       
580 · Utilities - Police 13,800 30 43 86 2,761 1,555 128 2,121 1,399 737 501 961 961 11,282$         8,860$         4,940$         (2,518)$      
581 · Bldg Repairs/Maint. 3,000 0 0 0 0 314 0 0 0 0 0 45 45 403$              314$            2,686$         (2,597)$      
582 · Expendable Office Supplies 6,500 (48) 25 1,887 300 1,006 1,031 191 309 179 408 627 627 6,541$           4,878$         1,622$         41$            
588 · Telephone(+Rich. Line) 5,280 0 398 391 397 1,271 402 401 195 347 378 466 466 5,111$           3,802$         1,478$         (169)$         
590 · Housekeeping 4,000 210 210 210 524 210 343 369 611 315 0 297 297 3,595$           3,002$         998$            (405)$         
592 · Publications 3,500 0 0 0 0 0 3,030 0 0 0 0 433 433 3,896$           3,030$         470$            396$          


Yellow = Forecasted


Grey = Actuals


Kensington Police Protections and Community Services District


Total Cash Receipts


CASH RECEIPTS


CASH DISBURSEMENTS


400 · Police Activities Revenue







Cash Flow Projection: 
KEY:


Fiscal Year Begins (month) July


Actuals through March


Beginning Cash Balance $3,804,793


Prior Year 
Carryover


Current Yr 
Budget


Spread 
Evenly? Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun  TOTAL 


Year-to-
Date


Remaining 
to Budget


Projected 
Variance


Yellow = Forecasted


Grey = Actuals


Kensington Police Protections and Community Services District


594 · Community Policing 4,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 116 490 15 0 0 621$              606$            3,894$         (3,879)$      
595 · Legal/Consulting - Police 50,000 600 7,008 4,292 6,078 8,168 30,210 10,398 2,055 786 399 9,536 9,536 89,068$         69,596$       (19,596)$      39,068$     
596 · CAL I.D. 6,100 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,983 0 0 0 855 855 7,692$           5,983$         117$            1,592$       
599 · Police Taxes Administration 4,000 949 0 0 989 0 988 0 0 0 989 418 418 4,751$           2,926$         1,074$         751$          


600 · Park/Rec Sal & Ben
601 · Park & Rec Administrator 6,788 729 786 525 438 1,410 862 0 0 0 0 679 679 6,785$           4,750$         2,038$         (3)$             
602 · Custodian 5,250 260 0 0 0 0 0 0 425 425 125 37 37 1,309$           1,110$         4,140$         (3,941)$      
623 · Social Security/Medicare - Dist 519 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             519$            (519)$         


635 · Park/Recreation Expenses
640 · Community Center Expenses


642 · Utilities-Community Center 1,327 78 586 282 468 208 202 0 694 234 768 260 260 4,039$           2,751$         (1,424)$        2,712$       
643 · Janitorial Supplies 250 6 120 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 18 161$              126$            124$            (89)$           
646 · Community Center Repairs 2,400 0 0 0 871 0 0 0 0 0 210 124 124 1,330$           871$            1,529$         (1,070)$      
648 · Community Center Equip Maint 3,000 0 239 0 57 0 23 0 0 0 0 46 46 410$              319$            2,681$         (2,590)$      
640 · Community Center Expenses - Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 78 0 0 0 0 11 11 100$              78$              (78)$             100$          


660 · Annex Expenses
662 · Utilities - Annex 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             -$             -$           
666 · Annex Repairs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             -$             -$           
668 · Misc Annex Expenses 4,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             4,000$         (4,000)$      


670 · Gardening Supplies 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             1,000$         (1,000)$      
672 · Kensington Park O&M 90,600 2,083 6,215 10,564 8,103 5,055 4,095 7,636 3,440 4,136 4,448 6,250 6,250 68,274$         51,326$       39,274$       (22,326)$    
674 · Tennis Courts (new title) 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             10,000$       (10,000)$    
678 · Misc Park/Rec Expense 1,000 0 0 0 0 650 0 0 0 0 0 93 93 836$              650$            350$            (164)$         


800 · District Expenses
808 · District Salaries 227,347 18,730 21,634 10,213 11,733 13,613 17,150 19,936 23,730 25,213 25,213 25,000 25,000 237,163$       161,950$     65,397$       9,816$       
809 · District Payroll Taxes 17,392 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             17,392$       (17,392)$    
810 · Computer Maintenance 30,088 1,089 1,089 8,770 3,644 1,123 3,703 1,146 1,165 1,591 2,173 2,938 2,938 31,368$         23,320$       6,768$         1,280$       
815 · Admin Communications (new title 5,000 281 285 412 302 91 590 1,769 810 429 431 533 533 6,466$           4,970$         30$              1,466$       
820 · Cannon Copier Contract 6,893 405 371 237 461 504 1,161 192 0 690 453 476 476 5,425$           4,020$         2,873$         (1,468)$      
830 · Legal (District/Personnel) 80,840 3,646 14,255 20,689 31,689 10,430 35,041 8,108 14,890 9,505 3,912 17,694 17,694 187,551$       148,252$     (67,412)$      106,711$   
835 · Consulting 25,800 0 500 3,000 2,738 3,500 7,000 0 0 0 0 2,391 2,391 21,520$         16,738$       9,063$         (4,280)$      
840 · Accounting 51,450 0 700 2,393 9,798 3,825 24,450 13,585 7,163 4,539 8,515 7,821 7,821 90,610$         66,452$       (15,002)$      39,160$     
850 · Insurance 70,000 45,233 0 0 48 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,469 6,469 58,218$         45,280$       24,720$       (11,782)$    
860 · Election 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             -$             -$           
865 · Police Bldg. Lease 36,603 6,101 3,050 3,050 0 0 0 9,151 3,050 3,050 3,050 3,050 3,050 36,603$         27,452$       9,151$         -$           
870 · County Expenditures 24,300 0 0 160 7,362 0 0 216 (0) 14,406 0 1,105 1,105 24,355$         22,144$       2,156$         55$            
890 · Waste/Recycle 51,000 50 200 150 350 200 150 200 200 250 200 186 186 2,321$           1,750$         49,250$       (48,679)$    
898 · Misc. Expenses 26,650 2,152 1,117 305 11,464 1,903 3,055 3,882 1,438 1,342 (146) 3,411 3,411 33,336$         26,659$       (9)$               6,686$       
899 · Depreciation Expense 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             -$             -$           


950 · Capital Outlay
965 · Personal Police Equipment-Asset 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7,704 5,245 25,653 0 0 38,602$         12,948$       (12,948)$      38,602$     
966 · Police Traffic Equipment 0 0 420 320 0 260 0 0 0 45 0 143 143 1,331$           1,045$         (1,045)$        1,331$       
968 · Office Furn/Eq 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 569 394 (197) 0 0 766$              963$            (963)$           766$          
969 · Computer Equipment 1,500 0 0 0 29 0 0 0 14,354 108 184 4 4 14,683$         14,491$       (12,991)$      13,183$     
971 · Park Land 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             -$             -$           
972 · Park Buildings Improvement 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             -$             -$           
974 · Other Park Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,446 0 0 0 0 207 207 1,859$           1,446$         (1,446)$        1,859$       
975 · Community Center Loan Repayment 30,617 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             30,617$       (30,617)$    
978 · Pk/Rec Furn/Eq 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -$                   -$             -$             -$           
985 · Comm. Ctr Renovation (Cap Fund) 1,761,670 0 81,084 8,550 320,977 8,985 526,541 248,266 0 151,834 225,608 84,430 0 1,656,275$    1,346,237$  415,433$     (105,395)$  


700 · Bond Issue Expenses
701 · Bond Proceeds 0 0 0 0 (65,001) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (65,001)$        (65,001)$      65,001$       (65,001)$    
710 · Bond Admin. 0 2,669 19,000 0 4,529 0 2,777 2 0 12,500 2,774 0 0 44,251$         41,477$       (41,477)$      44,251$     
715 · Bond Interest Income 0 0 0 0 (576) 0 0 (537) 0 0 0 0 0 (1,113)$          (1,113)$        1,113$         (1,113)$      
720 · Bond Principal 0 0 149,165 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 149,165$       149,165$     (149,165)$    149,165$   
730 · Bond Interest 0 0 6,371 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,371$           6,371$         (6,371)$        6,371$       


$0 $5,136,829 $550,482 $532,687 $203,726 $495,452 $198,780 $894,365 $489,570 $281,585 $431,076 $480,210 $391,218 $290,788 $5,240,617 4,077,723$     1,059,106$     103,788$      


Excess (Shortfall) from operations ($1,708,099) ($549,742) ($521,734) ($205,382) ($398,706) ($154,003) $879,516 ($451,538) ($283,104) ($381,203) $919,489 ($377,744) ($218,631) ($1,743,459) (2,065,895)$    (35,360)$       


$3,255,051 $2,733,317 $2,527,936 $2,129,230 $1,975,227 $2,854,743 $2,403,205 $2,120,101 $1,738,898 $2,658,387 $2,280,643 $2,062,013ROLLING CASH BALANCE


Total Cash Disbursements








Mar 31, 20


ASSETS
Current Assets


Checking/Savings
100 · Petty Cash 100.00
110 · CCC Cash Accts


112 · General Fund 180,850.72
114 · Land & Light-Park O&M 58,672.73
116 · PB Admin-Cash 46,921.36
117 · PB Resv-Cash 24,374.37


Total 110 · CCC Cash Accts 310,819.18


120 · Mech's Cash Accts
125 · Property Acct 2,823.13


Total 120 · Mech's Cash Accts 2,823.13


130 · County Invest Accts
133 · PB Resv-Inv 93,430.00


Total 130 · County Invest Accts 93,430.00


134 · CCC LAIF Accounts
134a · General LAIF 1,307,044.11
134d · Garbage/Bay View LAIF 174,696.74


Total 134 · CCC LAIF Accounts 1,481,740.85


Total Checking/Savings 1,888,913.16


Accounts Receivable
141 · Accounts Receivable - Year End -17,500.00
143 · Advance on Prop Taxes 1,371,397.26
144 · Advance on Suppl. Taxes 26,304.43
145 · Advance on Bond Taxes 26,175.23
146 · Advance on LLD Taxes 16,143.93
147 · Rent Receivable 0.40


Total Accounts Receivable 1,422,521.25


Other Current Assets
151 · Employee Uniform Receivable 836.28
154 · Employee Advances 475.07


Total Other Current Assets 1,311.35


Total Current Assets 3,312,745.76


Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District
Balance Sheet


                                               As of March 31, 2020


Page 1







Mar 31, 20


Fixed Assets
160 · Police Fixed Assets


161 · Police Bldg Improvements 200,061.36
162 · Patrol Cars 188,274.73
163 · Patrol Cars Accessories 17,830.92
165 · Personal Police Equipment 27,653.70
166 · Police Traffic Equipment 19,008.23
167 · Station Equipment-Police 61,325.49
168 · Office Furn & Equip 102,129.00
169 · Computer Equip 47,960.85


Total 160 · Police Fixed Assets 664,244.28


170 · Park/Rec Fixed Assets
171 · Land 2,808,347.00
172 · Community Center Building 384,049.00
173 · Community Center Improvements 158,833.25
174 · Park Improvements 875,271.38
178 · Pk/R Furn & Fixtures 51,203.29
188 · Construction in Progress 201,353.70


Total 170 · Park/Rec Fixed Assets 4,479,057.62


189 · Accumulated Depreciation -1,267,106.71


Total Fixed Assets 3,876,195.19


Other Assets
197 · Fut Bond Req 1,070,389.27
198 · Gen L/T Debt-Amt to be Provided 217,521.00
199 · Suspense 53,082.16


Total Other Assets 1,340,992.43


TOTAL ASSETS 8,529,933.38


Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District
Balance Sheet


  As of March 31, 2020


Page 2







Mar 31, 20


LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities


Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities


GASB 45 Accrual -65,901.60
219 · Accrued Payroll 6,647.39
Payroll Liabilities 220


221 · Federal Taxes/Medicare 49,594.34
222 · EDD of CA 13,925.24
225 · PERS - (District Portion) 63,807.17
226 · PERS (Officers Portion) 19,019.02
227 · PERS buy back (Employee only) -0.08
229 · KPOA Dues, Legal Def.,Survivor 249.50


Total Payroll Liabilities 220 146,595.19


Total Other Current Liabilities 87,340.98


Total Current Liabilities 87,340.98


Long Term Liabilities
290 · Community Center Loan 250,000.00
250 · Bond Debt


251 · Bond Debt-County 1,311,523.27
252 · Bond Debt-District 92,830.00
253 · Bond Interest Payable 4,247.56


Total 250 · Bond Debt 1,408,600.83


265 · Compensated Absence/Vac Buyback 80,634.50


Total Long Term Liabilities 1,739,235.33


Total Liabilities 1,826,576.31


Equity
300 · Opening Bal Equity 4,423,977.14
340 · Asset write-off to actual -161,788.71
350 · Invest. in Assets 2,287,868.28
355 · Prior Accounts Payable 7,462.00
360 · Investment in EPC -364.15
370 · Investment in KFPD MCI 34,068.02
390 · Retained Earnings 810,882.72
Net Income -698,748.23


Total Equity 6,703,357.07


TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 8,529,933.38


Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District
Balance Sheet


  As of March 31, 2020


Page 3












Kensington Police Protection Community Services District 
Police Salaries/Benefits Budget - Chart of Account Series 500
2020-2021


Payroll Taxes - 
ER


Title -Step 
CalPers 


Classifica
tion 


Grade of 
Incentive Pay 


Base Salary Holiday Pay 
Longevity 


Pay 
Incentive Pay


Uniform 
Allowance 


Esitmated OT Total Salary Medicare
PERS C 4% 


Officer Portion 
Paid by district


PERS C 5% 
Officer Portion 
Paid by district


PERS C 5% 
Officer Portion 
Employee Paid  


PERS C 21.92% 
District 


PERS P  13% 
District Portion 


(excludes 
uniform)


PERS P  12% 
Officer Portion 
Employee Paid  


(excludes 
uniform)


Medical 
Insurance 


Dental 
Insurance 


(Delta 
Dental) 


Vision 
Insurance 


(VSP) 
Life Insurance Total Benefits


Total 
Compensation 


Package 


Chief Chief Classic 8.00% 139,559.98$       N/A -$              11,164.80$      1,000.00$   -$                   151,724.78$        2,200.01$           6,068.99$           7,586.24$          33,268.69$        18,582.09$      778.72$        390.63$            483.60$         59,572.72$       213,497.51$       


Vacant Position 
Seargent - 
3 Classic 8.00% 107,827.95$       5,806.12        -                8,626.24           1,000.00      -                     123,260.31          1,787.27$           4,930.41             6,163.02             27,027.29           18,582.09        1,504.96       390.63              483.60            52,918.98$       177,966.56$       


Keith Barrows
Seargent - 
4 Classic 10.00% 112,141.41         6,038.38        1,400.00      11,214.14        1,000.00      49,455.86         181,249.79          2,628.12              7,249.99             9,062.49             39,742.64           18,582.09        1,504.96       390.63              483.60            67,953.91          251,831.83         


Rickey Hull Captain Classic 8.00% 139,559.98         N/A 2,300.00      11,164.80        1,000.00      -                     154,024.78          2,233.36              -                       7,701.24             7,701.24             33,773.01           9,291.04           778.72           390.63              483.60            52,418.24          208,676.38         
Brad Harms Officer - 4 Classic 8.00% 92,634.30           4,988.00        -                7,410.74           1,000.00      2,272.35            108,305.39          1,570.43              4,332.22             5,415.27             23,748.12           -                    2,450.88       390.63              483.60            31,405.45          141,281.27         
Juan Ramos Officer - 5 Classic 5.00% 97,812.75           5,266.84        1,300.00      4,890.64           1,000.00      17,908.52         128,178.75          1,858.59              5,127.15             6,408.94             28,105.75           24,156.67        2,450.88       390.63              483.60            60,714.68          190,752.03         
Amit Nath Officer - 5 Pepra 5.00% 97,812.75           5,266.84        -                4,890.64           1,000.00      38,931.57         147,901.80          2,144.58              19,141.30        17,628.22        24,156.67        2,450.88       390.63              483.60            64,251.30          214,297.67         
Ted Foley Officer - 5 Pepra 0.00% 97,812.75           5,266.84        -                -                    1,000.00      20,442.47         124,522.06          1,805.57              16,094.92        14,822.65        24,156.67        1,504.96       390.63              483.60            57,453.43          183,781.05         
Tamiko Fodor Officer - 4 Pepra 0.00% 92,634.30           4,988.00        -                -                    1,000.00      1,408.01            100,030.31          1,450.44              12,903.65        11,883.64        9,291.04           778.72           390.63              483.60            35,731.28          137,212.03         
Vacant Position Officier- 2 Pepra 0.00% 83,227.50           4,481.48        1,000.00      88,708.98            1,286.28              11,428.48        10,525.08        9,291.04           778.72           390.63              483.60            32,897.55          122,892.80         


Andrea Di Napoli 


Police 
Specialist 
75% Hourly 29,640.00           1,431.78        -                -                    -                -                     31,071.78            450.54                 -                       -                       -                      -                       -                    -                 -                    -                      31,522.32            


Total 1,090,663.66$   43,534.29$   5,000.00$    59,361.99$      10,000.00$ 130,418.78$     1,338,978.72$    19,415.19$         27,708.76$        7,701.24$          42,337.19$        185,665.51$      59,568.36$     54,859.58$      156,089.40$    14,982.41$   3,906.28$        4,836.00$      515,317.53$     1,873,711.45$   


**Budgeting a 1.5% increase to medical, dental, vision and life for Jan 20-June 20


Total Salary Benefits Package







Kensington Police Protection Community Services District 
Administration Salaries Budget - Chart of Account Series 800
2020-2021


Total Compensation 


Employee Position 
Hourly Rate of 
Pay 


Average Hours 
per week Annual Salary Medicare Taxes Social Security Taxes 


Bill Lindsay General Manager  $            95.00 25 123,500.00$        1,790.75$             7,657.000$                  
Katherine Korsak Finance and Business  $            62.00 28 90,272.00$          1,308.94$             5,596.864$                  
Lynelle Lewis District Clerk  $            40.00 20 41,600.00$          603.20$                2,579.200$                  
Alan Swain Administrative Asst  $            26.00 20 27,040.00$          392.08$                1,676.480$                  
Total 282,412.00$        4,094.97$            17,509.54$                  304,016.52$              


***All Admin Positions are Part Time, Non-exempt, hourly positions*** 


Payroll Taxes ERTotal Salary 







Kensington Police Protection Community Services District 
Parks Salaries Budget - Chart of Account Series 600
2020-2021


No Benefits 
Employee Position Hourly Rate of Pay Average Hours per week Annual Salary Medicare Taxes Social Security Taxes 


Andrea Di Napoli Parks Administrator 38.00$                              20 9,880.00$           143.26$                     612.56$                            
Total 9,880.00$           143.26$                     612.56$                            


***The above position is 75% police and 25% parks admin.***


Total Salary Payroll Taxes ER





		7d1

		7d2

		7d3






Kensington Park Assessment District


Budget for Engineer's Report
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21


Maintenance service base contract -Herrera $27,300 $28,263 $24,600 
Maintenance service contract - Community Center landscaping $3,000 
Other maintenance contract services - Herrera $7,000 
Brush clearing (blackberry, poison oak) $10,000 


Subotal - Base maintenance contracts $27,300 $28,263 $44,600 
Utilities (water) 4,500.00 $4,659 $15,500 
Miscellaneous maintenance services/supplies $1,500 
Drain Clearing 600 $621 $600 
Operations & Maintenance Total $32,400.00 $43,895 $62,200 
Tree Removal 10,000.00 $10,353 $30,000 
Tennis court resurfacing $10,000 
Total - Capital Improvements $40,000 
Administrative Services $4,921.08 $6,313 $6,400 
Levy Fees* $1,913 $1,914 $1,914 
Incidental Expenses 587.28 $608 $620 
Administrative Expenses Total: $7,421.24 $8,835 $8,934 
Total Costs $39,821.24 $52,730 $111,134 








RESOLUTION NO. 2020-03 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE KENSINGTON POLICE 


PROTECTION AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
ADOPTING A POLICE DEPARTMENT SALARY SCHEDULE  


 
 
The Board of Directors of the Kensington Police Protection and Community Services District 
(“Board of Directors”) resolves as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, the District contracts with CalPERS for the provision of benefits for certain 
District Employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District recognizes that salaries are subject to the meet and confer process and 
will change when new Memorandum of Understanding is approved; and 
 
WHEREAS, CalPERS requires that the salary of all employees of a member agency be included 
in a publicly available pay schedule adopted by the governing board of the contracting agency; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED BY THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
The Board of Directors hereby approves and adopts the following base salary schedule for its 
police employees, effective _____________. 
 
Classification  Time Base Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 
        


Police Chief  Monthly $12,328.93     


Captain  Monthly $ 11,182.70     


Master Sergeant  Monthly $ 9,255.25 $ 9,532.92    


Sergeant  Monthly $ 8,065.79 $ 8,388.40 $ 8,640.06 $ 8,985.69  


Corporal  Monthly $ 7,994.32     


Officer  Monthly $ 6,321.20 $ 6,668.87 $ 7,035.66 $ 7,422.62 $ 7,837.56 


 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Kensington Police Protection and Community Services 
District on _______________________, the following vote to wit: 
 
 
                 _________________________ 
    Christopher Deppe, President 
 







              _________________________ 
    Sylvia Hacaj, Director 
 
 
               __________________________ 
    Rachelle Sherris-Watt, Director 
 
 
    __________________________ 
    Eileen Nottoli, Director 
 
 
    __________________________ 
    Cyrus Modavi, Director 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing resolution was duly and regularly adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the Kensington Police Protection and Community Services District and the regular 
meeting of said Board held on _________________________. 
 
    
       ________________________________ 
       William Lindsay, General Manager 
 








Initial Costs outside of contract  (2011-2019) 245,788.82$      
Original Contract Sum with KCK Builders 1,669,400.00$  Contingency Used to Date 


36,707.00$                          
1,639.00$                            


8/30/2019 Application No. 1 80,750.00          11,544.00$                          
10/15/2019 Application No. 2 274,902.45        3,830.00$                            
12/16/2019 Application No. 3 254,466.05        3,703.00$                            
12/30/2019 Application No. 4 262,081.25        1,639.00$                            


1/30/2020 Application No. 5 248,266.35        2,691.00$                            
Application No. 6 152,047.50        4,927.00$                            
Application No. 7 210,804.05        4,937.00$                            


Total Out 1,483,317.65$  2,828.00$                            
14,010.00$                          


Balance Remaining on KCK contract 186,082.35$      1,138.00$                            
4,946.00$                            


Original KCK Contract Contingency 176,700.00$      4,140.00$                            
Total Left in Contingency 66,506.00$        951.00$                               
Glass & Associates - Construction Admin 17,146.00$        3,939.00$                            
Additional Estimated Costs Outside Contract 40,000.00$        1,748.00$                            


4,877.00$                            
Total 110,194.00$                       


Total Projected Cost of the Project 1,972,334.82$  


Total Donations 482,072.00$      
Loan 250,000.00$      
Total Cash to Fund Project 1,240,262.82$  


Kensington Police Protection and Community Services District
Community Center Renovation Budget Status Report 


Payments made to KCK within scope of contract:





